
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 - 10 A.M.
R E V I S E D

           

1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Public recognition of 4 employees for July's "Spotlight on
Employees" Program, as follows: Liz Fetterman, Lucinda
Campbell, Jamie Cunningham and Keith Johnson.  (Erica
Raymond)

Recognized

 

3 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Resolution No. 11-09-01, temporarily waiving Article 8 of the
Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering
Ordinance and naming Forest Service Road 208 as Jim
Jones Shooting Range Road.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Adopted

 

4 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of
Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library
District Board of Directors.) 
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission
of a State Grants-In-Aid Application by the Gila County
Library District to the Arizona State Library, Archives and
Public Records, Library Development Division for the
2011-2012 fiscal year in the amount of $23,000 designated
to Gila County for the period July 1, 2011, through June 30,
2012. (Jacque Griffin)

Authorized

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to accept and sign the
Contract Renewal Amendment Notification on behalf of the
Gila County Library District for the First Things First
Community-Based Literacy Grant
(FTF-RC004-11-0272-01-Y2) in the amount of $85,000 for
fiscal year July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.  (Jacque
Griffin) 

Accepted

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to approve Memorandum of Approved

  

  



C Information/Discussion/Action to approve Memorandum of
Understanding Agreements between the Gila County Library
District and the following entities to cooperate in the
provision of Community-Based Early Literacy advocacy and
outreach to the residents of the service area for the period
July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012: Friends of the Globe
Library - $9,000; Hayden Public Library - $2,500; Isabelle
Hunt Memorial Library - $2,500; Library Friends of Payson -
$11,900; Tonto Basin Public Library - $2,500; and Young
Public Library - $1,800. (Jacque Griffin)  (Motion to
adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of
Supervisors.)

Approved

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation
11-08, a proclamation of the Board of Supervisors of Gila
County, Arizona to declare the week of September 19, 2011,
as "Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve Week" in
Gila County. ( Chairman Mike Pastor)

Adopted

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 5
to Contract No. C037-09-02 - American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Contractual Agreement between the State of Arizona,
Governor's Office of Energy Policy and Gila County (Division
of Community Services, Weatherization Assistance Program),
to increase the contract funding from $1,744,457 to
$2,044,457, an increase of $300,000, for the
continued provision of weatherization services to eligible
citizens residing in Gila County for the period effective upon
signatures by both parties through March 31, 2012.  (Malissa Buzan)
(Malissa Buzan)

Approved

 

F Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted
for Invitation for Bids No. 061311-1 for the purchase of
MC800-TR chip seal oil for Gila County road maintenance
and repair; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified
bidder, and authorize the Chairman's signature on the
award contract for the winning bidder.  (Steve Stratton)

Awarded

 

G Information/Discussion/Action to approve U.S.D.A. Forest
Service Special Use Permit, Authorization ID: TON846, Use
Code: 521 for a storage and staging area on the east side of
Tonto Creek.  (Steve Stratton)

Approved

 

H Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Andres
Associates Public Relations and Media Letter of Agreement to
provide public relations and social media services to the Gila
County Board of Supervisors from August 29, 2011, through
October 31, 2011, for Apache Jii Day. (Don McDaniel)

Approved

 

  

  



I Information/Discussion/Action to elect a Chairman and
Vice-Chairman for the Board of Supervisors (BOS), which
will become effective after the BOS meeting on September 6,
2011.  (Chairman Mike Pastor)

 

J Information/Discussion/Action to approve a proposed
Judgment to settle tax appeal in Rim Golf Club v. Gila
County, TX2011-000108. The Board may vote to go into
executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) to
discuss or consult with its attorney for legal advice regarding
this proposed judgment. The Board may also vote to go into
executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to
discuss, consult, or instruct with its attorney regarding
settlement discussions to resolve this litigation.  (Bryan
Chambers)

 

K Information/Discussion/Action to consider various claims
by owners of lots within Strawberry Creek Foothills. The
Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant to
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) to discuss or consult with its
attorney for legal advice regarding the/various claims. The
Board may also vote to go into executive session pursuant to
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to discuss, consult, or instruct with
its attorney regarding settlement(s) discussions to resolve
the claims.  (Bryan Chambers)

 

L Information/Action/Discussion to approve Supervisorial and
College District redistricting mapping alternatives to be
presented to the public during a second round of public
meetings to be held September 6-16, 2011.  The Board may
also discuss alternative Arizona State redistricting plans. 
(Linda Eastlick)

 

5 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services
Contract No. SS71803D-New Bridge Over Tonto Creek,
which is between Gila County and Kimley-Horne and
Associates, Inc. to extend the contract period from October
2, 2011, to June 30, 2012.

 

B Authorization of the Chairman's signature on two separate
Intergovernmental Agreements between Gila County and the
Town of Hayden in the amount of $5,233.43, and the Town of
Miami in the amount of $5,233.43 for the distribution of
LTAF II (Local Area Transportation Funds).

 

C Approval of the FY11-LE-11031200-007 Cooperative Law

  

  



C Approval of the FY11-LE-11031200-007 Cooperative Law
Enforcement Agreement Modification between the Gila
County Sheriff's Office and the U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest to increase
the reimbursable funding amount from $83,000 to $87,000.

 

D Acknowledge receipt of FY2012 Continuance
Notification-AZDPS Contract 2009-261 Detention Liaison
Officer Program between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and
the Arizona Department of Public Safety for continued
funding for FY2012, beginning on July 1, 2011, through
June 30, 2012.

 

E Approval of a Services Contract between Gila County and
Lin-Cum, Inc. whereby Lin-Cum will provide Treasurer's
Office microfiche books vault storage for a period of twelve
(12) months from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2012 in the
amount of $391.75 per month.                 

 

F Approval of the appointments of the following Precinct
Committeemen as submitted by the Gila County Republican
Committee: Star Valley Precinct - Marylyn S. Knoner; and
Payson 1 Precinct - Carole E. Mathewson.

 

G Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Section 8
Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification to
finalize the FY 2011 HUD contractual obligations and
provide a rating for the program. 

 

H Approval to accept the reappointment of members to the
Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board (WIB) as follows:
Bernadette Kniffin, representing Native American Programs
and Educational Programs, for an additional four-year term
retroactive from May 8, 2011, to May 7, 2015, and Marian
Sheppard, representing Adult and Youth, for an additional
four-year term retroactive from July 27, 2011, to July 26,
2015; and accept the corrected information for other
WIB members as listed on the spreadsheet attached to this
agenda item.

 

I Approval to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-08 designating
Michael O'Driscoll as Applicant Agent and authorizing him to
execute for and on behalf of Gila County any documents for
the purpose of obtaining certain federal and state financial
assistance under the Disaster Relief Act (Public Law 288,
93rd Congress) and the appropriate Arizona Revised
Statutes, or otherwise available from the President’s Disaster
Relief Fund and authorization for the Chairman to sign the
Arizona Division of Emergency Management's Designation of
Applicant's Agent Form. 

 

  

  



J Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the
Maintenance Agreement between Gila County and Digital
Imaging for maintenance of the Community Development
Division's Kyocera TA-300i Digital MFP copier from
September 6, 2011, to September 6, 2012, at a cost of
$0.0049 per copy for an estimated total of $250-$300 per
month.

 

K Authorization of the Chairman's signature on a Maintenance
Agreement between Gila County and Digital Imaging for a
Kyocera TA-5500i Digital MFP copier that is being used by
the Elections Department for the period September 6, 2011,
to September 6, 2012, with an automatic renewal for one
additional year at a cost of $0.0041 per copy for an
estimated total of $600 per year. 

 

L Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment
No. 1 to a Document Conversion Services Contract between
Gila County and Lin-Cum, Inc. for the Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors Department's document conversion and storage
from September 15, 2011, to September 14, 2012, in the
amount of $117.51 per year.

 

M Approval of a Performer Contract Agreement between Gila
County and Robert Wagner for a motivational speaking
engagement for the Gila County Attorney's Office on
September 30, 2011, at the cost of $1,000.

 

N Approval of an Engagement Agreement between Gila County
and Clint Lawton for a leadership, communication,
interpersonal and interoffice team building event for the Gila
County Attorney's Office on September 30, 2011, at the cost
of $250.

 

O Approval of the purchase of property located in Globe
from the Jack In The Box Corporation in order to realign
Monroe Street and authorization of the Chairman's
signature on the title documents.

 

P Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Form 55-38,
Arizona Department of Water Resources Notice of Intent to
Abandon a Well, as part of a FEMA funded flood mitigation
project located at 668 N. Shady Lane, Tonto Basin, Arizona.

 

Q Approval of a Radvision Maintenance Renewal Agreement
between Gila County and Quagga for video conferencing
service and upgrades from August 4, 2011, to August 3,
2012, in the amount of $13,750 per year.

 

R Acknowledgement of Harry D. Jones' resignation from the

  

  



R Acknowledgement of Harry D. Jones' resignation from the
Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District governing
board effective July 21, 2011, and the appointment of Mr.
J.P. "Buddy" Rice to complete Mr. Jones' unexpired term of
office through December 31, 2012.

 

S Approval of three Special Event Liquor License Applications
submitted by the Lions Club of Globe, Arizona, Inc. to serve
liquor on September 22, 2011, at the Gila County Fair Beef
Cook-Off; September 24, 2011, for the Gila County Fair
Concert; and October 1, 2011, for the Miami High School
Class Reunion. 

 

T Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio
Permit submitted by Tamara Morken of HTNB Ventures, LLC
dba Rimside Grill & Cabins to temporarily extend
the Rimside Grill patio area in order to serve liquor in that
area on September 17, 2011, and October 1, 2011, during
special charity events.

 

U Approval to ratify the Board of Supervisors' approval of 2
applications that were electronically submitted to the
Arizona Public Service Solar for Schools and Government
Program for the Public Works Building and the Central
Heights Facility, and authorize the Chairman's signature on
the original documents.  

 

V Approval of the December 14, 2010, December 31, 2010, and
January 4, 2011, BOS meeting minutes.

 

W Approval of Board of Equalization Minutes, as follows: 
September 30, 2008, and October 1, 2008, (Combined
Minutes); and August 15, 2011; and approval of the January
25, 2011, Appeal Hearing Minutes for Glynn and Nancy
Ross.

 

X Approval of the July 2011 monthly departmental activity
report submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace.

 

Y Approval of the July 2011 monthly departmental activity
report submitted by the Payson Regional Constable

 

Z Approval of the Fiscal Year 2008-2009 Annual Report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable

 

AA Approval of the Fiscal Year 2009-2010 Annual Report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable

 

BB Approval of the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Annual Report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable

 

  

  



 

CC Approval of the July 2011 monthly departmental activity
report submitted by the Recorder's Office.

 

DD Approval of the July 2011 monthly departmental activity
report submitted by the Clerk of Superior Court

 

EE Approval of the July 2011 departmental activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable Office

 

FF Approval of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of
August 23, 2011, August 30, 2011, and September 6, 2011.

 

GG Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the
weeks of August 23, 2011, August 30, 2011, and
September 6, 2011.

 

 

6 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for
public benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s)
within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board members may not
discuss items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment
will be limited to directing staff to study the matter,
responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for
further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

7 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and
the Chief Administrator may present a brief summary of
current events. No action may be taken on issues
presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING

  

  



   

ARF-790     Presentation Agenda Item      2- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Juley
Bocardo-Homan,
Deputy Human
Resources
Director

Submitted By:

Erica Raymond, Human Resources

Department: Human Resources
Presenter's Name: Erica Raymond

Information
Request/Subject
July's "Spotlight on Employees" Program

Background Information
The purpose of this program is to provide recognition to employees for the following qualities:
teamwork, quality, morale building, integrity, customer service and initiative.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
To allow the Human Resources Department to publicly recognize the following 4 employees for
July's"Spotlight on Employees" Program: Liz Fetterman, Lucinda Campbell, Jamie
Cunningham and Keith Johnson.

Suggested Motion
Public recognition of 4 employees for July's "Spotlight on Employees" Program, as follows: Liz
Fetterman, Lucinda Campbell, Jamie Cunningham and Keith Johnson. (Erica Raymond)



   

ARF-771     Public Hearing      3- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health &
Emergency Services Division Director

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Health &
Emergency Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Emergency Services
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution No. 11-09-01 naming Forest Service Road 208 as Jim Jones Shooting Range Road

Background Information
The Northern Gila County Shooting Range Commission has initiated a request to name Forest Service
Road 208 (FSR 208) as Jim Jones Shooting Range Road in honor of James H. Jones, who served as a
County District Supervisor between 1980 and 1989.  Mr. Jones was instrumental in creating the
shooting range for public use.  The range is located southeast of Payson on FSR 208.

Evaluation
Article 8 of the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance (Ordinance) requires that
street names be no longer than 4 words or 16 characters, including spaces. The requested street name
consists of 5 words and 27 characters including spaces, therefore a waiver of Section 8 of the Ordinance
is needed before the Board of Supervisors can consider approval of this road name.

Conclusion
Article 13, Amendment 1301 of the Ordinance provides guidelines for the Board of Supervisors to
temporarily waive the provisions of the Ordinance. 

Recommendation
The Director of the Division of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of
Supervisors adopt Resolution 11-09-01,  temporarily waiving Article 8 of the Gila County Street Naming
and Property Numbering Ordinance and naming Forest Service Road 208 as Jim Jones Shooting Range
Road.

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-09-01, temporarily waiving
Article 8 of the Gila County Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance and naming Forest
Service Road 208 as Jim Jones Shooting Range Road.  (Michael O'Driscoll)

Attachments
Resolution 11-09-01
Ordinance
Public Notice



 

Resolution No. 11-09-01 Page 1 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-09-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TEMPORARY WAIVER OF 
ARTICLE 8 OF THE GILA COUNTY STREET NAMING AND 
PROPERTY NUMBERING ORDINANCE IN ORDER TO NAME A ROAD 
IN PAYSON, ARIZONA, TO BE CALLED JIM JONES SHOOTING 
RANGE ROAD, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE NAMING OF SAID ROAD. 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Gila County Board of Supervisors initially adopted the Gila County 

Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance on April 1, 1991, and last amended it on June 
28, 2011; and,  

 
WHEREAS, street names are assigned in order to implement the uniform assignment of 

property numbers and avoid duplicate names that would hinder emergency services and the 
safety of Gila County residents; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Article 8, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering Ordinance 

provides guidelines for the renaming of existing streets; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Article 13, Section 1301, of the Street Naming and Property Numbering 

Ordinance provides guidelines for the Gila County Board of Supervisors to temporarily suspend 
the provisions of the Ordinance; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the following street name and location represents an exception to the 

provisions of Article 8 of the Ordinance, 
 

Jim Jones Shooting Range Road - Sections 21, 28 & 27 T. 10N, R. 10E 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

does hereby temporarily waive Article 8 of the Gila County Street Naming and Property 
Numbering Ordinance and does officially recognize the street name(s) set forth above to become 
effective in conjunction with the numbering of properties along said street(s) and directs the 
appropriate County departments to incorporate this name uniformly on all maps of Gila County.   

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of September 2011, at Globe, Gila County, 

Arizona 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 



 

Resolution No. 11-09-01 Page 2 
 

 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 

































   

ARF-754     Regular Agenda Item      4- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Mary Stemm, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/1/2011-6/30/2012 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin

Information
Request/Subject
State Grants-in-Aid Application 2012

Background Information
State Grants-in-Aid (SGIA) is a recurring grant from the Arizona State Library Archives and Public
Records provided to county library districts and large municipal libraries.  The funding comes from the
State of Arizona to benefit libraries throughout Arizona.  This grant money is to be used for
programming, supplies, equipment, training, and materials and cannot be used for salaries or as match
money for other grants.

Evaluation
The Gila County Library District will be using the SGIA 2012 monies to provide training, travel,
equipment upgrades, collection development, and provide for special projects throughout the Gila
County Library District. We will keep a portion of the funds at the district level, and give a equal portion
of the funds to each of the libraries.

FOR THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE: 30% or $7,000
We use these funds in various ways to supplement our services to the eight affiliate libraries. 
• Part of SGIA funds are earmarked for statewide conferences and workshops to encourage networking
with other library peers, travel and training opportunities, both for the district staff, and staff at the
eight libraries. 
• We will continue to provide the Wilson Standard Catalog “5 pack” database for the Affiliate and District
staff’s use. 
• We will continue to purchase public access to the Pro-quest Library Ancestry and the Learning
Express Databases.
• The District will again bulk purchase Movie Licensing USA for the Affiliate Libraries in order for all to
comply with the copyright laws.

FOR THE INDIVIDUAL LIBRARIES: 70% OR $16,000
Each library in the District will be allocated $2,000.00 to be spent on programs, projects or materials
that the local librarian has determined is important to them, but that they do not have funds for in their
regular budgets. These projects may include computer upgrades, collection development of both print
and non-print materials, supplies, equipment, and summer reading supplies. In past years, SGIA funds
have been used at the local level to provide for special programs, such as guest speakers and workshops
in connection with Summer Reading Programs. Since the eight libraries are vastly different, their needs
are also vastly different and varied. In fact, the only common thread is that they all have needs that their
regular budgets do not cover. 

Conclusion



Regular Agenda Item      4- A             
Regular BOS Meeting

 

Mary Stemm, Asst County
Manager/Library District
Library District



The State Grants-in- Aid (SGIA) grant provides for programming, supplies, training, and equipment that
benefit library services in all of Gila County.

Recommendation
The District recommends that the County apply for State Grants-In-Aid 2012 to enhance needed
services, materials, resources and supplies for the library patrons of Gila County.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors.)  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the submission of a
State Grants-In-Aid Application by the Gila County Library District to the Arizona State Library,
Archives and Public Records, Library Development Division for the 2011-2012 fiscal year in the amount
of $23,000 designated to Gila County for the period July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012. (Jacque
Griffin)

Attachments
SGIA Grant Award Letter
SGIA Grant Application



ARIZONA STATE
LIBRARY, ARCHIVES AND PUBLIC RECORDS

A Division of the Secretary of State

Janet Fisher, Acting State Librarian

Aug. 1,2011

Jacque Griffin
County Librarian
Gila County Library District
1400 East Ash Street
Globe, AZ 85501

Dear Jacque:

Gila County has been designated to receive $23,000.00 to assist libraries in the 2012 fiscal year (7-1-
11 through 6-30-12). The State Legislature appropriated this funding in general State Grants-in-Aid for
this fiscal year. You'll find more information about the program at:
http://www.lib.az.us/extension/grantsinaid.aspx.

To receive these funds, submit an online application at http://www.lib.az.us/alts/Login.aspx. Follow
these steps:

1. Login using your e-mail address and password. Unless you have previously established a
password, your password has been set to the name of your county or city.

2. Select "Library Directory Admin," find your library and update your record. Press <SAVE>
before exiting. This information appears in the State Library's Library Directory. A library's
directory record may only be updated from the library director's login or by State Library staff.

3. Select "Grant" and begin a new SGIA grant. You will assign a password for the grant; this will
allow other staff members from your library to access the grant, if you share the password.
You will also need this password to complete your final report next year. Print the coversheet,
narrative and certification, sign and mail to me.

The State Library monitors compliance of State Grants-in-Aid recipients, based on the regulations you
will find at the program website. A final report is due by July 31, 2012, which will be completed online.
The 2011 SGIA report, which is due July 31,2011, should also be completed online. To do so, go
back to your 2011 online application, and select "Final Report." Enter your report there, and then mail
a copy of the final report and signed certification to: Laura Stone, Arizona State Library. 1700 W.
Washington, Ste 200, Phoenix, AZ 85007. Please contact me at Istone@lib.az.us or 602-926-3469 if
you have questions.

Cordially,

f11~
Library Development

STATE CAPITOL
1700 W. Washington - Room 200 • Phoenix, Arizona 85007 • Home Page: http://www.lib.az.us

Phone: (602) 926-4035 • FAX: (602) 256-7983 • E-Mail: services@lib.az.us
An Equal Opportunity Employer



SGIA 2012 Grant Application Cover Sheet

Current Status: Incomplete Application

Date Certification Received:

General Project Information

Gila County Library District
1400 East Ash
Globe, AZ85501-1414

Does the applicant meet all the eligibility criteria for a library? Yes

If no, what criteria is the applicant missing?

Project Contact Information

Contact Name: Jacque Griffin

E-mail Address:jgriffin@co.gila.az.us

Use Library Address as Contact Address

Mailing Address 1: 1400 EAsh St.

Mailing Address 2 :

City: Globe

State: AZ

Zip Code: 85501

Phone: 928-402-8770

Fax: 928-425-3462



DESCRIPTION OF EXPECTED USE OF SGIA FUNDS:
The Gila County Library District will be using the SGIA 2012 monies to provide
training, travel, equipment upgrades, collection development, and provide for special
projects throughout the Gila County Library District. We will keep a portion of the funds
at the district level, and give a portion of the funds to each of the libraries.

FOR THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE: 30% or $7,000
We use these funds in various ways to supplement our services to the eight affiliate
libraries.

• Part of SGIA funds are earmarked for the AZLA conference to encourage
networking with other library piers, travel and training opportunities, both for the
district staff, and staff at the eight libraries.

• We will continue to provide the Wilson Standard Catalog "5 pack" database for
the Affiliate and District staff's use.

• We will continue to purchase public access to the Proquest Library Ancestry and
the Learning Express Databases.

• The District will again bulk purchase Movie Licensing USA for the Affiliate
Libraries in order for all to comply with the copyright laws.

FOR THE INDIVIDUAL LIBRARIES: 70% OR $16,000
Each library in the district will be allocated $2,000.00 to be spent on programs, projects
or materials that the local librarian has determined is important to them, but that they do
not have funds for in their regular budgets. These projects may include computer
upgrades, collection development of both print and non-print materials, supplies,
equipment, and summer reading supplies. In past years, SGIA funds have been used at
the local level to provide for special programs, such as guest speakers and workshops in
connection with Summer Reading Programs. Since the eight libraries are vastly different,
their needs are also vastly different and varied. In fact, the only common thread is that
they all have needs that their regular budgets do not cover.



Page 1 of1

Application Fiscal Report

Save successful!
Type Vendor Grant Funds Local Funds Cash Total

__ '<0"_"__ 'H _"._ • _ .•• _ _ •••

LJ Addl-

Salaries & Benefits $0.00 $50,500.00 --i $50,500.00 Edit
, i

Delete--.

$0.00 $50,500.00 $50,500.00

Contractual Services Learning Express $3,910.00 $0.00 --I $3,910.00 Edit
- Delete

Contractual Services Movie Licensing USA $701.30 $738.70 ~- $1,440.00 Edit
: i~--' Delete

Contractual Services Proquest Ancestry $990.00 $0.00 =J $990.00 Edit
Library Delete

Contractual Services Wilson Core $1,168.70 $0.00 --; $1,168.70 Edit
Collections Full Pack >-.J Delete

Contractual Services TBA $400.00 $0.00 - $400.00 Edit
~l Delete

$7,170.00 $738.70 $7,908.70

Travel $200.00 $0.00 ;---j $200.00 Edit
. j
L-., Delete

$200.00 $0.00 $200.00

Equipment $5,200.00 $0.00 --, $5,200.00 Edit
L,..•.j Delete

$5,200.00 $0.00 $5,200.00

Software $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 Edit
U Delete

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Library Collection Materials $9,500.00 $0.00 [J $9,500.00 Edit
Delete

$9,500.00 $0.00 $9,500.00

Supplies $930.00 $0.00 ,I $930.00 Edit
~ Delete--

$930.00 $0.00 $930.00

Other $0.00 $0.00
,.-,

$0.00 Edit
1L-.: Delete

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$23,000.00 $51,238.70 $74,238.70

http://www.lib.az.us/alts/GrantBudget.aspx 814/2011



Certification of Application

I certify this application to be true and accurate to the best of my knowledge. On behalf of all

organizations participating in this application, I hereby assure and certify that I will comply with all

regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements pertinent to the application and to the use of award

funds. Funds will not be used for indirect or administrative costs. The applicant agrees to submit a final

report, which will include a narrative, budget and certification by the final report deadline. If this

application is approved, I certify that the project will begin promptly, and will be completed as

described.

library Name: Gila County Library District

Project Name: SGIA-2012-Gila County Library District

Authorizing Official's Name: Michael Pastor

Authorizing Official's Title: Chairman of the Gila County library District Board

Mailing address:
Gila County Library District

1400 EAsh St

Globe, AZ 85501

Authorizing Official Signature for Gila County Library District

Date. _

Approved as to Form:

Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney
Date _

IMPORTANT
This form MUST be postmarked by the due date in order

to be eligible for consideration. Please type or print clearly.

MAIL COMPLETED APPLICATION TO:
Grants Administrator

Library Development Division

1700 West Washington Street, Suite 200

Phoenix, AZ 85007-2935

Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records Date



   

ARF-791     Regular Agenda Item      4- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Mary Stemm, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July1, 2011-June 30, 2012 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin

Information
Request/Subject
First Things First Contract Renewal Amendment Notification

Background Information
On April 5, 2011, the Gila County Library District Board of Directors authorized the submission of the
renewal application for the First Things First Community-Based Literacy Grant.  A letter dated June 17,
2011, was sent to the Gila County Library District from First Things First with notification that the Gila
Regional Partnership Council renewed the grant for one additional year beginning July 1, 2011. A
Contract Renewal Amendment Notification form was sent with the letter, which needs to be signed by
the Chairman of the Gila County Library District.

Pursuant to Special Terms and Conditions, "Contract Renewal", of  Renewal Grant Agreement/2012
Contract Award # FTF-RC004-11-0272-Y2 Gila Regional Partnership Council Community-Based
Literacy, the State of Arizona hereby exercises its sole option to renew the Grant Agreement/Contract
Award number referenced above. The renewal award period is July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012. The
total award amount for the contract period is $85,000.00. The Grantee is responsible for all updated
Standards of Practice located for reference in the First Things First Grant Management System known
as PGMS under Grantee Resources. All other terms and conditions remain unchanged and are
according to the original award documents, clarification documents, and renewal submission
documents.

Evaluation
This award extends the First Things First Community-Based Literacy Grant for one more year. We hope
to contact parents/caregivers of an additional 900 children bringing our total to 1,800 enrolled in the
Imagination Library Program.

Conclusion
Of all the programs that the Gila County Library District administers, fosters or promotes, this grant
gives staff the opportunity to reach the most residents, and creates a climate and culture to develop the
prereading skills necessary for literacy in children. The award will let us enroll 1,800 children in the
program.

Recommendation
The Gila County Library District recommends that the Board of Directors accept and sign this Contract
Renewal Amendment Notification  on behalf of the Gila County Library District for the "First Things First
Community-Based Literacy Grant" (FTF-RC004-11-0272-01-Y2) in the amount of $85,000.00 for fiscal
year July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Suggested Motion



Regular Agenda Item      4- B             
Regular BOS Meeting

 

Mary Stemm, Asst County
Manager/Library District
Library District



Information/Discussion/Action to accept and sign the Contract Renewal Amendment Notification on
behalf of the Gila County Library District for the First Things First Community-Based Literacy Grant
(FTF-RC004-11-0272-01-Y2) in the amount of $85,000 for fiscal year July 1, 2011, through June 30,
2012.  (Jacque Griffin) 

Attachments
FTF Award Letter
Standards of Practice



4000 N Central Ave, Ste 800 

Phoenix, AZ 85012 

Phone:  602.771.5100 

Fax:  602.274.7040 

www.azftf.gov 

 
TO:  Gila County Library District 

     

FROM:  Jeanne Martin, Fiscal and Contracts Specialist 

  Annette Garcia, Fiscal Specialist 

   

RE:  Contract Renewal Information 

 

DATE:  June 17, 2011 

 
On behalf of First Things First, I would like to congratulate you on your renewal award from 
the Gila Regional Partnership Council.  The award period for your contract, FTF-RC004-11-
0272-01-Y2, is July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012.   
 
Your financial and programmatic reporting, as well as grant management documentation, 
will continue to be provided through the Partners Grant Management System (PGMS).     
 
Remember your current agreement ends on June 30, 2011.  The terms of your contract 
require final data and narrative reports be submitted on or before July 20, 2011 and your 
final request for reimbursement must be submitted no later than 45 days from the end date.  
Be aware that there are no carryover funds from your current award into the award for the 
next fiscal year.  
 
Important Information for 2012 Reporting 
For the 2012 award period, quarterly program narrative and data reports will be due the 20th 
day of the month following the quarter.   
 
Specific to Quarter 1 Data Reporting (due October 20), First Things First has been developing 
common data reporting templates connected to specific Target Service Units.  This process 
includes the automation of data collection through PGMS.   Please note the following: 
 

 Because of this automation, data template(s) assigned to your First Things First 
award will not be available for data input beginning July 1 and may not be available until 
early September.   

 First Things First requests that you do not submit other reports in place of the 
automated reports.  Please continue to keep track of data that will be submitted once the 
data template(s) are functional in PGMS. 

 You will be contacted by First Things First Evaluation staff to set up training for your 
data template(s) if your data collection template(s) have been modified.   
 
We understand that this unavailability of data reporting templates has an impact on your 
work.  Once you have access to your automated data template(s) in September, you may 
contact your Finance staff member  to request an extension of time  to input data for 
Quarter 1 if needed.   
 

Chair 
Steven W. Lynn 
 
Vice Chair 
Dr. Eugene Thompson 
 
Members 
Nadine Mathis Basha 
Gayle Burns 
Hon. Cecil Patterson 
Dr. Pamela Powell 
Vivian Saunders 
 
Ex-Officio Members 
Will Humble 
Director ADHS 
 

Clarence H. Carter 
Director DES 
 

John Huppenthal 
Superintendent ADE 
 
Chief Executive Officer 
Rhian Evans Allvin 

 



Narrative Reporting should not be impacted by this data template update and is still due on October 20, 2011.  Requests 
for financial reimbursement can be submitted as frequently as monthly, but no less frequently than quarterly as usual.  
Please note, financial reimbursement  may be delayed if the submission of data and narrative quarterly reports is not 
timely.   
 
Data, narrative and financial information is critical to keep Regional Partnership Councils and the Board of First Things 
First apprised of performance throughout grant implementation.  Late submission of narrative, data, and financial 
information will result in key information not being provided in reports presented to the Regional Partnership Councils 
and the Board of First Things First. 
 
Follow Up Action Necessary 
Please print two originals of the attached Contract Renewal Notification form  and have them signed by your designated 
signatory.  Mail the two originals back to the attention of your First Things First Finance Division staff.  First Things First 
will sign the documents upon receipt and return one original for your records.  
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact your finance staff - Jeanne Martin, 
jmartin@azftf.gov, (602) 771-5084 and Annette Garcia, angarcia@azftf.gov, (602) 771-5089.  We look forward to 
working with you this year. 
  



 

 
CONTRACT RENEWAL AMENDMENT NOTIFICATION 

 
Early Childhood 

Development and 
Health Board 

 (First Things First) 
 

4000 North Central 
Avenue, Suite 800 

Phoenix, Arizona 85012 
 

(602) 771-5000 
(602) 265-0009 fax 

Renewal Amendment Award Notification  Page 

1 

of 

1 

Renewal Grant Agreement/2012 Contract Award #  
FTF-RC004-11-0272-01-Y2 
Gila Regional Partnership Council 
Community-based Literacy 

 
CONTRACTOR: 
Gila County Library District 
 
 
PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT: 
 

1. Pursuant to Special Terms and Conditions, “Contract Renewal”, of the above referenced Grant 
Agreement/Contract Award, the State of Arizona hereby exercises its sole option to renew the Grant 
Agreement/Contract Award number referenced above.  The renewal award period is July 1, 2011 through June 
30, 2012.   
 

2. Total award amount for the contract period is $  85,000.   
 

3. The Grantee is responsible for all updated Standards of Practice located for reference in the First Things First 
Grant Management System known as PGMS under Grantee Resources. 
 

4. All other terms and conditions remain unchanged and are according to the original award documents, 
clarification documents, and renewal submission documents. 

Contractor hereby acknowledges receipt and 
understanding of the contract amendment 
 

Signature_______________________________ 

Name__________________________________ 

Title___________________________________ 

Date___________________________________ 

The above referenced amendment is hereby executed 

effective July 1, 2011 once signed and dated below: 

_________________________________________ 
Jeanne Martin 
Lead Financial and Contract Specialist  
  

___________________________________________ 
Date 

 



FIRST THINGS FIRST
Ready for School. Set for Life.

FIRST THINGS FIRST
Early Language and Literacy Programs in Home and Community Settings

Standards of Practice

Early childhood stakeholders, families, and communities recognize that when early language and literacy
development is optimized, it can be the foundation for a child's later academic success in school. "The years
from birth through age five are a critical time for children's development and learning. Early childhood
educators understand that at home and in early childhood education settings, young children learn important
skills that can provide them with the cornerstones needed for the development of later academic skills ..."
(Literacy, 2009)

Literacy acquisition encompasses the four domains of language (reading, writing, speaking and listening) and
numeracy. Early literacy or precursor literacy skills include the following variables that are consistently shown
to predict later literacy achievement:

• alphabet knowledge: knowledge of the names and sounds associated with printed letters
• phonological awareness: the ability to detect, manipulate, or analyze the auditory aspects of spoken

language (including the ability to distinguish or segment words, syllables, or phonemes), independent
of meaning

• rapid automatic naming of letters or digits: the ability to rapidly name a sequence of random letters
or digits

• rapid automatic naming of objects or colors: the ability to rapidly name a sequence of repeating
random sets of pictures of objects (e.g., "car," "tree," "house," "man") or colors

• writing or writing name: the ability to write letters in isolation on request or to write one's own name
• phonological memory: the ability to remember spoken information for a short period of time
• concepts about print: knowledge of print conventions (e.g., left-right, front-back) and concepts (book

cover, author, text)
• print knowledge: a combination of elements of alphabet knowledge, concepts about print, and early

decoding
• reading readiness: usually a combination of alphabet knowledge, concepts of print, vocabulary,

memory, and PA
• oral language: the ability to produce or comprehend spoken language, including vocabulary and

grammar
• visual processing the ability to match or discriminate visually presented symbols



Programs that support young children's early language and literacy development are a part of the family
support system in Arizona. An array of early language and literacy programs and service delivery methods
may be implemented to meet the needs of families with young children. Research indicates that family
literacy programs which provide learning opportunities for both the young child and his or her parents
positively impact young children and their families. (Literacy N. c., 2009) According to Adult Education and
Family Literacy Act (AEFLA) standards, the term "family literacy services" means programming that is of
sufficient intensity in terms of hours, and of sufficient duration, to make sustainable changes in a family and
that integrates all of the following core components:

./ Interactive literacy activities between parents and their children, and

./ Training for parents regarding how to be the primary teacher for their children and full partners in the
education of their children, and

./ Parent literacy training that leads to economic self-sufficiency, and

./ An age-appropriate education to prepare children for success in school and life experiences.

Family literacy programs are built on four core principles; 1) the value of education for success in life, 2) the
central role ofthe parent in a child's development, 3) the identification of individual strengths, and 4) the
value of experiential learning.

While each First Things First funded early language and literacy program may be uniquely designed, they all
have a valuable role to play in meeting the complex needs of families and communities across the State of
Arizona. First Things First focuses on programs and services that provide children with the best opportunities
for school and life success. Funding decisions are based upon a robust process of review to ensure programs
are supported by research, value the family, use approaches considered to be best practice and are
responsive to the specific needs identified in each region. First Things First funded programs shall
supplement, not supplant, other state expenditures on, and federal monies received for early childhood
development and health programs.

It is expected that early language and literacy programs funded by First Things First will be offered at no-cost,
on a voluntary basis. Programs and service can be delivered through home visitation or community based
training. Please, also refer to the First Things First Home Visitation and/or Parent Education Community
Based Training Standards of Practice documents.

Using a family-centered and strengths-based approach these programs will:

1. Provide a Focus on Literacy

A. Inform and educate parents and families on typical early language and emergent literacy
development for children ages birth through five.

B. Literacy coaching and instruction should be woven into the activities of all program components;
presented and practiced in contexts that are meaningful to families' lives and needs. If providing
literacy services in a community based setting, it is critical that parents and families are taught to
bridge classroom experiences to home environments with their own young children.

C. Training for parents regarding how to be the primary teacher for their children and full partners in
the education of their children.

• Actively engage parents in learning how everyday experiences can nurture the literacy
development of their children.

• Support parents in maintaining a literacy-rich home environment.

• Assist parents to learn how to advocate for their children within a variety of settings,
including school, child care and human service agencies.

~ "r" ~ •.........•.•...•...........••..•....h h ,.,.....,...J •...•, ••.••.• : •...•• ,I •••.....•.•......••...•.rI .......•.•.•.:.,: .•.:.....•,....•..•....••..••..•....••........•.•.....•+ ••••I.•...•......•...•....: •....~ : ....•,..,.....•...•+ •...•,,~.•.,.. ••• h:,...h .....••...,.. •....•...•1•..••,.....••...•+ +_



the lives of participants.

3. Provide Sufficient Intensity and Duration of Services
• For example, typical frequency and duration of family literacy programs is a minimum of 6

sessions at 2 hours per session.

Programs may also:
Align with Arizona's Early Learning Standards/Guidelines.
Family literacy programs across the nation also take into consideration alignment with
their state's Early Learning Guidelines which describe the expectations about what
children should know (understand) and do (competency and skills) across the different
domains of learning. In Arizona, the Department of Education developed Early Learning
Standards to provide a framework for the planning of quality learning experiences for all
children 3 to 5 years of age. The document can be found here:
http://www.ade.state.az.us/earlychildhood/downloads/EarlyLearningStandards.pdf
First Things First is developing Early Learning Developmental Guidelines for infants and
toddlers.
Provide parent literacy training that leads to economic self-sufficiency.

• Assist adults in raising their literacy levels.

• Assist adults in gaining the knowledge and skills needed for employment and
self-sufficiency.

• Assist adults who are parents in gaining educational skills they need to be full
partners in the educational development of their children.

• Assist adults in completing their secondary school education or its equivalent
(e.g., English language classes, Adult Basic Education, Adult Secondary Education,
preparation for the General Education Development (GED) examination, and
workplace literacy)

• In community settings, instruction should include a combination of individual and
group activities, and encourage cooperative learning.

• Assessment, both formal and informal, should occur on an ongoing basis in order
to provide adult learners with feedback about progress they have made toward
goals.

• Participants must be actively engaged in the decision-making process with regard
to their education.

• Program staff must support adult learners in being self-directed, with
understanding that adult education builds upon the knowledge, experiences and
roles of participating adults.

All First Things First funded Home Based Early Language and Literacy Programs must also follow the First
Things First Home Visitation Standards of Practice.

All First Things First funded Community Based Early Language and Literacy Programs must also follow the
First Things First Parent Education Community Based Training Standards of Practice.

March 23, 2010



   

ARF-800     Regular Agenda Item      4- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County
Manager/Librarian

Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Asst County
Manager/Library District

Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2011 through June 30,
2012

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin

Information
Request/Subject
Memorandum of Understanding Agreements to promote early literacy in Globe-Miami, Hayden, Payson,
Pine, Tonto Basin and Young

Background Information
The renewal grant for the First Things First Community-Based Early Literacy Grant for the Gila County
Library District included an increase of $30,000 for advocacy and outreach services throughout the
service area. The primary purpose of the advocacy and outreach is to increase parent/caregiver
awareness of the importance of reading to children, how early exposure to books and reading builds
vocabulary and is a component of preparing a child for future reading success, and to enroll their
children in the "Imagination Library" program which provides books each month to the
child/children.  The secondary purpose of this outreach is to increase awareness of this program within
the community.

Evaluation
The renewal grant agreement provides for these funds to be distributed to the local community libraries
to provide the advocacy and outreach within their service areas.  This approach provides for a local
point of contact within a community, rather than attempt to contract or hire one individual to cover the
entire service area.  The Library District Staff believes, and the local librarians agree, that  providing
this advocacy and outreach at the local level will allow for more personal contact and promotion time
within each community.

In order to distribute these funds, Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) agreements need to be in
place, since the Library District is the recipient of this grant.  The MOUs include the standard language
that the County requires for all contractual agreements, and identifies the scope of work, the funding
amounts and the agreement length.  The agreement length matches the grant length.  The dollar
amounts vary according to the population within the service area.  

There are only six MOUs (rather than one for each affiliate public library) because the Globe and Miami
communities are included in one MOU, and the service area for the Community-Based Early Literacy
Grant unfortunately does not include the San Carlos area.  Additionally, where possible, these
agreements have been made with the Friends of the Globe Library (private non-profit corporations) since
their primary missions mirror the purpose of these funds; advocacy and outreach on behalf of library
services in their communities.

Conclusion
This approach of selecting local community liaisons to provide community outreach and advocacy for



Regular Agenda Item      4- C             
Regular BOS Meeting

 

Jacque Griffin, Asst County
Manager/Library District
Library District



This approach of selecting local community liaisons to provide community outreach and advocacy for
the community-based early literacy program is the best method for reaching the greatest number of
parents /caregivers and provides the most flexibility for outreach within each community.  The First
Things First grant renewal provides for this method of outreach and advocacy, and these MOUs facilitate
the funding for this portion of this program.

Recommendation
The Gila County Library District recommends approval of the six Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
Agreements between the Gila County Library District and the Friends of the Globe Library, Hayden
Public Library, Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library, Library Firends of Payson, Tonto Basin Public Library,
and the Young Public Library to provide advocacy and outreach services that promote community-based
early literacy efforts.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Memorandum of Understanding Agreements between the
Gila County Library District and the following entities to cooperate in the provision of Community-Based
Early Literacy advocacy and outreach to the residents of the service area for the period July 1, 2011,
through June 30, 2012: Friends of the Globe Library - $9,000; Hayden Public Library - $2,500; Isabelle
Hunt Memorial Library - $2,500; Library Friends of Payson - $11,900; Tonto Basin Public Library -
$2,500; and Young Public Library - $1,800. (Jacque Griffin)  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.)

Attachments
MOU with Friends of Globe Library
MOU with Hayden Library 
MOU with Pine Library
MOU with Library Friends of Payson - Early Literacy
MOU with Tonto Basin Library - Early Literacy
MOU with Young Library - Early Literacy



Tommie C. Martin, District I
P.O. Box 2297 Payson, AZ. 85547
(928) 474-2029

Michael A. Pastor, District II
1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753

Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext.8761

Joseph T. Heatherly, Finance Director
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext. 8743

Shirley L. Dawson, District III
1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8511

GILA COUNTY
www.gilacountyaz.gov

FAX(928) 425-0319
TTY: 7-1-1

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AGREEMENT # 6000.600.GLO

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT EARLY LITERACY ADVOCACY AND OUTREACH GRANT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 6 day of September, 2011, by and between the Gila
County Library District, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the District,
and Friends of the Globe Library, of the City of Globe, County of Gila, State of Arizona, hereinafter
designated the FRIENDS.

WITNESSETH: That the FRIENDS, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid by the District, in
the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other covenants and agreements herein
contained, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as follows:

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF SERVICES:
The Friends of the Globe Library will provide advocacy-outreach services in the Globe-Miami

communities to advocate the importance of early literacy, provide training to parents/caregivers of children
from birth to five years of age, not currently enrolled in the early literacy book program, and enroll children
in the local area, in order to reach our District wide goal of enrolling 1,800 children. These local outreach
advocates will be required to attend a mandatory planning, brainstorming and training session provided by
the District to ensure that everyone is adequately trained and to expand ideas for reaching parents and
children.

ARTICLE II -EARLY TERMINATION: Contract shall terminate thirty (30) days after written notice is
received by either party to the other. Upon receipt of the notice, work in progress will be completed and
any summaries and/or status reports shall be prepared and submitted, all within thirty (30) days. The
County's financial obligation shall cover only the work performed up to the notice to terminate plus thirty
(30) days, and not work completed thereafter.

ARTICLE III - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE: The FRIENDS shall indemnify, defend, save and hold
harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as
"Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses
(including court costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation)
(hereinafter referred to as "Claims") for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage
to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of The FRIENDS or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, and employees.
This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers' Compensation
Law or arising out of the failure of The FRIENDS to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute,
ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee



shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the
Indemnitee, be indemnified by The FRIENDS from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that The
FRIENDS will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this
indemnification is applicable. In consideration of the award of this contract, The FRIENDS agrees to waive
all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising
from the work performed by the FRIENDS for the County.

ARTICLE IV - LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE: The FRIENDS hereby warrants

that it will at all times during the term of this Agreement comply with all federal immigration laws

applicable to The FRIENDS's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214

(A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). The FRIENDS shall further ensure that each

subcontractor who performs any work for The FRIENDS under this contract likewise complies with the State

and Federal Immigration Laws. County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of

The FRIENDS and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with the State and Federal

Immigration Laws.

Any breach of The FRIENDS's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this
Agreement subjecting The FRIENDS to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Agreement. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result,
The FRIENDS shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to
The FRIENDS approval if MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

FRIENDS shall advise each subcontractor of the County's rights, and the subcontractor's obligations, under
this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:

"Subcontractors hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all
federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. §
23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to
insure that Subcontractors is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractors will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractors to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract." Any additional costs attributable
directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of The FRIENDS. In the
event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of The
FRIENDS's approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed
excusable delay for which The FRIENDS shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs.

ARTICLE V - LAWS AND ORDINANCES: This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the
State of Arizona. The FRIENDS shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and
permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the FRIENDS. The FRIENDS shall comply
with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.c. 12101-
12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act.

ARTICLE VI - ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY: Pursuant to A.R.S. §3S-397 the FRIENDS certifies that
it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance with the
Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List.

Agreement # 6000.600.GLO Paqe Z



ARTICLE VII - CANCELLATION: This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511. If the Agreement is terminated, the county shall be liable only for payment for services rendered by
the County before the effective date of termination.

ARTICLEVIII - TERM: The term of this agreement shall commence July I, 2011 and shall remain in
effect through June 30, 2012 unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.

ARTICLE IX - PAYMENT: The Scope of Services as outlined above will be performed with a not-to-
exceed budget of $9,000.00.

The District will distribute these funds in two equal payments, one half upon acceptance of this agreement
by all parties, and the second one half to be disbursed between November 2011, and March 2012, upon
receipt by the District of a progress report submitted by The Friends that verifies the outreach and
advocacy activities and work performed. It will further be the responsibility of The Friends to submit a final
completion report to the District within 30 days of completion of the project work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two {2} identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include
original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the
parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written.

In return for the performance of the Contract by the FRIENDS, the County agrees to pay the amount of not
more than $9,000.00 including all applicable taxes through the payment schedule as described above.

Memorandum Of Understanding AGREEMENT NO. 6000.600.GLO

GILA COUNTY: FRIENDS:

FRIENDS OF THE GLOBE LIBRARY

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman,
Gila County Library District Board of Directors

ATTEST: Print Name

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney
jor Daisy Flores, County Attorney

Agreement # 6000.600.GLO Page 3



Tommie C. Martin, District I
P.O. Box 2297 Payson, AZ. 85547
(928) 474-2029

Michael A. Pastor, District II
1400 E. Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753

Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext.8761

Joseph T. Heatherly, Finance Director
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext. 8743

Shirley L. Dawson, District III
1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8511

GILA COUNTY
FAX(928) 425-0319

TIY: 7-1-1

www.gilacountyaz.gov

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AGREEMENT # GOOO.GOO.HAY

GILA COUNTY TOWN DISTRICT EARLY LITERACYADVOCACY AND OUTREACH GRANT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 6 day of September, 2011, by and between the Gila
County Library District, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the District,
and the Hayden Public Library, of the town of Hayden, County of Gila, State of Arizona, hereinafter
designated the TOWN.

WITNESSETH: That the TOWN, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid by the District, in the
manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other covenants and agreements herein contained,
hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as follows:

ARTICLE I - SCOPEOF SERVICES:
The Hayden Public Library will provide advocacy-outreach services in the Hayden and Winkleman

communities to advocate the importance of early literacy, provide training to parents/caregivers of children
from birth to five years of age, not currently enrolled in the early literacy book program, and enroll children
in the local area, in order to reach our District wide goal of enrolling 1,800 children. These local outreach
advocates will be required to attend a mandatory planning, brainstorming and training session provided by
the District to ensure that everyone is adequately trained and to expand ideas for reaching parents and
children.

ARTICLE II -EARLY TERMINATION: Contract shall terminate thirty (30) days after written notice is
received by either party to the other. Upon receipt of the notice, work in progress will be completed and
any summaries and/or status reports shall be prepared and submitted, all within thirty (30) days. The
County's financial obligation shall cover only the work performed up to the notice to terminate plus thirty
(30) days, and not work completed thereafter.

ARTICLE III - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE: The TOWN shall indemnify, defend, save and hold
harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as
"Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses
(including court costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation)
(hereinafter referred to as "Claims") for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage
to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of the TOWN or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, and employees. This
indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers' Compensation Law
or arising out of the failure of the TOWN to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance,
rule, regulation or court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all



instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee,
be indemnified by the TOWN from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that The TOWN will be
responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is
applicable. In consideration of the award of this contract, The TOWN agrees to waive all rights of
subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work
performed by the TOWN for the County.

ARTICLE IV - LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE: The TOWN hereby warrants

that it will at all times during the term of this Agreement comply with all federal immigration laws

applicable to The TOWN's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A)

(together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). The TOWN shall further ensure that each

subcontractor who performs any work for the TOWN under this contract likewise complies with the State

and Federal Immigration Laws. County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of

The TOWN and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with the State and Federal

Immigration Laws.

Any breach of The TOWN's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this
Agreement subjecting the TOWN to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Agreement. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result,
The TOWN shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that
would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to The
TOWN approval if MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project completion.

The TOWN shall advise each subcontractor of the County's rights, and the subcontractor's obligations,
under this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:

"Subcontractors hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all
federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the requirements of A.R.5. §
23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to
insure that Subcontractors is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractors will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractors to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract." Any additional costs attributable
directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of the TOWN. In the
event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of The
TOWN's approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed
excusable delay for which The TOWN shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs.

ARTICLE V - LAWS AND ORDINANCES: This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the
State of Arizona. The TOWN shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and
permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the TOWN. The TOWN shall comply with
the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336,42 U.S.c. 12101-12213)
and applicable federal regulations under the Act.

ARTICLE VI- ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY: Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the TOWN certifies that it
does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance with the
Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List.

ARTICLE VII - CANCELLATION: This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.5. § 38-
511. If the Agreement is terminated, the county shall be liable only for payment for services rendered by
the County before the effective date of termination.

Agreement # 6000.600.HAY Page 2



ARTICLE VIII - TERM: The term of this agreement shall commence July 1, 2011 and shall remain in
effect through June 30, 2012 unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.

ARTICLE IX - PAYMENT: The Scope of Services as outlined above will be performed with a not-to-
exceed budget of $ 2,500.00.

The District will distribute these funds in two equal payments, one half upon acceptance of this agreement
by all parties, and the second one half to be disbursed between November 2011, and March 2012, upon
receipt by the District of a progress report submitted by The TOWN that verifies the outreach and advocacy
activities and work performed. It will further be the responsibility of the TOWN to submit a final
completion report to the District within 30 days of completion of the project work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include
original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the
parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written.

In return for the performance of the Contract by the TOWN, the County agrees to pay the amount of not
more than $ 2,500.00 including all applicable taxes through the payment schedule as described above.

Memorandum Of Understanding AGREEMENT NO. GOOO.GOO.HAY

GILA COUNTY: TOWN OF HAYDEN:

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman,
Gila County Library District Board of Directors

ATTEST: Print Name

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney
for Daisy Flores, County Attorney

Agreement # 6000. 600.HA Y Page 3



Tommie C. Martin, District I
P.O. Box 2297 Payson, AZ. 85547
(928) 474-2029

Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext.87G1

Michael A. Pastor, District II
1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753

Joseph T. Heatherly, Finance Director
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext. 8743

Shirley L. Dawson, District III
1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8511

GILA COUNTY
FAX(928) 425-0319

TTY: 7-1-1

www.gilacountyaz.gov

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AGREEMENT # 6000.600.IHP

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT EARLY LITERACYADVOCACY AND OUTREACH GRANT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 6 day of September, 2011, by and between the Gila
County Library District, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the District,
and the Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library Board of Directors, of the Community of Pine, County of Gila, State
of Arizona, hereinafter designated the LIBRARY.

WITNESSETH: That the LIBRARY, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid by the District, in
the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other covenants and agreements herein
contained, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as follows:

ARTICLE I - SCOPEOF SERVICES:
The Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library will provide advocacy-outreach services in the Pine and

Strawberry communities to advocate the importance of early literacy, provide training to
parents/caregivers of children from birth to five years of age, not currently enrolled in the early literacy
book program, and enroll children in the local area, in order to reach our District wide goal of enrolling
1,800 children. These local outreach advocates will be required to attend a mandatory planning,
brainstorming and training session provided by the District to ensure that everyone is adequately trained
and to expand ideas for reaching parents and children.

ARTICLE II -EARLY TERMINATION: Contract shall terminate thirty (30) days after written notice is
received by either party to the other. Upon receipt of the notice, work in progress will be completed and
any summaries and/or status reports shall be prepared and submitted, all within thirty (30) days. The
County's financial obligation shall cover only the work performed up to the notice to terminate plus thirty
(30) days, and not work completed thereafter.

ARTICLE III - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE: The LIBRARY shall indemnify, defend, save and hold
harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as
"Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses
(including court costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation)
(hereinafter referred to as "Claims") for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage
to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of the LIBRARY or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, and employees.
This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers' Compensation
Law or arising out of the failure of the LIBRARY to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute,
ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee



shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the
Indemnitee, be indemnified by the LIBRARY from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that The
LIBRARY will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this
indemnification is applicable. In consideration of the award of this contract, The LIBRARY agrees to waive
all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising
from the work performed by the LIBRARY for the County.

ARTICLE IV - LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE: The LIBRARY hereby warrants

that it will at all times during the term of this Agreement comply with all federal immigration laws

applicable to The LIBRARY's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A)

(together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). The LIBRARY shall further ensure that each

subcontractor who performs any work for the LIBRARY under this contract likewise complies with the State

and Federal Immigration Laws. County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of

The LIBRARY and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with the State and Federal

Immigration Laws.

Any breach of The LIBRARY's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this
Agreement subjecting The LIBRARY to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Agreement. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result,
The LIBRARY shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to
The LIBRARY approval if MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

LIBRARY shall advise each subcontractor of the County's rights, and the subcontractor's obligations, under
this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:

"Subcontractors hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all
federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. §
23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to
insure that Subcontractors is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractors will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractors to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract." Any additional costs attributable
directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of The LIBRARY. In the
event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of The
LIBRARY's approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed
excusable delay for which The LIBRARY shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs.

ARTICLE V - LAWS AND ORDINANCES: This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the
State of Arizona. The LIBRARY shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and
permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the LIBRARY. The LIBRARY shall comply
with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.s.e. 12101-
12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act.

ARTIClE VI - ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY: Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the LIBRARY certifies that
it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance with the
Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List.

Agreement # 6000. 600. IHP Page 2



ARTICLE VII - CANCELLATION: This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511. If the Agreement is terminated, the county shall be liable only for payment for services rendered by
the County before the effective date of termination.

ARTICLE VIII - TERM: The term of this agreement shall commence July 1, 2011 and shall remain in
effect through June 30, 2012 unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.

ARTICLE IX - PAYMENT: The Scope of Services as outlined above will be performed with a not-to-
exceed budget of $ 2,500.00.

The District will distribute these funds in two equal payments, one half upon acceptance of this agreement
by all parties, and the second one half to be disbursed between November 2011, and March 2012, upon
receipt by the District of a progress report submitted by The LIBRARY that verifies the outreach and
advocacy activities and work performed. It will further be the responsibility of The LIBRARY to submit a
final completion report to the District within 30 days of completion of the project work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include
original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the
parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written.

In return for the performance of the Contract by the LIBRARY, the County agrees to pay the amount of not
more than $ 2,500.00 including all applicable taxes through the payment schedule as described above.

Memorandum Of Understanding AGREEMENT NO. 6000.600.IHP

GILA COUNTY: LIBRARY:

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman,
Gila County Library District Board of Directors

Michael Clark
ATIEST: Print Name

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney
for Daisy Flores, County Attorney

Agreemenc # ()oOO.oOO.IHP Page 3



Tommie C. Martin, District I
P.O. Box 2297 Payson, AZ. 85547
(928) 474-2029

Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext.8761

Michael A. Pastor, District II
1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753

Joseph T. Heatherly, Finance Director
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext. 8743

Shirley l. Dawson, District III
1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8511

GILA COUNTY
www.gilacountyaz.gov

FAX(928) 425-0319
TTY: 7-1-1

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AGREEMENT # GOOO.GOO.PAY

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT EARLY LITERACYADVOCACY AND OUTREACH GRANT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 6 day of September, 2011, by and between the Gila
County Library District, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the District,
and Library Friends of Payson, of the Town of Payson, County of Gila, State of Arizona, hereinafter
designated the FRIENDS.

WITNESSETH: That the FRIENDS, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid by the District, in
the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other covenants and agreements herein
contained, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as follows:

ARTICLE I - SCOPEOF SERVICES:
The Library FRIENDS of Payson will provide advocacy-outreach services in the Payson community to

advocate the importance of early literacy, provide training to parents/caregivers of children from birth to
five years of age, not currently enrolled in the early literacy book program, and enroll children in the local
area, in order to reach our District wide goal of enrolling 1,800 children. These local outreach advocates
will be required to attend a mandatory planning, brainstorming and training session provided by the District
to ensure that everyone is adequately trained and to expand ideas for reaching parents and children.

ARTICLE II -EARLY TERMINATION: Contract shall terminate thirty (30) days after written notice is
received by either party to the other. Upon receipt of the notice, work in progress will be completed and
any summaries and/or status reports shall be prepared and submitted, all within thirty (30) days. The
County's financial obligation shall cover only the work performed up to the notice to terminate plus thirty
(30) days, and not work completed thereafter.

ARTICLE III - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE: The FRIENDS shall indemnify, defend, save and hold
harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as
"Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses
(including court costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation)
(hereinafter referred to as "Claims") for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage
to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of The FRIENDS or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, and employees.
This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers' Compensation
Law or arising out of the failure of The FRIENDS to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute,
ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the



Indemnitee, be indemnified by The FRIENDS from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that The
FRIENDS will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this
indemnification is applicable. In consideration of the award of this contract, The FRIENDS agrees to waive
all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising
from the work performed by the FRIENDS for the County.

ARTICLE IV - LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE: The FRIENDS hereby warrants

that it will at all times during the term of this Agreement comply with all federal immigration laws

applicable to The FRIENDS's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214

(A) (together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). The FRIENDS shall further ensure that each

subcontractor who performs any work for The FRIENDS under this contract likewise complies with the State

and Federal Immigration Laws. County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of

The FRIENDS and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with the State and Federal

Immigration Laws.

Any breach of The FRIENDS's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this
Agreement subjecting The FRIENDS to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Agreement. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result,
The FRIENDS shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to
The FRIENDS approval if MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

FRIENDS shall advise each subcontractor of the County's rights, and the subcontractor's obligations, under
this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:

"Subcontractors hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all
federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. §
23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to
insure that Subcontractors is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractors will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractors to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract." Any additional costs attributable
directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of The FRIENDS. In the
event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of The
FRIENDS's approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed
excusable delay for which The FRIENDS shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs.

ARTICLE V - LAWS AND ORDINANCES: This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the
State of Arizona. The FRIENDS shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and
permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the FRIENDS. The FRIENDS shall comply
with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.5.c. 12101-
12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act.

ARTICLE VI- ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY: Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the FRIENDS certifies that
it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance with the
Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List.

ARTICLE VII - CANCELLATION: This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.5. § 38-
511. If the Agreement is terminated, the county shall be liable only for payment for services rendered by
the County before the effective date of termination.

Agreement # 6000.600.PAY Page 2



ARTICLEVIII - TERM: The term of this agreement shall commence July 1, 2011 and shall remain in
effect through June 30, 2012 unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.

ARTICLE IX - PAYMENT: The Scope of Services as outlined above will be performed with a not-to-
exceed budget of $11,700.00.

The District will distribute these funds in two equal payments, one half upon acceptance of this agreement
by all parties, and the second one half to be disbursed between November 2011, and March 2012, upon
receipt by the District of a progress report submitted by The Friends that verifies the outreach and
advocacy activities and work performed. It will further be the responsibility of The Friends to submit a final
completion report to the District within 30 days of completion of the project work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include
original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the
parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written.

In return for the performance of the terms of this Memorandum of Understanding Agreement by the
FRIENDS, the County agrees to pay the amount of not more than $11,700.00 including all applicable taxes
through the payment schedule as described above.

Memorandum Of Understanding AGREEMENT NO. GOOO.GOO.PAY

GILA COUNTY: FRIENDS:

LIBRARY FRIENDS OF PAYSON

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman,
Gila County Library District Board of Directors

FRIENDS Signature

ATTEST: Print Name

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney
for Daisy Flores, County Attorney

Agreement # 6000.600.PAY Page 3



Tommie C. Martin, District I
P.O. Box 2297 Payson, AZ. 85547
(928) 474-2029

Michael A. Pastor, District II
1400 E. Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753

Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext.87G1

Joseph T. Heatherly, Finance Director
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext. 8743

Shirley L. Dawson, District III

1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8511

GILA COUNTY
FAX(928) 425-0319

TIY: 7-1-1

www.gilacountyaz.gov

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AGREEMENT # 6000.600.TBA

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT EARLY LITERACYADVOCACY AND OUTREACH GRANT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 6 day of September, 2011, by and between the Gila
County Library District, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the District,
and the Tonto Basin Public Library Board of Directors, of the Community of Tonto Basin, County of Gila,
State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the LIBRARY.

WITNESSETH: That the LIBRARY, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid by the District, in
the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other covenants and agreements herein
contained, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as follows:

ARTICLE I - SCOPEOF SERVICES:
The Tonto Basin Public Library will provide advocacy-outreach services in the Tonto Basin and

Roosevelt communities to advocate the importance of early literacy, provide training to parents/caregivers
of children from birth to five years of age, not currently enrolled in the early literacy book program, and
enroll children in the local area, in order to reach our District wide goal of enrolling 1,800 children. These
local outreach advocates will be required to attend a mandatory planning, brainstorming and training
session provided by the District to ensure that everyone is adequately trained and to expand ideas for
reaching parents and children.

ARTICLE II -EARLY TERMINATION: Contract shall terminate thirty (30) days after written notice is
received by either party to the other. Upon receipt of the notice, work in progress will be completed and
any summaries and/or status reports shall be prepared and submitted, all within thirty (30) days. The
County's financial obligation shall cover only the work performed up to the notice to terminate plus thirty
(30) days, and not work completed thereafter.

ARTICLE III - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE: The LIBRARY shall indemnify, defend, save and hold
harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as
"Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses
(including court costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation)
(hereinafter referred to as "Claims") for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage
to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of the LIBRARY or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, and employees.
This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers' Compensation
Law or arising out of the failure of the LIBRARY to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute,
ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee



shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the
Indemnitee, be indemnified by the LIBRARY from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that The
LIBRARY will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this
indemnification is applicable. In consideration of the award of this contract, The LIBRARY agrees to waive
all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising
from the work performed by the LIBRARY for the County.

ARTICLE IV - LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE: The LIBRARY hereby warrants

that it will at all times during the term of this Agreement comply with all federal immigration laws

applicable to The LIBRARY's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A)

(together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). The LIBRARY shall further ensure that each

subcontractor who performs any work for the LIBRARY under this contract likewise complies with the State

and Federal Immigration Laws. County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of

The LIBRARY and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with the State and Federal

Immigration Laws.

Any breach of The LIBRARY's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this
Agreement subjecting The LIBRARY to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Agreement. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result,
The LIBRARY shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to
The LIBRARY approval if MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

LIBRARY shall advise each subcontractor of the County's rights, and the subcontractor's obligations, under
this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:

"Subcontractors hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all
federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. §
23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to
insure that Subcontractors is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractors will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractors to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract." Any additional costs attributable
directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of The LIBRARY. In the
event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of The
LIBRARY's approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed
excusable delay for which The LIBRARY shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs.

ARTICLE V - LAWS AND ORDINANCES: This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the
State of Arizona. The LIBRARY shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and
permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the LIBRARY. The LIBRARY shall comply
with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.c. 12101-
12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act.

ARTICLE VI- ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY: Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the LIBRARY certifies that
it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance with the
Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List.

Agreement # 6000.600. TEA PageZ



ARTICLE VII - CANCELLATION: This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511. If the Agreement is terminated, the county shall be liable only for payment for services rendered by
the County before the effective date oftermination.

ARTICLE VIII - TERM: The term of this agreement shall commence July 1, 2011 and shall remain in
effect through June 30, 2012 unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.

ARTICLE IX - PAYMENT: The Scope of Services as outlined above will be performed with a not-to-
exceed budget of $ 2,500.00.

The District will distribute these funds in two equal payments, one half upon acceptance of this agreement
by all parties, and the second one half to be disbursed between November 2011, and March 2012, upon
receipt by the District of a progress report submitted by The LIBRARY that verifies the outreach and
advocacy activities and work performed. It will further be the responsibility of The LIBRARY to submit a
final completion report to the District within 30 days of completion of the project work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include
original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the
parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written.

In return for the performance of the Contract by the LIBRARY, the County agrees to pay the amount of not
more than $ 2,500.00 including all applicable taxes through the payment schedule as described above.

Memorandum Of Understanding AGREEMENT NO. 6000.600.TBA

GILA COUNTY: LIBRARY:

TONTO BASIN LIBRARY BOARD

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman,
Gila County Library District Board of Directors

LIBRARY Signature

ATTEST: Print Name

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney
for Daisy Flores, County Attorney

Agreement # 6000.600. TBA Page 3



Tommie C. Martin, District I
P.O. Box 2297 Payson, AZ. 85547
(928) 474-2029

Michael A. Pastor, District II
1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753

Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext.87G1

Joseph T. Heatherly, Finance Director
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext. 8743

Shirley l. Dawson, District III
1400 E.Ash St. Globe, AZ. 85501
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8511

GilA COUNTY
www.gilacountyaz.gov

FAX(928) 425-0319
TTY: 7-1-1

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AGREEMENT # 6000.600.YNG

GILA COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT EARLY LITERACYADVOCACY AND OUTREACH GRANT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 6 day of September, 2011, by and between the Gila
County Library District, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the District,
and the Pleasant Valley Community Library Board of Directors, of the Community of Young, County of Gila,
State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the LIBRARY.

WITNESSETH: That the LIBRARY, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid by the District, in
the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other covenants and agreements herein
contained, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as follows:

ARTICLE I - SCOPEOF SERVICES:
The Young Public Library will provide advocacy-outreach services in the Young community to

advocate the importance of early literacy, provide training to parents/caregivers of children from birth to
five years of age, not currently enrolled in the early literacy book program, and enroll children in the local
area, in order to reach our District wide goal of enrolling 1,800 children. These local outreach advocates
will be required to attend a mandatory planning, brainstorming and training session provided by the District
to ensure that everyone is adequately trained and to expand ideas for reaching parents and children.

ARTICLE II -EARLY TERMINATION: Contract shall terminate thirty (30) days after written notice is
received by either party to the other. Upon receipt of the notice, work in progress will be completed and
any summaries and/or status reports shall be prepared and submitted, all within thirty (30) days. The
County's financial obligation shall cover only the work performed up to the notice to terminate plus thirty
(30) days, and not work completed thereafter.

ARTICLE III - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE: The LIBRARY shall indemnify, defend, save and hold
harmless the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as
"Indemnitee") from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses
(including court costs, attorneys' fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation)
(hereinafter referred to as "Claims") for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage
to tangible or intangible property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or
willful acts or omissions of the LIBRARY or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, and employees.
This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers' Compensation
Law or arising out of the failure of the LIBRARY to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute,
ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee
shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the



Indemnitee, be indemnified by the LIBRARY from and against any and all claims. It is agreed that The
LIBRARY will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this
indemnification is applicable. In consideration of the award of this contract, The LIBRARY agrees to waive
all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising
from the work performed by the LIBRARY for the County.

ARTICLE IV - LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE: The LIBRARY hereby warrants

that it will at all times during the term of this Agreement comply with all federal immigration laws

applicable to The LIBRARY's employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A)

(together the "State and Federal Immigration Laws"). The LIBRARY shall further ensure that each

subcontractor who performs any work for the LIBRARY under this contract likewise complies with the State

and Federal Immigration Laws. County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of

The LIBRARY and any subcontractor in order to verify such party's compliance with the State and Federal

Immigration Laws.

Any breach of The LIBRARY's or any subcontractor's warranty of compliance with the State and Federal
Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this
Agreement subjecting The LIBRARY to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this
Agreement. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result,
The LIBRARY shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services
that would have been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to
The LIBRARY approval if MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project
completion.

LIBRARY shall advise each subcontractor of the County's rights, and the subcontractor's obligations, under
this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form:

"Subcontractors hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all
federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor's employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. §
23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor's books and records to
insure that Subcontractors is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by
Subcontractors will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractors to
penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this contract." Any additional costs attributable
directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the responsibility of The LIBRARY. In the
event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of The
LIBRARY's approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed
excusable delay for which The LIBRARY shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs.

ARTICLE V - LAWS AND ORDINANCES: This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the
State of Arizona. The LIBRARY shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and
permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the LIBRARY. The LIBRARY shall comply
with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.c. 12101-
12213) and applicable federal regulations under the Act.

ARTICLE VI - ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY: Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the LIBRARY certifies that
it does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance with the
Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List.

ARTICLE VII - CANCELLATION: This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
511. If the Agreement is terminated, the county shall be liable only for payment for services rendered by
the County before the effective date of termination.

Agreement # 6000.600. YNG Page 2



ARTICLE VIII - TERM: The term of this agreement shall commence July 1, 2011 and shall remain in
effect through June 3D, 2012 unless terminated, canceled or extended as otherwise provided herein.

ARTICLE IX - PAYMENT: The Scope of Services as outlined above will be performed with a not-to-
exceed budget of $ 1,800.00.

The District will distribute these funds in two equal payments, one half upon acceptance of this agreement
by all parties, and the second one half to be disbursed between November 2011, and March 2012, upon
receipt by the District of a progress report submitted by The LIBRARY that verifies the outreach and
advocacy activities and work performed. It will further be the responsibility of The LIBRARY to submit a
final completion report to the District within 30 days of completion of the project work.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include
original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the
parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written.

In return for the performance of the Contract by the LIBRARY, the County agrees to pay the amount of not
more than $ 1,800.00 including all applicable taxes through the payment schedule as described above.

Memorandum Of Understanding AGREEMENT NO. 6000.600.YNG

GILA COUNTY: LIBRARY:

PLEASANT VALLEY COMMUNITY LIBRARY BOARD

Michael A. Pastor, Chairman,
Gila County library District Board of Directors

LIBRARY Signature

ATIEST: Print Name

Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney
for Daisy Flores, County Attorney

Agreement # 6000.600. YNG Page 3



   

ARF-749     Regular Agenda Item      4- D             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Chairman Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager
Department: County Manager
Presenter's Name: Chairman

Mike Pastor 

Information
Request/Subject
Adopt Proclamation 11-08, declaring week of September 19, 2011, as "Employer
Support of the Guard and Reserve Week" in Gila County.

Background Information
In these days of reduced active duty forces, the National Guard and Reserves play an
important part in keeping our military strong.  The men and women of the National
Guard and Reserve have demonstrated the highest form of citizenship by serving
voluntarily in an honorable and vital profession and are trained to respond to their
community and their country in time of need.

Evaluation
The Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA)
is the Federal law that establishes rights and responsibilities for members of the
National Guard and Reserve, and their civilian employers. USERRA affects
employment, reemployment, and retention in employment, when employees serve or
have served in the uniformed services.

These brave men and women perform critical roles such as homeland defense and
continue to serve around the world to ensure our freedom. All of this would not be
possible without the support from private, non-profit and government employers
throughout Gila County.

Conclusion
Gila County recognizes that the National Guard and Reserve are essential to the
strength of our nation and the well-being of our communities.  If these volunteer
forces are to continue to serve our nation, increased public understanding is required
of the essential role of the Guard and Reserve in preserving our national security. 

Recommendation
Therefore, Gila County joins other employers in declaring the week of September 19,
2011, as "Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve Week" in Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation 11-08, a proclamation of the



Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation 11-08, a proclamation of the
Board of Supervisors of Gila County, Arizona to declare the week of September 19,
2011, as "Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve Week" in Gila County.
( Chairman Mike Pastor)

Attachments
Proclamation No. 11-08
Strong National Defense







   

ARF-780     Regular Agenda Item      4- E             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan,
CAP/Housing Services
Manager

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Community Services
Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Date of signature by both parties
- 3/31/2012

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name: Malissa Buzan

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. C037-09-02-ARRA Weatherization Low-Income Assistance
Contractual Agreement

Background Information
This contract has been in existence since May 2009.  Original Contract Commerce C037-09-02 was
signed by Chairman Shirley L. Dawson on May 19, 2009.  Amendment No. 1 was signed by Chairman
Dawson on March 23, 2010.  Amendment No. 2 was signed by Chairman Michael A. Pastor on August
16, 2010.  Amendment No. 3 was signed by Chairman Pastor on June 28, 2011. There is no Amendment
No. 4 to this contract.  The Governor's Office of Energy Policy (this is the new name for
the Department of Commerce Energy Office) has signed Amendment #5 first.

Evaluation
The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 was enacted to preserve and create jobs and
promote economic recovery, assist those most impacted by the recession, provide investments needed to
increase economic efficiency by spurring technological advances in science and health, invest in
transportation, environmental protection, and other infrastructure that will provide long-term economic
benefits, and stabilize state and local government budgets in order to minimize and avoid reductions in
essential services and counterproductive state and local tax increases.  Recipients shall use grant funds
in a manner that maximizes job creation and economic benefit.

Eligibility requirements are as follows: income must be at or below 200% of the Federal Poverty Income
Guidelines, and the qualified individual must reside in Gila County, excluding Indian Reservations. 
Priority will be given to identifying and providing weatherization assistance to the following eligible
households: elderly persons, persons with disabilities, families with children, and high residential
energy users and households with a high energy burden.

Amendment No. 5 will provide the following line item revisions as noted in Exhibit A; Administrative
Costs from $101,153.00 to $118,548.00, an increase of $17,395; and Program Operations from
$1,488,255.98 to $1,770,860.98, an increase of $282,605. Total budget amount will go from
$1,744,457 to $2,044,457, an increase of $300,000.  This Amendment will also amend the following
sections; special terms and conditions and scope of work as amended in Amendment No. 1.

Conclusion
By approving Amendment No. 5, the Gila County Weatherization Program will continue to provide
weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Recommendation



The Gila County Community Action/Housing Manager recommends the Board of Supervisors' approval
of Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. C037-09-02.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. C037-09-02 - American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement between
the State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and Gila County (Division of Community
Services, Weatherization Assistance Program), to increase the contract funding from $1,744,457 to
$2,044,457, an increase of $300,000, for the continued provision of weatherization services to eligible
citizens residing in Gila County for the period effective upon signatures by both parties through March
31, 2012.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Amendment No. 5 to Contract C037-09-02 Governor's Office of Energy Policy
Amendment No. 1 to Contract C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office 
Amendment No. 2 to Contract C037-09-02 Dept. of Energy Office 
Amendment No. 3 to C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office
Contract No. C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office



































































































































































   

ARF-779     Regular Agenda Item      4- F             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public
Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9-6-2011 to 1-5-2012 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Bid No. 061311-1 for MC-800TR Chip Seal Oil

Background Information
The 0consolidated Roads Department uses the MC-800TR chip seal oil as a road repair and
maintenance product on various roads in Gila County.

Evaluation
Bid 061311-1 for MC-800TR chip seal oil was advertised on July 27 and August 3, 2011, and
proposals were received on August 12, 2011.  Award of this bid would allow a supplier to
continue to provide the MC-800TR chip seal oil product to Gila County for road repairs and
maintenance.

Conclusion
It is the goal of the Public Works Department to award the contract for MC-800TR chip seal oil
to the lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder.

Recommendation
After extensive review of submitted proposals, the Public Works Director recommends that the
Board of Supervisors approve the award of Invitation for Bids No. 061311-1 for MC-800TR
chip seal oil to Wright Asphalt Products Company for a term of 4 months from September 6,
2011, to January 5, 2012, with 2 one-year renewal options.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids No.
061311-1 for the purchase of MC800-TR chip seal oil for Gila County road maintenance and
repair; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder, and authorize the Chairman's
signature on the award contract for the winning bidder.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Bid Tabulation Form
Bid Tracking Form
Contract No. 061311-1



Letter of Delivery Understanding





































































From: Coons, Shannon
To: Bejarano, Valrie
Subject: Fw: Solicitation Number 061311-1 MC-800TR Chip Seal OIl
Date: Monday, August 22, 2011 8:11:49 AM

Valrie
This is Joey's explanation of delay for spread chgs. I don't know when I will be in. Is it ready to go on
agenda or do I need to forward it on AQ?
Shan C

Shannon Coons 
Sent from Mobile Device
 
From: Stratton, Steve 
Sent: Monday, August 22, 2011 07:58 AM
To: Coons, Shannon 
Subject: RE: Solicitation Number 061311-1 MC-800TR Chip Seal OIl 
 
yes
 

From: Coons, Shannon 
Sent: Monday, August 22, 2011 7:49 AM
To: Stratton, Steve
Subject: Fw: Solicitation Number 061311-1 MC-800TR Chip Seal OIl
 
Steve, Is this okay? Do you want Valrie to continue with Agenda item?
Shan C 
Shannon Coons 
Sent from Mobile Device
 
From: Joey Vincent [mailto:joeyvincent@wrightasphalt.com] 
Sent: Monday, August 22, 2011 07:23 AM
To: Coons, Shannon; Stratton, Steve 
Subject: Solicitation Number 061311-1 MC-800TR Chip Seal OIl 
 
Steve,
 
Per our conversation in regards to the Solicitation Number 061311-1 MC-800TR Chip Seal Oil,
Wright Asphalt Products Company will only bill you on the Delivered in Place with Boot Truck per
ton of MC-800TR, unless the county is responsible for more than three hours of spreader stand-by
delays. All other line items in the bid packet are still in effect.
 
Joey Vincent
Wright Asphalt Products Co.
joeyvincent@wrightasphalt.com
(830)481-0491
 

mailto:/O=GILA COUNTY/OU=GLO_ENG_EXCH/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SCOONS
mailto:vbejarano@co.gila.az.us
mailto:joeyvincent@wrightasphalt.com


   

ARF-792     Regular Agenda Item      4- G             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Shannon Coons,
Fiscal Services
Manager

Submitted By:
Shannon Coons, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration
Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton

Information
Request/Subject
U.S.D.A. Tonto National Forest Special Use Permit Authorization ID# TON846 for Gila County
Emergency Management and Public Works

Background Information
When flooding is present in the Tonto Creek the approximately 1,000 residents on the east
side of that creek are stranded. Gila County would like to provide emergency supplies and
have equipment on that side of the creek to assist the residents; however, there is a lack of a
storage and staging area. The Tonto Basin Ranger District has designated an area for Gila
County to use 1.62 acres on the east side of Tonto Creek. The U.S.D.A. Forest Service is
offering Gila County a Special Use Permit for this purpose.

Evaluation
The Gila County Division of Health & Emergency Services inquired in January 2011, to the
Tonto Basin Ranger District for assistance in acquiring a work site on the east side of Tonto
Creek.  An Operating Plan and a Transportation and Utility Systems application were made
with the Tonto National Forest, Tonto Basin Ranger District in July 2011. By August 2011,
Emergency Management had received the Special Use Permit ready for Gila County's signature.

Conclusion
Under the Federal Land Policy and Management Act as Amended October 21, 1976, and 36
DFR Part 251, Subpart B, this Special Use Permit may be signed by authorized parties of both
agencies. The term of this Permit is from date of signature through December 31, 2021. The
fee has been waived and a plan for development, layout, construction, or alteration of
improvements in the permit area must be prepared by a professional engineer and approved
by the authorized federal officer.

Recommendation
Public Works Administration and Emergency Management recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve the U.S.D.A. Forest Service Special Use Permit, Authorization
ID: TON846, Use Code: 521 for a storage and staging area on the east side of Tonto Creek.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve U.S.D.A. Forest Service Special Use Permit,
Authorization ID: TON846, Use Code: 521 for a storage and staging area on the east side of
Tonto Creek.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Special Use Permit 



Operating Plan





























   

ARF-811     Regular Agenda Item      4- H             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel,
Jr.

Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager

Department: County Manager

Fiscal Year: 2011 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

August 29, 2011 thru
October 31, 2011

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Don McDaniel

Information
Request/Subject
Andres Associates Public Relations and Media Letter of Agreement for Apache Jii

Background Information
Apache Jii is an annual celebration of Apache culture held on Broad Street in
downtown Globe, Arizona.  Apache people come to Globe from the neighboring San
Carlos Apache Nation, the White Mountain Apache Nation and other Apache
communities to share their heritage, food, dance and arts with the world.  This year's
Apache Jii, set for October 15th marks the 28th year that the festival has lined the
streets of Globe.  Apache Jii is a perfect opportunity to attract tourist dollars to
downtown Globe.

To increase attendance at this Year's Apache Jii, and to bring new tourists and their
money to downtown Globe, the Globe-Miami community must inform their Arizona
neighbors about this event. Globe must place its message in front of potential visitors
through local daily and weekly newspapers, tourism and senior publications, and
social media sites such as Facebook and Linked-in. The more people outside Copper
Country who hear about Apache Jii, the more economic impact the event will have on
the Globe-Miami-San Carlos communities.

Andres Associates will provide public relations and social media services to the Board
with the goal of publicizing (in advance) the Apache Jii event to increase statewide
awareness and attendance. Services will be billed at a project rate of $3,000.00, plus
approved miscellaneous expenses. Payment for services will be paid in two
increments: ½ the project fee ($1,500.00) is due at the time of signing, and ½ the
project fee ($1,500.00) due on October 10, 2011. At any time during the contract
period, this agreement may be extended or modified by the mutual consent of both
parties.

Evaluation
The attached proposal shows how Andres Associates Public Relations and Media will



The attached proposal shows how Andres Associates Public Relations and Media will
provide public relations and social media services to promote the annual Apache Jii
event in an efficient and cost-effective manner.

Conclusion
It is Andres Associates belief that successful promotion of this year's Apache Jii will
give business leaders an understanding of how public relations can improve the
community's bottom line.

Recommendation
The recommendation of staff is to approve the Andres Associates Public Relations and
Media Letter of Agreement for Apache Jii Day.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Andres Associates Public Relations and
Media Letter of Agreement to provide public relations and social media services to the
Gila County Board of Supervisors from August 29, 2011, through October 31,
2011, for Apache Jii Day. (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Andres Associates Apache Jii Proposal
Andres Associates Letter of Agreement



























   

ARF-786     Regular Agenda Item      4- I             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Mike Pastor Submitted By: Pamela Fisher, Board of
Supervisors-District 1

Department: Board of Supervisors-District 1
Presenter's Name: Mike Pastor

Information
Request/Subject
Election of a Chairman and Vice Chairman for the Board of Supervisors

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors has chosen to rotate the chairmanship for
16-month terms of office.

Evaluation
This will be the rotation for Supervisor Tommie Martin

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to elect a Chairman and Vice-Chairman for the Board
of Supervisors (BOS), which will become effective after the BOS meeting on September
6, 2011.  (Chairman Mike Pastor)



   

ARF-781     Regular Agenda Item      4- J             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Bryan
Chambers,
Chief Deputy
County Attorney

Submitted By:

Bryan Chambers, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Fiscal Year: Tax years 2011 and 2012 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

Tax years 2011 and 2012 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Bryan Chambers

Information
Request/Subject
Proposed Settlement in Rim Golf Club v. Gila County, TX2011-000108

Background Information
The Rim Golf Club filed a tax appeal affecting property valuations for tax years 2011
and 2012.  A representative of the Rim Golf Club and the County Assessor’s Office
met to discuss the dispute and came up with the attached proposed Judgment which
would resolve the lawsuit.

Evaluation
The proposed Judgment would resolve the lawsuit.

Conclusion
Approving the proposed Judgment would resolve the lawsuit.  Rejecting the proposed
Judgment would lead to a trial in Arizona Tax Court to resolve the lawsuit.

Recommendation
It is up to the Board’s discretion to either accept or reject the proposed judgment. The
Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) to
discuss or consult with its attorney for legal advice regarding this proposed judgment.
The Board may also vote to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(4) to discuss, consult, or instruct with its attorney regarding settlement
discussions to resolve this litigation.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a proposed Judgment to settle tax appeal



Information/Discussion/Action to approve a proposed Judgment to settle tax appeal
in Rim Golf Club v. Gila County, TX2011-000108. The Board may vote to go into
executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) to discuss or consult with its
attorney for legal advice regarding this proposed judgment. The Board may also vote
to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to discuss, consult,
or instruct with its attorney regarding settlement discussions to resolve this litigation. 
(Bryan Chambers)

Attachments
Proposed Judgment, Rim Golf Club, TX2011-000108



 

 
3852950v1(61091.2) 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 

 

 

L. Edward Humphrey - 027979 
Eric D. Gere - 023226 

JENNINGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C. 
A Professional Limited Liability Company 

One East Washington Street 
Suite 1900 

Phoenix, Arizona  85004-2554 
Telephone: (602) 262-5911 
MinuteEntries@jsslaw.com 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA 

IN THE ARIZONA TAX COURT 
 

THE RIM GOLF CLUB,  

 Plaintiffs, 

vs. 

GILA COUNTY, a political subdivision of 
the State of Arizona, 

 Defendant. 

No. TX2011-000108 

JUDGMENT 
 
 

(The Hon. Dean M. Fink) 

 

 The parties having stipulated to the entry of Judgment and good cause appearing: 

 IT IS ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED, 

1. That the full cash value of Gila County tax parcel Number 302-43-801D 

shall be changed to $3,745,285 for the 2011 tax year. 

2. That the full cash value of Gila County tax parcel Number 302-43-801D 

shall be changed to $3,745,285 for the 2012 tax year. 

3. That the full cash value of Gila County tax parcel Number 302-43-802A 

shall be changed to $143,159 for the 2011 tax year. 

4. That the full cash value of Gila County tax parcel Number 302-43-802A 

shall be changed to $143,159 for the 2012 tax year. 

5. That the full cash value of Gila County tax parcel Number 302-43-803A 

shall be changed to $240,258 for the 2011 tax year. 



 

 

 

 2 
3852950v1(61091.2) 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 

 

 

6. That the full cash value of Gila County tax parcel Number 302-43-803A 

shall be changed to $240,258 for the 2012 tax year. 

7. That the full cash value of Gila County tax parcel Number 302-43-815 shall 

remain unchanged for the 2011 and the 2012 tax year. 

8. That the full cash value of Gila County tax parcel Number 302-43-816 shall 

be changed to $586,390 for the 2011 tax year. 

9. That the full cash value of Gila County tax parcel Number 302-43-816 shall 

be changed to $586,390 for the 2012 tax year. 

10. That the limited property value of said parcel(s) for said years shall be 

derived in accordance with the provisions of A.R.S. §42-13301 to 42-13304, as applicable. 

11. That the taxes due and payable on the above-referenced parcel for the 2011 

and 2012 tax year shall be calculated based on the full cash and limited property values 

stated above.  Plaintiff is responsible for timely payment of taxes for the subject tax year 

regardless of whether a property tax statement is issued which is consistent with this 

judgment. 

12. That the parties shall bear their own costs and attorney’s fees. 

13. The judgment is a product of settlement between the parties and shall not be 

used by either party for any other purpose except as a determination of values for the tax 

year indicated herein.  

DONE IN OPEN COURT  this ______ day of _________________, 2011. 

       

          _____________________________________ 
       Hon. Dean M. Fink      
 



 

 

 

 3 
3852950v1(61091.2) 

 

 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUBSTANCE BY: 
 
GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
Attorneys for Defendant Gila County 
 
JENNINGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C. 
 

_____________________________________ 
Eric D. Gere 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
         
 

Original of the foregoing filed with the  
Clerk of the Court this ____, day of  
July, 2011 to: 
 
The Honorable Dean Fink 
Maricopa County Tax Court 
East Court Building-412  
Phoenix, AZ 85003-2243 

Original of the foregoing MAILED 
this  ___ day of August, 2011, to: 
 
Bryan B. Chambers 
Gila County Attorney’s Office 
1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, AZ 85501 
____________________________ 



   

ARF-823     Regular Agenda Item      4- K             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Larry
Huffer,
Chief
Appraiser

Submitted By:

Larry Huffer, Assessor's Office

Department: Assessor's Office
Presenter's Name: Bryan

Chambers

Information
Request/Subject
Two claims by certain landowners of lots within Strawberry Creek Foothills.

Background Information
Diana, R. Galassini, Gregory J. Larson, and Thomas Stedronsky, owners of lots within
Strawberry Creek Foothills,(in an area also known as Strawberry Ridge Estates) Plat
572 and 572A, filed Notices of Claim with the Gila County Assessor arguing that
because the sub-divider is in violation of Gila County Subdivision Regulations in that
the street (Tomahawk Trail) has not been completed in accordance with Gila County
Street Standards as per Fee # 2011-007523 recorded on 07/06/2011 in Gila County
Records and has resulted in their lots previously being overvalued by the Gila County
Assessor.

Additionally, Diana, R. Galassini, Gregory J. Larson, and David Frederickson, owners
of lots within Strawberry Creek Foothills, filed another Notice of Claims against Gila
County arguing that the County is liable to them for the sub-divider's failure to
complete Tomahawk Trail in accordance with Gila County Street Standards. The
claimants are asking for either $250,000.00 in damages or for the County to repair
the road.
 

Evaluation
It would make sense for the Board of Supervisors to go into executive session to
receive legal advice on these related claims and to be able to instruct its legal counsel
on how to proceed in settlement negotiations and discussions.

Conclusion
Because these claims are related, the Board could benefit by the opportunity to
receive legal advice regarding them in an executive session and to be able to instruct
its legal counsel on how to proceed in settlement negotiations and discussions.

Recommendation
The County Attorney’s Office would advise the Board of Supervisors to go into



The County Attorney’s Office would advise the Board of Supervisors to go into
executive session to receive legal advice on these related claims and to be able to
instruct its legal counsel on how to proceed in settlement negotiations and
discussions.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider various claims by owners of lots within
Strawberry Creek Foothills. The Board may vote to go into executive session pursuant
to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) to discuss or consult with its attorney for legal advice
regarding the/various claims. The Board may also vote to go into executive session
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) to discuss, consult, or instruct with its attorney
regarding settlement(s) discussions to resolve the claims.  (Bryan Chambers)



   

ARF-826     Regular Agenda Item      4- L             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Linda
Eastlick

Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections Department

Department: Elections Department
Presenter's Name: Linda

Eastlick

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Supervisorial and Community College redistricting.

Background Information
The Gila County Redistricting Advisory Committee submitted its ideas to the Board of
Supervisors on August 15, 2011.  On August 23, the Board discussed all ideas
submitted by staff, consultants, the committee, and the public during a work
session.  The Board requested the consultants take the three supervisory and three
college district maps and ensure there were no retrogression issues.  These maps are
the subject of the September 6 meeting.

Evaluation
The Board must determine at its September 6 meeting which Supervisorial and
College District mapping alternatives will be taken out for a second round of
public meetings to be held during the period September 6 - 16.  Public comments can
be made at the meetings, on the Gila County webiste, or via letter to the Elections
Department. A copy of the Public Notice for these meetings is attached.

Conclusion
The Board has the ultimate responsibiity and authority to approve redistricting plans
for the County.  Prior to making final decisions, the Board of Supervisors can take
this opportunity to consider all of the information provided by the consultants, hear
input from the staff and agree on those alternatives to be taken out for public
comment.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends the Board consider options and approve those
mapping alternatives they wish to be presented to the public during the second round
of public meetings.

Suggested Motion
Information/Action/Discussion to approve Supervisorial and College District
redistricting mapping alternatives to be presented to the public during a second round
of public meetings to be held September 6-16, 2011.  The Board may also discuss
alternative Arizona State redistricting plans.  (Linda Eastlick)



Attachments
Public Notice
Supervisory Draft Plan A Maps
Supervisory Draft Plan A Report
Supervisory Draft Plan B Maps
Supervisory Draft Plan B Report
Supervisory Draft Plan C Maps
Supervisory Draft Plan C Report
Supervisory Tonto Plan Maps and Report
College Draft Plan 1 Maps
College Draft Plan 1 Report
College Draft Plan 2 Maps
College Draft Plan 2 Report
College Draft Plan 3 Maps
College Draft Plan 3 Report



 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

Public Notice is Hereby Given That the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
Will Hold a Second Round of Public Hearings for the Purpose of Receiving Public 

Review and Comment on Proposed Alternative Plans for Redistricting of the 
Board of Supervisor Districts and Proposed Alternative Plans for Redistricting of 

the Community College Districts 
 
Second Round Meetings are open to the public and are scheduled as follows:: 
 

Date Time Location 

9/6/11 6:00 PM Gila County Courthouse, Globe, AZ 

9/7/11 9:00 AM White Mountain Apache Tribal Council, 
Whiteriver, AZ 

9/7/11 6:00 PM Tonto Basin School, Tonto Basin, AZ 

9/8/11 6:00 PM Best Western Payson Inn, Payson, AZ 

9/12/11 5:30 PM Hayden Town Hall, Hayden, AZ 

 
The proposed alternative maps will be available for viewing at these public meetings 
and, beginning September 6, 2011, they will be available on the Gila County Website 
www.gilacountyaz.gov (click on the orange and yellow Gila County Redistricting banner 
and follow the links).   
 
The public is encouraged to attend the above meetings and make comments on the 
Redistricting mapping alternatives. Comments may be made (1) in person at the 
meetings; (2) via the Gila County Website www.gilacountyaz.gov  (click on the orange 
and yellow Gila County Redistricting banner and follow the links  to the “Internet Public 
Comment Form” ; (3) by sending a letter to the Gila County Department of Elections, 
5515 S Apache Ave, Suite 900, Globe, AZ  85501.  Questions can be directed to the 
Gila County Department of Elections at 928.402.8709. 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors will discuss public comments received by 
September 16, 2011 at a Work Session to be held on September 20, 2011 at 10:00 am.  
The Board will adopt a final Supervisorial District plan and a final Community College 
District plan at the regular Board meeting to be held on Monday, October 3, 2011 at 
10:00 am.  These meetings are open to the public and will be held in the Board of 
Supervisors Hearing Room in the Gila County Courthouse, Globe, AZ.  ITV will be 
available from the Gila County Administration Building in Payson, AZ. 
 
 

 

 



                                                                               AVISO PÚBLICO 

Se notifica al público por este medio que la Junta de Supervisores del Condado de Gila 

realizará una segunda ronda de reuniones públicas con el propósito de estudiar y 

discutir los planes alternativos propuestos para la redistribución de distritos de la Junta 

de Supervisores y los planes alternativos propuestos para la redistribución de distritos 

del Colegio Comunitario del Condado.Las reuniones de esta segunda ronda están abiertas 

al público y se llevarán a cabo de la manera siguiente: 

Fecha Hora Lugar 

9/6/11 6:00 PM Tribunal del Condado de Gila, Globe, AZ 

9/7/11 9:00 AM Consejo Tribal Apache de White Mountain , 
White River, AZ 

9/7/11 6:00 PM Escuela de Tonto Basin,  
Tonto Basin, AZ 

9/8/11 6:00 PM Best Western Payson Inn, Payson, AZ 

9/12/11 5:30 PM Municipalidad de Hayden, Hayden, AZ 

 
Las alternativas de mapas propuestos estarán a la disposición del público durante esas 

reuniones y, a partir del 6 de septiembre de 2011, estarán disponibles en la página de la red el 

Condado de Gila en www.gilacountyaz.gov  (pulse en el aviso anaranjado y amarillo titulado 

“Gila County Redistricting” y siga los enlaces). 

Se invita al público a asistir a las reuniones arriba mencionadas y a expresar sus comentarios 
sobre las alternativas de mapas de la redistribución de distritos.  Los comentarios puede  ser 
expresados (1) en persona, durante las reuniones; (2) A través de la página de la red del 
Condado de Gila www.gilacountyaz.gov (pulse en el aviso anaranjado y amarillo que dice “Gila 
County Redistricting” y siga los enlaces para llegar a “Internet Public Comment Form”; (3) 
enviando una carta al Departamento Electoral del Condado de Gila, 5515 S Apache Ave, Suite 
900, Globe, AZ  85501; (4) comunicándose con un miembro de la Junta de Supervisores.  Si 
tiene preguntas llame al número telefónico 928.402.8709 del Departamento Electoral del 
Condado de Gila. 
 
La Junta de Supervisores del Condado de Gila tendrá una sesión de trabajo a las 10:00 a.m. el 
día 20 de septiembre de 2011 para discutir los comentarios recibidos del público hasta 16 de 
septiembre de 2011. La Junta decidirá la versión final del mapa de Distrito de Supervisores y la 
versión final del mapa del Distrito del Colegio Comunitario durante la reunión ordinaria de la 
Junta a las 10:00 am del día lunes 3 de octubre de 2011. Ambas reuniones estarán abiertas al 
público y se llevarán a cabo en la Sala de Audiencias de la Junta de Supervisores en el 
Tribunal del Condado de Gila, en Globe, Arizona.  La sesión se transmitirá por televisión 
interactiva en la sala de conferencias del edificio administrativo del Condado de Gila en 
Payson, Arizona.   
 

 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/














































Total, All
Number: District 1 District 2 District 3 Districts
Hispanic, of any race 1,467 6,226 1,895 9,588
Non-Hispanic White 16,025 10,424 8,849 35,298
Non-Hispanic Black 87 96 65 248
Non-Hispanic American Indian 357 629 6,989 7,975
Non-Hispanic Asian 114 127 80 321
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 22 11 6 39
Non-Hispanic other race 20 25 21 66
Non-Hispanic two or more races 13 24 25 62
     Total Population 18,105 17,562 17,930 53,597

Percent:
Hispanic, of any race 8.10% 35.45% 10.57% 17.89%
Non-Hispanic White 88.51% 59.36% 49.35% 65.86%
Non-Hispanic Black 0.48% 0.55% 0.36% 0.46%
Non-Hispanic American Indian 1.97% 3.58% 38.98% 14.88%
Non-Hispanic Asian 0.63% 0.72% 0.45% 0.60%
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 0.12% 0.06% 0.03% 0.07%
Non-Hispanic other race 0.11% 0.14% 0.12% 0.12%
Non-Hispanic two or more races 0.07% 0.14% 0.14% 0.12%
     Total Percent 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Ideal Population 17,866 17,866 17,866 Total
Total Population 18,105 17,562 17,930 deviation:
Numeric deviation from Ideal Value 239 -304 64 543
Percent deviation from Ideal Value 1.34% -1.70% 0.36% 3.04%

Source:  Census 2010 Redistricting Data (Public Law 94-171) Summary file, Arizona
Tabulation:  Research Advisory Services, Inc., Phoenix AZ  (602) 230-9580

GILA COUNTY SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS

PLAN SUBMITTED BY: Tonto Apache Tribal Council, Plan TAT01
TOTAL POPULATION BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN



Total, All
Voting-Age Number: District 1 District 2 District 3 Districts
Hispanic, of any race 947 4,331 1,241 6,519
Non-Hispanic White 13,806 8,643 7,473 29,922
Non-Hispanic Black 47 69 55 171
Non-Hispanic American Indian 266 422 4,457 5,145
Non-Hispanic Asian 90 103 59 252
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 17 8 5 30
Non-Hispanic other race 9 18 17 44
Non-Hispanic two or more races 11 16 16 43
     Voting-Age Population 15,193 13,610 13,323 42,126

Voting-Age Percent:
Hispanic, of any race 6.23% 31.82% 9.31% 15.48%
Non-Hispanic White 90.87% 63.50% 56.09% 71.03%
Non-Hispanic Black 0.31% 0.51% 0.41% 0.41%
Non-Hispanic American Indian 1.75% 3.10% 33.45% 12.21%
Non-Hispanic Asian 0.59% 0.76% 0.44% 0.60%
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 0.11% 0.06% 0.04% 0.07%
Non-Hispanic other race 0.06% 0.13% 0.13% 0.10%
Non-Hispanic two or more races 0.07% 0.12% 0.12% 0.10%
     Voting-Age Percent 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Source:  Census 2010 Redistricting Data (Public Law 94-171) Summary file, Arizona
Tabulation:  Research Advisory Services, Inc., Phoenix AZ  (602) 230-9580

GILA COUNTY SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS

PLAN SUBMITTED BY: Tonto Apache Tribal Council, Plan TAT01
VOTING-AGE POPULATION BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN



Race and Origin Composition of Current and Proposed Gila County 
Supervisorial Districts

Plan submitted by: Tonto Apache Tribal Council, Plan TAT01

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

20000

Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed

Non-Hispanic White

Non-Hispanic Black

Non-Hispanic Indian

Non-Hisp. Asian/Hawaiian

Non-Hisp. Other/Multiracial

Hispanic

Source:  Census 2010
Redistricting Data (Public 
Law 94-171) Summary File, 
Arizona

"Ideal" District Size = 17,866

Persons

DISTRICT 1 DISTRICT 2 DISTRICT 3



GILA COUNTY SUPERVISORIAL DISTRICTS
PLAN SUBMITTED BY: Tonto Apache Tribal Council, Plan TAT01

Proposed
Current Plan Change

Population, District 1 18,105 18,105 0
Population, District 2 17,151 17,562 411
Population, District 3 18,341 17,930 -411

Population deviation, District 1 239 239
Population deviation, District 2 -715 -304
Population deviation, District 3 475 64

Percent deviation, District 1 1.34% 1.34%
Percent deviation, District 2 -4.00% -1.70%
Percent deviation, District 3 2.66% 0.36%

Total plan deviation, number 1,190 543
Total plan deviation, percent 6.66% 3.04%

Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 1 6.23% 6.23% 0.00%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 2 24.88% 31.82% 6.94%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 3 16.45% 9.31% -7.14%

Percent V-A Non-Hispanic Native American, District 1 1.75% 1.75% 0.00%
Percent V-A Non-Hispanic Native American, District 2 3.63% 3.10% -0.53%
Percent V-A Non-Hispanic Native American, District 3 32.77% 33.45% 0.68%

Percent V-A Non-Hispanic Black, District 1 0.31% 0.31% 0.00%
Percent V-A Non-Hispanic Black, District 2 0.46% 0.51% 0.05%
Percent V-A Non-Hispanic Black, District 3 0.46% 0.41% -0.05%

Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 1 9.13% 9.13% 0.00%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 2 30.16% 36.50% 6.34%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 3 50.28% 43.91% -6.37%

Consultant's Review Comments:
This plan reduces the total population deviation by more than half, bringing the total 
deviation to just over 3%.
The 6 percentage point increase in voting-age minority proportion in District 2 bolsters that
district's demonstrated ability to elect candidates favored by minority voters.  Under this 
plan, the voting-age Native American proportion in District 3 also rises, but further analysis
will be needed to determine whether District 3's minority populations will continue to be 
able to elect candidates of their choice.  This plan has a lot of potential; a good starting
point.









Total, All
Number: District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 Districts
Hispanic, of any race 915 834 2,576 4,176 1,087 9,588
Non-Hispanic White 9,611 9,600 7,963 5,824 2,300 35,298
Non-Hispanic Black 55 46 49 59 39 248
Non-Hispanic American Indian 247 179 389 455 6,705 7,975
Non-Hispanic Asian 66 71 82 83 19 321
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 13 14 10 2 0 39
Non-Hispanic other race 15 12 20 14 5 66
Non-Hispanic two or more races 8 11 13 14 16 62
     Total Population 10,930 10,767 11,102 10,627 10,171 53,597

Percent:
Hispanic, of any race 8.37% 7.75% 23.20% 39.30% 10.69% 17.89%
Non-Hispanic White 87.93% 89.16% 71.73% 54.80% 22.61% 65.86%
Non-Hispanic Black 0.50% 0.43% 0.44% 0.56% 0.38% 0.46%
Non-Hispanic American Indian 2.26% 1.66% 3.50% 4.28% 65.92% 14.88%
Non-Hispanic Asian 0.60% 0.66% 0.74% 0.78% 0.19% 0.60%
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 0.12% 0.13% 0.09% 0.02% 0.00% 0.07%
Non-Hispanic other race 0.14% 0.11% 0.18% 0.13% 0.05% 0.12%
Non-Hispanic two or more races 0.07% 0.10% 0.12% 0.13% 0.16% 0.12%
     Total Percent 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Ideal Population 10,719 10,719 10,719 10,719 10,719 Total
Total Population 10,930 10,767 11,102 10,627 10,171 deviation:
Numeric deviation from Ideal Value 211 48 383 -92 -548 931
Percent deviation from Ideal Value 1.96% 0.44% 3.57% -0.86% -5.12% 8.69%

Source:  Census 2010 Redistricting Data (Public Law 94-171) Summary file, Arizona
Tabulation:  Research Advisory Services, Inc., Phoenix AZ  (602) 230-9580

GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS
TOTAL POPULATION BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN

DRAFT PLAN 1



Total, All
Voting-Age Number: District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 Districts
Hispanic, of any race 564 554 1,753 2,908 740 6,519
Non-Hispanic White 8,254 8,276 6,739 4,702 1,951 29,922
Non-Hispanic Black 33 21 40 38 39 171
Non-Hispanic American Indian 183 138 261 315 4,248 5,145
Non-Hispanic Asian 52 55 66 65 14 252
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 8 13 8 1 0 30
Non-Hispanic other race 6 9 17 8 4 44
Non-Hispanic two or more races 6 9 8 9 11 43
     Voting-Age Population 9,106 9,075 8,892 8,046 7,007 42,126

Voting-Age Percent:
Hispanic, of any race 6.19% 6.10% 19.71% 36.14% 10.56% 15.48%
Non-Hispanic White 90.64% 91.20% 75.79% 58.44% 27.84% 71.03%
Non-Hispanic Black 0.36% 0.23% 0.45% 0.47% 0.56% 0.41%
Non-Hispanic American Indian 2.01% 1.52% 2.94% 3.91% 60.63% 12.21%
Non-Hispanic Asian 0.57% 0.61% 0.74% 0.81% 0.20% 0.60%
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 0.09% 0.14% 0.09% 0.01% 0.00% 0.07%
Non-Hispanic other race 0.07% 0.10% 0.19% 0.10% 0.06% 0.10%
Non-Hispanic two or more races 0.07% 0.10% 0.09% 0.11% 0.16% 0.10%
     Voting-Age Percent 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Source:  Census 2010 Redistricting Data (Public Law 94-171) Summary file, Arizona
Tabulation:  Research Advisory Services, Inc., Phoenix AZ  (602) 230-9580

GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS
VOTING-AGE POPULATIONS BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN

DRAFT PLAN 1



Race and Origin Composition of Current and Proposed Gila County
Community College Districts

DRAFT PLAN 1

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed

Non-Hispanic White

Non-Hispanic Black

Non-Hispanic Indian

Non-Hisp. Asian/Hawaiian

Non-Hisp. Other/Multiracial

Hispanic

Source:  Census 2010
Redistricting Data (Public 
Law 94-171) Summary File, 
Arizona

"Ideal" District Size = 10,719

Persons

District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5



GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS
DRAFT PLAN 1

Current Proposed
Districts Plan Change

Population, District 1 11,670 10,930 -740
Population, District 2 11,342 10,767 -575
Population, District 3 10,231 11,102 871
Population, District 4 8,972 10,627 1,655
Population, District 5 11,382 10,171 -1,211
Population deviation, District 1 951 211
Population deviation, District 2 623 48
Population deviation, District 3 -488 383
Population deviation, District 4 -1,747 -92
Population deviation, District 5 663 -548
Percent deviation, District 1 8.87% 1.96%
Percent deviation, District 2 5.81% 0.44%
Percent deviation, District 3 -4.56% 3.57%
Percent deviation, District 4 -16.30% -0.86%
Percent deviation, District 5 6.18% -5.12%
Total plan deviation, number 2,698 931
Total plan deviation, percent 25.17% 8.69%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 1 5.89% 6.19% 0.30%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 2 7.24% 6.10% -1.14%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 3 19.20% 19.71% 0.51%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 4 31.10% 36.14% 5.04%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 5 19.92% 10.56% -9.36%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 1 1.93% 2.01% 0.08%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 2 2.37% 1.52% -0.85%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 3 2.69% 2.94% 0.25%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 4 2.40% 3.91% 1.51%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 5 55.19% 60.63% 5.44%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 1 0.35% 0.36% 0.01%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 2 0.22% 0.23% 0.01%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 3 0.35% 0.45% 0.10%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 4 0.73% 0.47% -0.26%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 5 0.48% 0.56% 0.08%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 1 8.97% 9.36% 0.39%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 2 10.91% 8.80% -2.11%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 3 23.12% 24.21% 1.09%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 4 35.12% 41.56% 6.44%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 5 76.31% 72.16% -4.15%

Changes to DRAFT PLAN 1
1.  Moved non-reservation part of Sierra Ancha precinct from CCD3 to CCD5
2.  Moved southwest quadrant to Globe #2 precinct from CCD5 to CCD3.
3.  Moved west half of Globe 3 from CCD5 to CCD3
4.  Moved five blocks at the north end of Globe #7 from CCD4 to CCD3









Total, All
Number: District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 Districts
Hispanic, of any race 841 979 2,518 3,986 1,264 9,588
Non-Hispanic White 9,446 9,354 8,236 5,765 2,497 35,298
Non-Hispanic Black 47 44 63 51 43 248
Non-Hispanic American Indian 229 317 235 455 6,739 7,975
Non-Hispanic Asian 67 79 68 79 28 321
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 16 9 11 3 0 39
Non-Hispanic other race 12 18 14 15 7 66
Non-Hispanic two or more races 7 12 13 14 16 62
     Total Population 10,665 10,812 11,158 10,368 10,594 53,597

Percent:
Hispanic, of any race 7.89% 9.05% 22.57% 38.45% 11.93% 17.89%
Non-Hispanic White 88.57% 86.51% 73.81% 55.60% 23.57% 65.86%
Non-Hispanic Black 0.44% 0.41% 0.56% 0.49% 0.41% 0.46%
Non-Hispanic American Indian 2.15% 2.93% 2.11% 4.39% 63.61% 14.88%
Non-Hispanic Asian 0.63% 0.73% 0.61% 0.76% 0.26% 0.60%
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 0.15% 0.08% 0.10% 0.03% 0.00% 0.07%
Non-Hispanic other race 0.11% 0.17% 0.13% 0.14% 0.07% 0.12%
Non-Hispanic two or more races 0.07% 0.11% 0.12% 0.14% 0.15% 0.12%
     Total Percent 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Ideal Population 10,719 10,719 10,719 10,719 10,719 Total
Total Population 10,665 10,812 11,158 10,368 10,594 deviation:
Numeric deviation from Ideal Value -54 93 439 -351 -125 790
Percent deviation from Ideal Value -0.51% 0.86% 4.09% -3.28% -1.17% 7.37%

Source:  Census 2010 Redistricting Data (Public Law 94-171) Summary file, Arizona
Tabulation:  Research Advisory Services, Inc., Phoenix AZ  (602) 230-9580

GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS
TOTAL POPULATION BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN

DRAFT PLAN 2



Total, All
Voting-Age Number: District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 Districts
Hispanic, of any race 512 632 1,746 2,771 890 6,551
Non-Hispanic White 8,236 7,832 7,058 4,663 2,006 29,795
Non-Hispanic Black 29 24 45 31 42 171
Non-Hispanic American Indian 174 226 154 317 4,268 5,139
Non-Hispanic Asian 54 64 53 63 18 252
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 11 8 10 1 0 30
Non-Hispanic other race 3 16 12 8 5 44
Non-Hispanic two or more races 5 8 10 9 11 43
     Voting-Age Population 9,024 8,810 9,088 7,863 7,240 42,025

Voting-Age Percent:
Hispanic, of any race 5.67% 7.17% 19.21% 35.24% 12.29% 15.59%
Non-Hispanic White 91.27% 88.90% 77.66% 59.30% 27.71% 70.90%
Non-Hispanic Black 0.32% 0.27% 0.50% 0.39% 0.58% 0.41%
Non-Hispanic American Indian 1.93% 2.57% 1.69% 4.03% 58.95% 12.23%
Non-Hispanic Asian 0.60% 0.73% 0.58% 0.80% 0.25% 0.60%
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 0.12% 0.09% 0.11% 0.01% 0.00% 0.07%
Non-Hispanic other race 0.03% 0.18% 0.13% 0.10% 0.07% 0.10%
Non-Hispanic two or more races 0.06% 0.09% 0.11% 0.11% 0.15% 0.10%
     Voting-Age Percent 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Source:  Census 2010 Redistricting Data (Public Law 94-171) Summary file, Arizona
Tabulation:  Research Advisory Services, Inc., Phoenix AZ  (602) 230-9580

GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS
VOTING-AGE POPULATIONS BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN

DRAFT PLAN 2



Race and Origin Composition of Current and Proposed Gila County
Community College Districts

DRAFT PLAN 2

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed

Non-Hispanic White

Non-Hispanic Black

Non-Hispanic Indian

Non-Hisp. Asian/Hawaiian

Non-Hisp. Other/Multiracial

Hispanic

Source:  Census 2010
Redistricting Data (Public 
Law 94-171) Summary File, 
Arizona

"Ideal" District Size = 10,719

Persons

District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5



GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS
DRAFT PLAN 2

Current Proposed
Districts Plan Change

Population, District 1 11,670 10,665 -1,005
Population, District 2 11,342 10,812 -530
Population, District 3 10,231 11,158 927
Population, District 4 8,972 10,368 1,396
Population, District 5 11,382 10,594 -788
Population deviation, District 1 951 -54
Population deviation, District 2 623 93
Population deviation, District 3 -488 439
Population deviation, District 4 -1,747 -351
Population deviation, District 5 663 -125
Percent deviation, District 1 8.87% -0.51%
Percent deviation, District 2 5.81% 0.86%
Percent deviation, District 3 -4.56% 4.09%
Percent deviation, District 4 -16.30% -3.28%
Percent deviation, District 5 6.18% -1.17%
Total plan deviation, number 2,698 790
Total plan deviation, percent 25.17% 7.37%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 1 5.89% 5.67% -0.22%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 2 7.24% 7.17% -0.07%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 3 19.20% 19.21% 0.01%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 4 31.10% 35.24% 4.14%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 5 19.92% 12.29% -7.63%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 1 1.93% 1.93% 0.00%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 2 2.37% 2.57% 0.20%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 3 2.69% 1.69% -1.00%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 4 2.40% 4.03% 1.63%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 5 55.19% 58.95% 3.76%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 1 0.35% 0.32% -0.03%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 2 0.22% 0.27% 0.05%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 3 0.35% 0.50% 0.15%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 4 0.73% 0.39% -0.34%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 5 0.48% 0.58% 0.10%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 1 8.97% 8.73% -0.24%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 2 10.91% 11.10% 0.19%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 3 23.12% 22.34% -0.78%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 4 35.12% 40.70% 5.58%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 5 76.31% 72.29% -4.02%

Changes to DRAFT PLAN 2:
1.  Moved Sierra Ancha precinct from CCD3 to CCD5
2.  Moved blocks at north end of Claypool 3 precinct from CCD4 to CCD3
3.  Moved blocks at south end of Central Heights precinct from CCD3 to CCD4
4.  Moved blocks in East Globe precincts, north of Highway 60, from CCD5 to CCD4









Total, All
Number: District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 Districts
Hispanic, of any race 936 1,019 2,060 4,115 1,458 9,588
Non-Hispanic White 9,313 9,328 8,479 5,867 2,311 35,298
Non-Hispanic Black 61 39 33 74 41 248
Non-Hispanic American Indian 238 301 306 287 6,843 7,975
Non-Hispanic Asian 57 80 74 51 59 321
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 9 8 13 8 1 39
Non-Hispanic other race 16 17 11 16 6 66
Non-Hispanic two or more races 7 14 13 7 21 62
     Total Population 10,637 10,806 10,989 10,425 10,740 53,597

Percent:
Hispanic, of any race 8.80% 9.43% 18.75% 39.47% 13.58% 17.89%
Non-Hispanic White 87.55% 86.32% 77.16% 56.28% 21.52% 65.86%
Non-Hispanic Black 0.57% 0.36% 0.30% 0.71% 0.38% 0.46%
Non-Hispanic American Indian 2.24% 2.79% 2.78% 2.75% 63.72% 14.88%
Non-Hispanic Asian 0.54% 0.74% 0.67% 0.49% 0.55% 0.60%
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 0.08% 0.07% 0.12% 0.08% 0.01% 0.07%
Non-Hispanic other race 0.15% 0.16% 0.10% 0.15% 0.06% 0.12%
Non-Hispanic two or more races 0.07% 0.13% 0.12% 0.07% 0.20% 0.12%
     Total Percent 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Ideal Population 10,719 10,719 10,719 10,719 10,719 Total
Total Population 10,637 10,806 10,989 10,425 10,740 deviation:
Numeric deviation from Ideal Value -82 87 270 -294 21 564
Percent deviation from Ideal Value -0.77% 0.81% 2.52% -2.75% 0.19% 5.26%

Source:  Census 2010 Redistricting Data (Public Law 94-171) Summary file, Arizona
Tabulation:  Research Advisory Services, Inc., Phoenix AZ  (602) 230-9580

GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS
TOTAL POPULATION BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN

DRAFT PLAN 3



Total, All
Voting-Age Number: District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5 Districts
Hispanic, of any race 581 662 1,458 2,859 959 6,519
Non-Hispanic White 8,012 7,920 7,367 4,673 1,950 29,922
Non-Hispanic Black 40 21 20 50 40 171
Non-Hispanic American Indian 178 218 219 184 4,346 5,145
Non-Hispanic Asian 46 65 56 40 45 252
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 8 7 9 5 1 30
Non-Hispanic other race 7 13 9 10 5 44
Non-Hispanic two or more races 6 10 9 6 12 43
     Voting-Age Population 8,878 8,916 9,147 7,827 7,358 42,126

Voting-Age Percent:
Hispanic, of any race 6.54% 7.42% 15.94% 36.53% 13.03% 15.48%
Non-Hispanic White 90.25% 88.83% 80.54% 59.70% 26.50% 71.03%
Non-Hispanic Black 0.45% 0.24% 0.22% 0.64% 0.54% 0.41%
Non-Hispanic American Indian 2.00% 2.45% 2.39% 2.35% 59.06% 12.21%
Non-Hispanic Asian 0.52% 0.73% 0.61% 0.51% 0.61% 0.60%
Non-Hispanic Hawaiian 0.09% 0.08% 0.10% 0.06% 0.01% 0.07%
Non-Hispanic other race 0.08% 0.15% 0.10% 0.13% 0.07% 0.10%
Non-Hispanic two or more races 0.07% 0.11% 0.10% 0.08% 0.16% 0.10%
     Voting-Age Percent 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Source:  Census 2010 Redistricting Data (Public Law 94-171) Summary file, Arizona
Tabulation:  Research Advisory Services, Inc., Phoenix AZ  (602) 230-9580

GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS
VOTING-AGE POPULATIONS BY RACE AND HISPANIC ORIGIN

DRAFT PLAN 3



Race and Origin Composition of Current and Proposed Gila County
Community College Districts

DRAFT PLAN 3

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed Current Proposed

Non-Hispanic White

Non-Hispanic Black

Non-Hispanic Indian

Non-Hisp. Asian/Hawaiian

Non-Hisp. Other/Multiracial

Hispanic

Source:  Census 2010
Redistricting Data (Public 
Law 94-171) Summary File, 
Arizona

"Ideal" District Size = 10,719

Persons

District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5



GILA COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS
DRAFT PLAN 3

Current Proposed
Districts Plan Change

Population, District 1 11,670 10,637 -1,033
Population, District 2 11,342 10,806 -536
Population, District 3 10,231 10,989 758
Population, District 4 8,972 10,425 1,453
Population, District 5 11,382 10,740 -642
Population deviation, District 1 951 -82
Population deviation, District 2 623 87
Population deviation, District 3 -488 270
Population deviation, District 4 -1,747 -294
Population deviation, District 5 663 21
Percent deviation, District 1 8.87% -0.77%
Percent deviation, District 2 5.81% 0.81%
Percent deviation, District 3 -4.56% 2.52%
Percent deviation, District 4 -16.30% -2.75%
Percent deviation, District 5 6.18% 0.19%
Total plan deviation, number 2,698 564
Total plan deviation, percent 25.17% 5.26%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 1 5.89% 6.54% 0.65%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 2 7.24% 7.42% 0.18%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 3 19.20% 15.94% -3.26%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 4 31.10% 36.53% 5.43%
Percent voting-age Hispanic, District 5 19.92% 13.03% -6.89%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 1 1.93% 2.00% 0.07%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 2 2.37% 2.45% 0.08%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 3 2.69% 2.39% -0.30%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 4 2.40% 2.35% -0.05%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Native American, District 5 55.19% 59.06% 3.87%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 1 0.35% 0.45% 0.10%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 2 0.22% 0.24% 0.02%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 3 0.35% 0.22% -0.13%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 4 0.73% 0.64% -0.09%
Percent voting-age Non-Hispanic Black, District 5 0.48% 0.54% 0.06%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 1 8.97% 9.75% 0.78%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 2 10.91% 11.17% 0.26%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 3 23.12% 19.46% -3.66%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 4 35.12% 40.30% 5.18%
Percent voting-age total minority residents, District 5 76.31% 73.50% -2.81%

Changes to DRAFT PLAN 3:
1.  Moved Carrizo precinct from CCD3 to CCD5
2.  Moved Hayden, Winkelman and the non-reserv. part of Christmas precinct from CCD5 to CCD3
3.  Moved Miami #1 precinct south of Hwy 60 from CCD3 to CCD4
4.  Moved six blocks at the north end of Globe #7 from CCD4 to CCD3



   

ARF-741     Consent Agenda Item      5- A             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public
Works Division Deputy
Director

Submitted By:
Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10-2-11 to 6-30-2012 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. SS71803D - New Bridge Over Tonto
Creek with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

Background Information
Effective November 3, 2009, Gila County and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. entered into a
contract whereby Kimley-Horn agreed to provide professional engineering services for the
Tonto Creek Bridge Project. The contract expires October 2, 2011.

Evaluation
The Engineer is working on Phase II-Final Design of the project and cannot move past 30%
plans until the Environmental Assessment document is signed by the Federal Highway
Administration.  The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service required formal consultation on the
Biological Opinion portion of the Environmental Assessment which increased the amount of
completion time.  Once the Environmental Assessment document is signed the Engineer can
move forward with the final design. 

Conclusion
The final design will take about eight months to complete.  Extending the contract to June 30,
2012, would allow Kimley-Horne and Associates the time necessary to complete Phase II of the
project.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment
No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. SS71803D-New Bridge Over Tonto Creek with
Kimley-Horne and Associates, Inc. to continue to provide professional engineering services by
extending the Contract to June 30, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. SS71803D-New Bridge
Over Tonto Creek, which is between Gila County and Kimley-Horne and Associates, Inc. to
extend the contract period from October 2, 2011, to June 30, 2012.



Attachments
Amendment No. 2 Contract No. SS71803D
Amendment No. 1 Contract No. SS71803D
Original Contract SS71803D













































































   

ARF-744     Consent Agenda Item      5- B             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public
Works Division Director

Submitted By: Diana Jones, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: 2009-2010 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

4/1/2011 - 9/31/2011 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreements (IGAs) with the Town of Hayden & Town of Miami for their
Senior Center Transit Programs.

Background Information
During the Board of Supervisors' January 18, 2011, meeting, the Board recommended the
distribution of funds from the LTAF (Local Area Transportation Funds) II account.  This
is fund #6555 which is a State grant with no recovery of indirect cost. 

Evaluation
Attached are the Intergovernmental Agreements (IGA) for the distribution of LTAF II funds as
recommended by the Board of Supervisors.

Conclusion
The distribution of these funds is necessary to keep within the LTAF II program guidelines. 

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the attached IGAs for the distribution of LTAF II funds. 

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on two separate Intergovernmental Agreements
between Gila County and the Town of Hayden in the amount of $5,233.43, and the Town of
Miami in the amount of $5,233.43 for the distribution of LTAF II (Local Area Transportation
Funds).

Attachments
IGA Hayden and Miami























   

ARF-746     Consent Agenda Item      5- C             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Claudia
DalMolin, Chief
Administrative
Officer

Submitted By:

Claudia DalMolin, Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: 2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10/1/2010 to 9/30/2011 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
U.S. Forest Service Grant/Agreement #11-LE-11031200-007 Modification

Background Information
Exhibit A -Cooperative Law Enforcement Annual Operating Plan & Financial
Plan between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the USDA, Forest Service, Tonto
National Forest. FY11 OPERATING AND FINANCIAL PLAN this Annual Financial and
Operating Plan (Operating Plan), is hereby made and entered into by and between the
Gila County Sheriff's Office, hereinafter referred to as "Cooperator," and the USDA,
Forest Service, Tonto National Forest, hereinafter referred to as the "U.S. Forest
Service," under the provisions of Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement
#11-LE-11031200-004. Modification #11-LE-1131200-007. This Operating Plan is
made and agreed to as of the last date signed below and for the period beginning with
the last signature and ending September 30, 2011.

Evaluation
This request for approval is for the Gila County Sheriff's Office to assure residents
and visitors that law enforcement deputies are in the vicinity and patrolling the Tonto
National Forest.

Modification to FY2011 AOP to include additional funding in the amount of $4000.00
for a total obligation of $87,000.00.

II. PATROL ACTIVITIES, The total reimbursement for Patrol Activities shall not exceed
the amount of: $87,000.00.

IV. Equipment, The total reimbursement for Equipment shall not exceed $0.00.

VI. Billing Frequency (OTHER THAN FIRE): Billing for reimbursement to the Sheriff's



VI. Billing Frequency (OTHER THAN FIRE): Billing for reimbursement to the Sheriff's
Office for items listed under Sections II, III, and IV shall not exceed a cobined total of
$87, 000.00. 

Conclusion
The purpose of this agreement is to document a cooperative effort between the parties
to enhance State and Local Law Enforcement in connection with activities on the
National Forest Sertvice Lands and provide for reimbursement to the Cooperator (Gila
County Sheriff's Office) for the intensified portion of this effort.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office respectfully requests and recommends that the Board
of Supervisors approve FY11-LE-11031200-007 Cooperative Law Enforcement
Agreement Modification.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the FY11-LE-11031200-007 Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement
Modification between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the U.S. Department of
Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest to increase the reimbursable
funding amount from $83,000 to $87,000.

Attachments
Agreement #11-LE-11031200-007 Modification







   

ARF-768     Consent Agenda Item      5- D             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Claudia
DalMolin, Chief
Administrative
Officer

Submitted By:

Claudia DalMolin, Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: FY2012 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2011 to June 30,
2012

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
FY2012 Continuance Notification-AZDPS Contract 2009-261 Detention Liaison Officer
Program

Background Information
On October 20, 2009, the Board of Supervisors entered into an Intergovernmental
Agreement (IGA) (DPS Contract No. 2009-261) between the Arizona Department of
Public Safety (AZDPS) and the Gila County Sheriff's Office for the purpose of
enhancing law enforcement services concerning the criminal activities of street gangs
and human smuggling organizations thorugh the cooperative efforts of the AZDPS and
Gila County Sheriff's Office.  The IGA specifies that the Sheriff's Office will provide one
detention officer to perform the duties of Detention Liaison Officer and will be
reimbursed 75% of payroll expenses for any time the officer is working for the State
Gang Task Force, hereinafter referred to as "G.II.T.E.M." 

The Arizona Department of Public Safety (AZDPS) agrees to provide access to gang
member data from Arizona GangNet for the purpose of creating and maintaining a
state gang database to be shared by all participating agencies. The GCSO agrees to
enter all persons who have been documented as a criminal street gang member
and/or associate members pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes Title 13-105.8, in
order to populate the Arizona GangNet database.

Information contained in GangNet shall not be shared with anyone outside of law
enforcement or criminal justice agencies. Dissemination shall be in accordance with
established policies and procedures. Information in GangNet is to be used for
investigative purposes only. Any requests for gang data, other than for investigative
leads, must be forwarded to the originating agency of that particular data for
disposition.

Evaluation



The initial term of the IGA was from July 1, 2009, through June 30, 2010, and the
IGA shall renew annually on July 1st for a period not to exceed 5 years. Annual
renewal of the IGA is contingent upon legislative allocated budget approval for the
applicable fiscal year.  

Gila County Sheriff John R. Armer recently received written notification of approved
G.II.T.E.M. funding for FY 2012 to jointly combat criminal organizations, and
ultimately provide a safer environment for the citizens of Arizona.

Conclusion
This agenda item is for the Board of Supervisors to acknowledge the receipt of
continued G.II.T.E.M. funding for fiscal year 2012 (July 1, 2011-June 30, 2012) as
indicated in the attached notification letter to Sheriff John R. Armer.

Recommendation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office requests that the Board of
Supervisors acknowledge a June 1, 2011, letter from the AZDPS to Sheriff John R.
Armer regarding FY2012 Continuance Notification-AZDPS Contract 2009-261
Detention Liason Officer Program for one additional year, from July 1, 2011, through
June 30, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledge receipt of FY2012 Continuance Notification-AZDPS Contract 2009-261
Detention Liaison Officer Program between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the
Arizona Department of Public Safety for continued funding for FY2012, beginning on
July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Attachments
2012 GIITEM
IGA-AZDPS Contract 2009-261





























   

ARF-774     Consent Agenda Item      5- E             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Debora Savage,
Treasurer

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Treasurer's Office

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7-1-2011 to 6-30-2012 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Services Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc. for Treasurer's Vault Storage Service

Background Information
The Treasurer's Office has been using Lin-Cum, Inc. since July of 2009 for vault
storage of their report documents.  The contract expired June 30, 2011, and this is a
request to renew the contract for another term.

Evaluation
The Treasurer's Office is required by Arizona Revised Statues (A.R.S.) to store
multiple documents and books on microfiche including End of the Month Reports and
Tax Roll Reports.  Lin-Cum will pick up and prepare the bound books for filming and
transport them in covered, A/C conditioned vehicles to the Lin-Cum facilities.  At the
facility the documents will be microfilmed and archived in a quality control
laboratory.  The microfiche is kept in a vault for permanent record preservation,
offsite backup and disaster recorvery. 

Conclusion
Per the service contract Lin-Cum, Inc. will provide vault storage of Treasurer's Office
books for the period of July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2012.  The agreement may be
extended for up to 12 months by mutual agreement.

Recommendation
The County Treasurer recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the Service
Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc, for A.R.S. required vault storage of Treasurer's Office
books.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Services Contract between Gila County and Lin-Cum, Inc. whereby



Approval of a Services Contract between Gila County and Lin-Cum, Inc. whereby
Lin-Cum will provide Treasurer's Office microfiche books vault storage for a period of
twelve (12) months from July 1, 2011, to June 30, 2012 in the amount of $391.75 per
month.                 

Attachments
Service Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc.
Executive Summary Form













EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FORM   

 
 

 
Contract Name: 

 
Service Contract Lin-Cum, Inc. 

 
Contract No.: 

 
 

 
 
 

Statement of Purpose and Need (3-5 Sentences) 
 

Treasurer’s Office Arizona Revised Status required microfiche books vault storage service. 
 
 

 
 
Contract End Date: 

 
6-30-2012 

 
Renewal Option: 

      
         Yes 

          No 
 
Maximum Dollar Limit: 

 
$391.75 per month 

 
 
 

Contract Information 

 
Firm Name: 

 
Lin-Cum, Inc. 

 
Contact Person: 

 
Charles C. Cummins 

 
Address: 

 
3020 W. Windsor Ave 

 
Phone No: 

 
602-223-1230 

 
City: 

 
Phoenix 

 
State: 

 
AZ 

 
Fax: 

 
602-223-1393 

 
Email: 

 
Chuckc1@cox.net 

 
 

 
Fund: 

 
General 

 
Type of Funds: 

 
           Restricted 

              Grant 
Fund Code: 1005.203_4200.31             General Fund 

              Other 
 
 
 
 

Special Notes: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



   

ARF-778     Consent Agenda Item      5- F             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Linda
Eastlick,
Elections
Director

Submitted By:

David Rogers, Elections Department

Department: Elections Department
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Appointment of Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican Committee

Background Information
ARS 16-821(B) provides if a vacancy exists in the office of Precinct Committeeman, the
vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Supervisors from a list of names submitted by
the County Chairman of the appropriate political party.

Evaluation
Two new individuals have been submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee
Chair for appointment to the office of Precinct Committeeman.  Per statute, the Board
of Supervisors has the authority to make these appointments.

Conclusion
The Republican Party has submitted Marylyn S. Knoner and Carole E. Mathewson for
appointment by the Board of Supervisors. 

Recommendation
The Director of Elections recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the
appointments as submitted by the Gila County Republican Committee.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the appointments of the following Precinct Committeemen as submitted
by the Gila County Republican Committee: Star Valley Precinct - Marylyn S. Knoner;
and Payson 1 Precinct - Carole E. Mathewson.

Attachments
Republican PC's August 2011







   

ARF-777     Consent Agenda Item      5- G             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan,
CAP/Housing Services
Manager

Submitted By: Christine Lopez, Community Services
Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: FY 2011 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

07/01/2010 - 06/30/2011 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification

Background Information
The Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification is used to determine
performance in seven areas of Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program.  The performance indicators
are as follows:

1.  Selection from the Waiting List.  (24 CFR 982.54(d)(1) and 982.204(a))

2.  Reasonable Rent.  

3.  Determination of Adjusted Income

4.  Utility Allowance Schedule

5.  HQS Quality Control Inspections

6.  HQS Enforcement.

7.  Expanding Housing Opportunities

The collection of this information is required by 24 CFR sec 985.101 which requires a Public Housing
Agency (PHA) administering Section 8 tenant-based assistance program to submit an annual SEMAP
Certification within 60 days after the end of its fiscal year.  The information from the PHA concerns the
performance of the PHA and provides assurance that there is no evidence of seriously deficient
performance.  HUD uses the information and other data to assess PHA management capabilities and
deficiencies, and to assign an overall performance rating to the PHA.  Responses are mandatory and the
information collected does not lend itself to confidentiality. 

Evaluation
By the Board of Supervisors signing the SEMAP Certification it will keep our agency in compliance with
HUD rules and regulations and it will also provide Gila County Public Housing Agency with a rating and
a tool for improving services for the next fiscal year. 

Conclusion
It is important the the Gila County Board of Supervisors sign the SEMAP Certification so that the Gila



It is important the the Gila County Board of Supervisors sign the SEMAP Certification so that the Gila
County Public Housing Agency remains in compliance with HUD regulations. 

Recommendation
The Community Action/Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors sign the
SEMAP Certification.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Section 8 Management Assessment Program
(SEMAP) Certification to finalize the FY 2011 HUD contractual obligations and provide a rating for the
program. 

Attachments
C:\Documents and Settings\clopez\My Documents\SEMAP Certifications.pdf











   

ARF-739     Consent Agenda Item      5- H             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Barbara Valencia, WIA
Department Program Manager

Submitted By: Barbara Valencia, Community Services
Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: WIA Department
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board Reappointments of 2 Members and Acceptance of Corrected
Information for Other Members

Background Information
Under the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) of 1998 (Section 117), it is a requirement that Local
Workforce Investment Boards (LWIBs) recommend and approve membership under the category set
forth in the WIA and then forward those appointment(s) to the chief elected officials for final approval.  

Appointments of members to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board (WIB) is a two-part process. 
The initial member's application is submitted to the WIB for appointment.  Once approved, the member's
name is then presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval.  Before the term of office expires for
any member, the WIA Program Coordinator prepares the paperwork for reappointment or resignation.

Evaluation
During a recent review of all boards, commissions and committees under the purview of the Gila County
Board of Supervisors, it was discovered that there were discrepancies with regard to the term dates,
years of service, etc. for some members.  At times the beginning term date used was the date the WIB
appointed or reappointed a member and other times the date used was the date the BOS approved the
appointment or reappointment of a member.  The official date to be used will be the date the
BOS approves the appointment or reappointment.
 
The Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board has recommended and approved the reappointments of
Bernadette Kniffin and Marian Sheppard for an additional 4-year term of office, and has also approved
the revised dates, previous years of service, etc. that is listed on the attached spreadsheet.

Conclusion
The Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board has recommended and approved the reappointmentsof
Bernadette Kniffin, TANF (Temporary Assistance to Needy Families) Director - San Carlos Tribe and Gila
Community College Governing Board - Vice Chairman, for an additional four-year term retroactive from
May 8, 2011, to May 7, 2015, and Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, for
an additional four-year term retroactive from July 27, 2011, to July 26, 2015; and it has accepted the
corrected information for each member, which is listed on the attached spreadsheet.  The changes are
shown in blue.

Recommendation
The Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board recommends the Board of Supervisors' approval of the
following members' reappointments:  Bernadette Kniffin, representing Native American Programs and
Educational Programs, for an additional four-year term retroactive from May 8, 2011, to May 7, 2015,
and Marian Sheppard, representing Adult and Youth, for an additional four-year term retroactive from
July 27, 2011, to July 26, 2015; and acceptance of the corrected information for other Board members
as listed on the attached spreadsheet.

Suggested Motion
Approval to accept the reappointment of members to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board (WIB)



Approval to accept the reappointment of members to the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board (WIB)
as follows: Bernadette Kniffin, representing Native American Programs and Educational Programs, for
an additional four-year term retroactive from May 8, 2011, to May 7, 2015, and Marian Sheppard,
representing Adult and Youth, for an additional four-year term retroactive from July 27, 2011, to July
26, 2015; and accept the corrected information for other WIB members as listed on the spreadsheet
attached to this agenda item.

Attachments
Gila/Pinal WIB Membership List



GILA/PINAL WORKFORCE INVESTMENT BOARD 
(Proposed to BOS on 9‐6‐11 and if approved the list will be as follows) 

 
NAME OF MEMBER  TYPE OF 

APPOINTMENT 
 

Mark  with  A, 
B,  C,  D  or  E  – 
see below 

NEW APPOINTMENT OR REAPPOINTMENT 
(Include BOS approval date next to letter) 

New Appointment:  Choose “A” or “B” 
A ‐for existing vacancy or 
B ‐to fill a vacancy created by (provide name) 
or 
Reappointment:  Mark with a “C” and include number of 
years served prior to most recent appointment 

DATES OF TERM 
(Put the month, day and year 
both beginning & ending 

dates) 

LENGTH OF TERM 
FOR CURRENT 
APPOINTMENT 
(# of years) 

ED CARPENTER  C  C (09/06/11)  12  years (initial BOS appt. 7/27/99)  07/27/11‐07/26/15  4 
CLIFF POTTS  C  C (09/06/11)  12 years (initial BOS appt. 7/27/99)  07/27/11‐07/26/15  4 

JERI BYRNE  C  C (09/06/11)  12 years (initial BOS appt. 7/27/99)  07/27/11‐07/26/15  4 

CHARLIE ESTRADA  C  C (06/28/11)  10 years (initial WIB appt. 4/1/01)  04/01/11‐03/31/15  4 
MARIAN SHEPPARD  C  C (09/06/11)  12 years (initial BOS appt. 7/27/99)  07/27/11‐07/26/15  4 
DIANA RUSSELL  C  C (06/28/11)  8 years (initial BOS appt. 7/26/02)  01/01/11‐12/31/14  4 
BERNADETTE KNIFFIN  C  C (09/06/11)  4 years (initial BOS appt. 5/8/07)  05/08/11‐05/07/15  4 
BRAD MCCORMICK  C  A (06/09/09)  ‐   10/01/08‐09/30/12   4 
CINDY FLETCHER  C  C (?)  8 years (initial BOS appt. 7/27/99)  07/27/07‐07/26/11‐will be 

reappointed by WIB at 9/2011 
annual mtg. and then to BOS 
for approval on upcoming 
agenda 

4 

BILLIE LAVIN  C  A (06/09/09)  ‐   10/01/08‐09/30/12  4 
BRIAN TAPP  C  A (04/19/11)  ‐   12/28/10‐12/27/14  4 
JOAN MOORE  C  C (04/19/11)  9 years (served from 2000‐2009)    12/28/10‐12/27/14  4 
Other WIB members that represent 
Pinal County are appointed by WIB and 
then Pinal County BOS. 

Per Gila/Pinal Bylaws‐when  a member  resigns  there  isn’t  a person  appointed  to  serve out  their  term;  a new 
person is appointed for a new 4‐year term. 

 
Appointment Designation Definitions: 
A) Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
B) Supervisor Appointment: Member unrestricted by district. 
C) Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the 
Board of Supervisors.  (Joint appointments by Gila County BOS and Pinal County BOS.) 
D) County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E) Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 



   

ARF-753     Consent Agenda Item      5- I             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health & Emergency
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Health & Emergency
Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Emergency Services
Presenter's Name: Debra Williams

Information
Request/Subject
Approval to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-08 designating Michael O'Driscoll as Applicant Agent.

Background Information
One of the responsibilities of the County Emergency Management Director is to coordinate with the Arizona Division
of Emergency Management (ADEM).  As the State Administrative Agency, ADEM is a pass-through agency for state
or federal funding to support emergency operation activities such as all hazards planning, community
preparedness and emergency response.  

Evaluation
As the Director of the Health & Emergency Management Division, Michael O'Driscoll is the County Emergency
Management Director and he oversees the activiites of the Emergency Operations Center and all County-related
emergency response documentation and cost tracking.

Conclusion
The designation of a new Applicant Agent is needed due to the recent personnel change in the position of
Director-Health & Emergency Management.

Recommendation
Recommendation for approval to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-08 designating Michael O'Driscoll as Applicant Agent
and authorizing him to execute for and on behalf of Gila County any documents for the purpose of obtaining certain
federal and state financial assistance under the Disaster Relief Act (Public Law 288, 93rd Congress) and the
appropriate Arizona Revised Statutes, or otherwise available from the President’s Disaster Relief Fund.

Suggested Motion
Approval to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-08 designating Michael O'Driscoll as Applicant Agent and authorizing him
to execute for and on behalf of Gila County any documents for the purpose of obtaining certain federal and state
financial assistance under the Disaster Relief Act (Public Law 288, 93rd Congress) and the appropriate Arizona
Revised Statutes, or otherwise available from the President’s Disaster Relief Fund and authorization for the
Chairman to sign the Arizona Division of Emergency Management's Designation of Applicant's Agent Form. 

Attachments
Resolution No. 11-08-08
ADEM Designation of Applicant's Agent Form



 

 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-08-08 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, DESIGNATING THE DELEGATION OF 
AUTHORITY FOR THE APPLICANT AGENT OF GILA COUNTY. 
 
 

 
WHEREAS, Michael O’Driscoll is the newly appointed Director of the Health and 

Emergency Management Division of Gila County.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
hereby designates Michael O’Driscoll as the Applicant Agent for Gila County and authorizes 
him to execute for and on behalf of Gila County any documents for the purpose of obtaining 
certain Federal and State financial assistance under the Disaster Relief Act (Public Law 288, 93rd 
Congress) and the appropriate Arizona Revised Statutes, or otherwise available from the 
President’s Disaster Relief Fund. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of September 2011, at Globe, Gila County, 
Arizona. 
 
Attest:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard    Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Bryan Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 



ARIZONA  DIVISION  OF  EMERGENCY  MANAGEMENT 
DESIGNATION  OF  APPLICANT’S  AGENT  FORM 

 
The intent of this DESIGNATION is to appoint an APPLICANT’S AGENT for the following term: 
 
       For PCA No. __________ only    For the period of ____ to____          Until further notice 
 
       Until further notice for HAZMAT incident 
 
Applicant Name:__________________________________________________________ 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I, ____________________________________, duly appointed and ___________________________ of  
      (Authorizing Official’s Name)                (Title) 
 
________________________________________, do hereby certify that the information below is true  
  (Applicant Name) 
 
and correct, based on a resolution passed and approved by the _________________________________   
                       (Governing Body) 
 
of  ___________________________________ on the _________ day of _____________, __________.    
                              (Applicant Name)             (day)           (month)                  (year) 
 
_______________________________________________ has been designated as the Applicant Agent  

  (Name of Designated Applicant Agent)                              
 
to act on behalf of  ________________________________________________________ . 
                                                                                         (Applicant Name) 
 
____________________________________   __________________________ _________________                    

(Authorizing Official’s Signature)                (Title)            (Date) 
 

Designated Applicant’s Agent 
 
Name     ____________________________________________________________________________ 
     
Title/Official Position     _______________________________________________________________ 
     
Mailing Address     ____________________________________________________________________ 
     
City, State, Zip     _____________________________________________________________________ 
     
Daytime Telephone Number   ____________________________  Fax  __________________________                     
(Please include area code and extension if not a direct number) 
 
E-mail Address   ___________________________________  Pager/Cell _________________________ 
 

 

 Received By: ________________                          July 2000     Form # AZ PA 204-4 
                          (Initials & Date) 

For ADEM Use Only



   

ARF-747     Consent Agenda Item      5- J             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Robert Gould, Community
Development Division Director

Submitted By: Cassandra Villegas, Finance Department

Department: Community Development Division Division: Community Development Administration

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9-6-11 to 9-6-12 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Maintenance Agreement with Digital Imaging for the Kyocera Ta-300i Digital MFP Copier located in the
Community Development Office.

Background Information
On July 28, 2011, the Community Development Division purchased a Kyocera TA-300i Digital MFP
copier (S/N QZJ1406950) from Kyocera Mita, Inc.  The maintenance agreement will cover full service of
this copier by Digital Imaging. 

Evaluation
The maintenance agreement for the Kyocera copier will cover parts, labor and supplies (excluding paper
& staples).  The agreement will also include the drum, fuser, toner and developer.

The County will be billed monthly in arrears, no minimum, no maximums for the excess copies billed at
$0.0049 for each excess copy.

Conclusion
The maintenance agreement will be in effect for a period of one year.  If not cancelled, the contract will
renew automatically for another 12 months.

Recommendation
The Community Development Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
agreement with Digital Imaging for maintenance of the Kyocera TA-300i Digital MFP copier for one year
in the amount of $0.0049 for excess copies.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Maintenance Agreement between Gila County and
Digital Imaging for maintenance of the Community Development Division's Kyocera TA-300i Digital MFP
copier from September 6, 2011, to September 6, 2012, at a cost of $0.0049 per copy for an estimated
total of $250-$300 per month.

Attachments
Digital Imaging Maintenance Agreement









   

ARF-745     Consent Agenda Item      5- K             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,
Elections
Director

Submitted By:
Cassandra Villegas, Finance Department

Department: Elections Department

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9-6-11 to 9-6-12 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Maintenance Agreement with Digital Imaging for the Kyocera TA-5500i Digital MFP
Copier located in the Elections Department.

Background Information
On July 21, 2011, the Elections Department purchased a Kyocera TA-5500i Digital
MFP copier (S/N N3X1500227) from Kyocera Mita, Inc.  The Maintenance Agreement
will cover full service of this copier by Digital Imaging.

Evaluation
The Maintenance Agreement for the Kyocera copier will cover parts, labor and supplies
(excluding paper and staples).  The agreement will also include the drum, fuser, toner
and developer.

The County will be billed monthly in arrears, no minimum, no maximums for all
copies billed at $0.0041 per copy per month.  Total cost is projected to be $600 per
year.

Conclusion
The Maintenance Agreement will be in effect for a period of one year with an
automatic renewal for an additional year.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the agreement with Digital Imaging for maintenance of the Kyocera TA-5500i Digital
MFP Copier for one year with an automatic renewal for one additional year at $0.0041
per copy per month. Total cost is projected to be $600 per year.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on a Maintenance Agreement between Gila



Authorization of the Chairman's signature on a Maintenance Agreement between Gila
County and Digital Imaging for a Kyocera TA-5500i Digital MFP copier that is being
used by the Elections Department for the period September 6, 2011, to September 6,
2012, with an automatic renewal for one additional year at a cost of $0.0041 per copy
for an estimated total of $600 per year. 

Attachments
Maintenance Agreement









   

ARF-794     Consent Agenda Item      5- L             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Chief Deputy
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By:

Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9-15-2011 to 9-14-2012 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Document Conversion Services Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc.

Background Information
Effective September 15, 2010, Gila County and Lin-Cum, Inc. entered into an
agreement whereby Lin-Cum agreed to provide document conversion and storage
services for the Gila County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  The contract expires
September 14, 2011.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 to the service contract with Lin-Cum will extend the contract date
to September 14, 2012, or until terminated by either party.  It will also add the
County Attorney's required A.R.S. §35-397 language concerning anti-terrorism
warranty.

Conclusion
The amendment will allow Lin-Cum, Inc. to continue to provide document conversion
services to the Clerk of the Board for one year at a cost of $117.51 per year.

Recommendation
The Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve Amendment No. 1 to the Document Conversion Services Contract with
Lin-Cum, In. for a one-year term.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to a Document



Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to a Document
Conversion Services Contract between Gila County and Lin-Cum, Inc. for the Clerk of
the Board of Supervisors Department's document conversion and storage from
September 15, 2011, to September 14, 2012, in the amount of $117.51 per year.

Attachments
Lin-Cum, Inc. Original Conttract
Amendment No.1 Lin-Cum Inc.





















   

ARF-793     Consent Agenda Item      5- M             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Daisy Flores,
County
Attorney

Submitted By:
Liz Fetterman, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9/30/11 to 9/30/11 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Performer Contract Agreement with Robert Wagner for Motivational Speaking
Engagement

Background Information
This is a one-time contract wherein Motivational Speaker Robert Wagner will speak at
the Gila County Attorney's Office retreat scheduled for September 30, 2011, at the
Gila County Sheriff's Substation at Roosevelt.  Mr. Wagner is scheduled to speak
for 90 minutes on leadership, communication and team development. 

Evaluation
Each staff member of the Gila County Attorney's Office has participated in inter-office
leadership training workshops throughout the last year.  The training has been an
integral part of the County Attorney's Office and feedback from staff has proven to be
very positive.  In order to maintain sustainability and continue the success of the
leadership program in the office, Gila County Attorney Daisy Flores wishes to hire Mr.
Wagner for his speaking expertise in this field, with a tint of humor, at the rate of
$1,000, for an office retreat scheduled for September 30, 2011, at the Gila County
Sheriff's Substation in Roosevelt. Mr. Wagner has executed the Performer Contract
Agreement as well as the Gila County Contractor Standard Terms and Conditions
Addendum.

Conclusion
The leadership principles that have been presented to the Gila County Attorney's



The leadership principles that have been presented to the Gila County Attorney's
Office are very important to the success of the team. Gila County Attorney Daisy
Flores is pro-active in allowing her staff to participate in these types of workshops
and hopes the results will result in greater employee satisfaction and increased
productivity, as well as creating a positive teamwork environment.  By allowing an
outside speaker, who will be presenting on those same principles, it will be of great
benefit to the staff.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney's Office recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the Performer Contract Agreement with Robert Wagner.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Performer Contract Agreement between Gila County and Robert Wagner
for a motivational speaking engagement for the Gila County Attorney's Office on
September 30, 2011, at the cost of $1,000.

Attachments
Wagner Agreement

















   

ARF-802     Consent Agenda Item      5- N             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Daisy Flores,
County
Attorney

Submitted By:
Liz Fetterman, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

9/30/11 - 9/30/11 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Engagement Contract with Clint Lawton for Interpersonal and Interoffice Team
Development

Background Information
This is a one-time contract wherein Clint Lawton will perform leadership,
communication, interpersonal and interoffice team building activities and exercises at
the Gila County Attorney's Office retreat scheduled for September 30, 2011, at the
Gila County Sheriff's Substation at Roosevelt.  Mr. Lawton is scheduled for two and
one-half hours.  Mr. Lawton is the Director of Alumni of the Boy Scouts of America
Grand Canyon Council.

Evaluation
Each staff member of the Gila County Attorney's Office has participated in inter-office
leadership training workshops throughout the last year. The training has been an
integral part of the County Attorney's Office and feedback from staff has proven to be
very positive. In order to maintain sustainability and continue the success of the
leadership program in the office, Gila County Attorney Daisy Flores wishes to hire
Mr. Lawton for his expertise in communication and team buiding, at the rate of
$250.00, for an office retreat scheduled for September 30, 2011 at the Gila County
Sheriff's Substation in Roosevelt. Mr. Lawton has executed the Engagement
Agreement as well as the Gila County Contractor Standard Terms and Conditions
Addendum.

Conclusion
The leadership principles that have been presented to the Gila County Attorney's



The leadership principles that have been presented to the Gila County Attorney's
Office is very important to the success of the team. Gila County Attorney Daisy Flores,
is pro-active in allowing her staff to participate in these types of workshops and hopes
the results will be in greater employee satisfaction and increased productivity, as well
as creating a positive teamwork environment. By allowing an outside director of
activities who will be presenting on those same principles will be of great benefit to
the staff.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney's Office recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the Engagement Contract with Clint Lawton.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Engagement Agreement between Gila County and Clint Lawton for a
leadership, communication, interpersonal and interoffice team building event for the
Gila County Attorney's Office on September 30, 2011, at the cost of $250.

Attachments
Lawhon Signed Contract



















   

ARF-804     Consent Agenda Item      5- O             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public
Works Division Director

Submitted By: Shannon Coons, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

09/06/2011 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Purchase property from Jack In the Box Corporation to realign Monroe Street at Courthouse.

Background Information
On January 4, 2011, Steve Stratton, Public Works Director, addressed the Board of
Supervisors to ask for permission to purchase property to realign Monroe Street in Globe. 
Monroe Street extension was adopted by resolution into the County Maintained Roadway
System on January 20, 1993. For several years Gila County has requested that Jack In The
Box, Inc. sell the County a portion of property to enable the much needed road work.

Evaluation
The hill creates a blind area for both east and west bound drivers and it is a safety hazard.
Pedestrians are always at risk due to the poor visibility. The project will be paid for out of the
Transporatation Tax Excise Tax Fund.

Conclusion
In order for the Monroe Street realignment to go forward, the property purchase is necessary.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director requests that the Board approve the purchase of this
property and authorize the Chairman to sign the title documents and deed.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the purchase of property located in Globe from the Jack In The Box Corporation in
order to realign Monroe Street and authorization of the Chairman's signature on the title
documents.

Attachments
Escrow PIoneer Title
Agenda 1-2011 Approve to Purchase
Record of Survey 3929A
Legal Desc Attach A 35E



Legal Desc Attach B 35C















































               
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH
STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION
VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’
CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2011 - 10 A.M.

               
 

1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Information/Discussion/Action to recognize newly elected and re-elected public officials for the
period January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2014, as follows:  Robert Duber II, Judge of the
Superior Court, Division 2; Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court; Gary Goetteman,
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace; Dorothy Little, Payson Regional Justice of the Peace;
Jesse Bolinger, Globe Regional Constable; and Colt White, Payson Regional Constable.  Judge
Peter Cahill will immediately administer the Oath of Office to all officials.  (Linda Eastlick)

Recognized

 

B Presentation by the Gila County Recycling and Landfill Management Department on the
annual program of recycling and refurbishing discarded bicycles for distribution to
disadvantaged youth in Gila County.  (Sharon Winters)

Presented

 

3 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila
County Library District Board of Directors.)
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Library Service Agreement between the Gila
County Library District and the San Carlos Public Library to cooperate in the provision of
library services for the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, and to match up to
$32,920.  (Jacque Griffin)

Approved

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Resource Access and Attainment Policy for the
Gila County Library District. (Jacque Griffin)
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and reconvene
as the Gila County Board of Supervisors)

Approved

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to select one of the following projects for the Secure Rural
Schools Title II Special Projects application for 2011:  Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423 (Cline
Boulevard) in Tonto Basin or Double Chip Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner
Canyon Road) in Globe and direct staff to proceed with preparing the grant application. (Jacque Griffin/Steve Stratton/Steve Sanders)
(Jacque Griffin/Steve Stratton/Steve Sanders)

Selected

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-01-01 authorizing the submission
of a Grant Application for Home Investment Partnership Program funds, and Resolution No.
11-01-02 adopting housing services guidelines; and to approve the submission of the
Grant Application to the Arizona State Department of Housing, State Housing Fund, in the
amount of $330,000 for the Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 2011 HOME Project.  
(Malissa Buzan)

Adopted

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a petition from Landmark at the Creek LLC,
to begin the process to dispose of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion of
Christopher Creek Loop as shown on the attached map.  (Steve Sanders)

Accepted

 

F Information/ Discussion/ Action to approve the purchase of parcel no. 205-14-035E and a
portion of parcel no. 205-14-035C from Jack-in-the-Box Inc. in the amount of $18,000 plus
closing fees for the Monroe Street realignment project. (Steve Stratton)

Approved

 

G Information/Discussion/Action to approve Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-010
between the United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest,
and Gila County for FY11 annual maintenance on Tonto National Forest Service roads in the
amount of $72,114 through September 30, 2011, and with approval for Steve Stratton, Public
Works Division Director, to sign modifications under $50,000.  (Steve Stratton)

Approved

 

H Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Authorized



H Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management
Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation-January 2010 Buy-Out Project Grant Application to
the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program
funds in the amount of $464,492.   (Matthew Bolinger)

Authorized

 

I Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management
Department approval to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Vertical Heights Road
Repair Project to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for a grant request totalling
$350,000. (Matthew Bolinger)

Authorized

 

J Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management
Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Individual Flood Insurance and
Mitigation Outreach Project to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for FEMA
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding in the amount of $69,625 for the hire of a Flood
Mitigation Analyst for an 18-month period.  (Matthew Bolinger)

Authorized

 

K Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management
Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Elevation Project to the Arizona
Division of Emergency Management for Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding in the
amount of $50,000.  (Matthew Bolinger)

Authorized

 

L Presentation of information related to Gila County Policy No. BOS-4-2005, Disclosure of
Conflicts of Interest, with a reminder to each elected official and division/department director
to communicate said policy to their employees.  (Marian Sheppard)

Presented

 

4 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1
between Gila County and CEMEX to extend the Contract, per Section 2.2, from the period
December 18, 2010, to December 17, 2011; and to provide for the purchase of 3/8" chips and
ABC, all of which are used in the Copper Region of Gila County.

Authorized

 

B Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Professional Consulting
Services Contract No. 6500.505/01-2010 between Gila County and Sheldon Miller to extend
the Contract, per Article I, Activity 5, from the period January 5, 2011, to January 4, 2012, to
provide consulting services for various highway projects in Arizona and with the Arizona
Department of Transportation. 

Tabled

 

C Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 100109-01R
between Gila County and Swire Coca-Cola to extend the Contract, per Article III, from January
12, 2011, to January 11, 2012, to provide automated vending machine services to Gila County
facilities.

Authorized

 

D Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D
between Gila County and Kimley-Horn and Associates in the amount of $949,992 to approve
Phase II scope, design, and cost proposal per Article IX of the contract for Professional
Engineering Services on the New Bridge Over Tonto Creek project for the period November 3,
2009, through November 3, 2011.

Authorized

 

E Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. HG861265 between Gila
County and the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $135,003 to extend
the Teen Pregnancy Prevention program for the period of January 1, 2011, 
through December 31, 2011.

Approved

 

F Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE111170001 between Gila County and the
Arizona Department of Economic Security to facilitate the use of a Family Law Commissioner
for the period October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2015. 

Approved

 

G Approval of a request for a waiver of fees submitted by Lani Hall, on behalf of the U of A Gila
County Cooperative Extension Office - 4-H Program, for the use of the Fairground’s Exhibit
Hall  and/or other areas at the Fairgrounds for all Gila County 4-H activities in 2011.

Approved

 

H Approval of the July 6, 2010, BOS meeting minutes. Approved
 

I Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Clerk of
the Superior Court.

Approved

 



J Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Constable.

Approved

 

K Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Constable

Approved

 

L Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable.

Approved

 

M Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the
Recorder's Office.

Approved

 

N Approval of the October and November 2010 monthly departmental activity reports submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace.

Approved

 

O Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of December 21, 2010, December 28, 2010, and
January 4, 2011.

Approved

 

P Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of December 21, 2010,
December 28, 2010, and January 4, 2011.

Approved

 

5 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow individuals
to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board members may not discuss items that
are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute
§38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to
study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and
decision at a future date.

 

 

6 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No
action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS.
FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED
ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING

 



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,

Elections Director
Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections

Department: Elections Department
Presenter's Name: Linda Eastlick 

Information
Request/Subject
Oath of Office for newly elected or re-elected officials.

Background Information
In the November 2, 2010, General Election, the following individuals were elected to a four-year term of
office beginning January 1, 2011:  Robert Duber II, Judge of the Superior Court, Division 2; Anita Escobedo, Clerk
of the Superior Court; Gary Goetteman, Globe Regional Justice of the Peace; Dorothy Little, Payson Regional
Justice of the Peace; Jesse Bolinger, Globe Regional Constable; and Colt White, Payson Regional Constable. 
Certificates of Election have already been issued to each newly elected official.

Evaluation
Oaths of Office are required by ARS 38-231. Officers and employees required to take loyalty oath; form;
classification; definition

A. In order to ensure the statewide application of this section on a uniform basis, each board, commission, agency
and independent office of this state, and of any of its political subdivisions, and of any county, city, town,
municipal corporation, school district and public educational institution, shall completely reproduce this section so
that the form of written oath or affirmation required in this section contains all of the provisions of this section for
use by all officers and employees of all boards, commissions, agencies and independent offices.

B. Any officer or employee who fails to take and subscribe to the oath or affirmation provided by this section within
the time limits prescribed by this section is not entitled to any compensation until the officer or employee does so
take and subscribe to the form of oath or affirmation prescribed by this section.

C. Any officer or employee having taken the form of oath or affirmation prescribed by this section, and knowingly at
the time of subscribing to the oath or affirmation, or at any time thereafter during the officer's or employee's term of
office or employment, does commit or aid in the commission of any act to overthrow by force, violence or terrorism
as defined in section 13-2301 the government of this state or of any of its political subdivisions, or advocates the
overthrow by force, violence or terrorism as defined in section 13-2301 of the government of this state or of any of
its political subdivisions, is guilty of a class 4 felony and, on conviction under this section, the officer or employee
is deemed discharged from the office or employment and is not entitled to any additional compensation or any other
emoluments or benefits which may have been incident or appurtenant to the office or employment.

D. Any of the persons referred to in article XVIII, section 10, Constitution of Arizona, as amended, relating to the
employment of aliens, are exempted from any compliance with this section.

E. In addition to any other form of oath or affirmation specifically provided by law for an officer or employee, before
any officer or employee enters upon the duties of the office or employment, the officer or employee shall take and
subscribe the following oath or affirmation:

State of Arizona, County of ______________ I, _____________________
(type or print name) 
do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and
laws of the State of Arizona, that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same and defend them against all
enemies, foreign and domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially discharge the duties of the office of
______________________ (name of office) ________________________ according to the best of my ability, so help me God
(or so I do affirm).
______________________________________
(signature of officer or employee) 

F. For the purposes of this section, "officer or employee" means any person elected, appointed or employed, either
on a part-time or full-time basis, by this state or any of its political subdivisions or any county, city, town,
municipal corporation, school district, public educational institution or any board, commission or agency of any
county, city, town, municipal corporation, school district or public educational institution. 

Conclusion
A written Oath of Office, that is signed and notarized, is what qualifies an officer under the statute to serve in office.

Recommendation



Recognize the newly elected and re-elected public officials and provide for administration of the Oath of Office to all
officials.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to recognize newly elected and re-elected public officials for the period January 1,
2011, through December 31, 2014, as follows:  Robert Duber II, Judge of the Superior Court, Division 2; Anita
Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court; Gary Goetteman, Globe Regional Justice of the Peace; Dorothy Little,
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace; Jesse Bolinger, Globe Regional Constable; and Colt White, Payson Regional
Constable.  Judge Peter Cahill will immediately administer the Oath of Office to all officials.  (Linda Eastlick)

Attachments
Link: Oaths of Office 2011

 



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Sharon Winters, Solid Waste Operations Manager
Submitted By: Sharon Winters, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Recycling & Landfill Management
Presenter's Name: Sharon Winters 

Information
Request/Subject
2010 Refurbished Bike Program Presentation

Background Information
The Recycling and Landfill Department collects bikes that have been thrown away or donated by the public. These
bikes are rebuilt by Department of Corrections inmates for distribution to agencies at Christmas time to give to
eligible children.  

Evaluation
Workshop space is provided by the Public Works Department for the bicycles, the new parts and inmate labor are
paid for by the funds collected from selling recycable products.  

The refurbished bikes are given to agencies all over Gila County, which include the following:   

In Payson they are distributed by the Fire and Public Safety Departments; Arizona Department of Economic
Secuity is also involved. 
For Miami and Hayden, the Town employees organize the gifts. 
In San Carlos, Mary Kim Titla, Tribal Liaison works with the schools in getting the bikes to children. 
Bikes are provided to the Court Appointed Special Advocate (CASA) program for foster children. 
For the community of Roosevelt the Secret Santa program gives the bikes away. 
The Toy Run and the American Legion include bikes in with their Adopt-A-Family and toy distribution. 
In all, over 140 bikes have been rebuilt and given way this year. 
 

Conclusion
This presentation is to provide information to the Board of Supervisors and the public about the bike program, how
is it funded and where the bikes go.

Recommendation
I recommend that this agenda item be listed for information to the Supervisors and public.

Suggested Motion
Presentation by the Gila County Recycling and Landfill Management Department on the annual program of
recycling and refurbishing discarded bicycles for distribution to disadvantaged youth in Gila County.  (Sharon
Winters)

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Library District
Department: Library District

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Library Service Agreement with the San Carlos Public Library.

Background Information
The Gila County Library District contracts annually with the eight affiliate libraries to cooperate with the provision
of library services to the residents of Gila County.  These service agreements serve as contracts for facilitating
funding and resource sharing.  This is the eighth and final agreement for FY 2010-2011.  It was delayed pending
final agreement between the two parties regarding the addendum language, and has now been approved by the
tribal attorney and the County Attorney's Office.

Evaluation
The funding amount for the San Carlos Library has not changed from last year.  The Library District matches up to
an upper limit for city, town and tribal libraries.  Library District funding will match up to $32,920.00 for the San
Carlos Public Library operating expenses.  These funds will be distributed in two installments: the first as soon as
this agreement is approved, and the second in May 2011.

Conclusion
Approval of the Library Service Agreement will facilitate funding and resource sharing for the San Carlos Public
Library.

Recommendation
I recommend approval of the Library Service Agreement between Gila County Library District and the San Carlos
Public Library for fiscal year 2010-2011.

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library District
Board of Directors.)
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Library Service Agreement between the Gila County Library District
and the San Carlos Public Library to cooperate in the provision of library services for the period July 1, 2010,
through June 30, 2011, and to match up to $32,920.  (Jacque Griffin)

Attachments
Link: Library Service Agreement with San Carlos Public Library for 2010-2011

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Library District
Department: Library District
Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Library District Resource Access and Attainment Policy

Background Information
The Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records has recently updated the statewide policy regarding
"Resource Access and Attainment" formerly known as the Interlibrary Loan Policy. In the past, the standard for
compliance with the statewide policy was that libraries could not pass on postage or other charges related to
obtaining materials from other libraries for an individual's use. With the rapid changes in the format materials can
be obtained in, as well as with the increasing cost of postage and usage fees, the statewide policy has been modified
to allow a library to pass on the postage or other actual costs associated with the provision of resource sharing. The
State Library has asked that all county libraries adopt the Resource Access and Attainment Policy or to modify their
existing policy to provide for uniform polices throughout the state.

Evaluation
Resource sharing through the Interlibrary Loan Process is one of the core services that public libraries offer to their
users. In the not too distant past when most information was printed through the traditional processes, this usually
meant that a library user who could not find what they were looking for in their own library would ask for a book or
magazine article, and the library staff would borrow the item from another library. Libraries were prohibited from
passing the postage costs along to the patron, since the accepted standards were that materials should be provided
at no charge to the public.  In addition to the increases in postage costs, many journal articles are only available for
a fee. These fees and costs can place an undue burden on libraries. Research has shown that it costs somewhere
between $13.50 - $29.50 per item for the entire Interlibrary Loan Process. The State Library has been using the
figure of $25.00 per loan transaction. For this reason, many libraries have found that purchasing a used book and
adding it to the collection is less expensive than borrowing the title from another library. Some public libraries had
chosen to not participate in resource sharing because of the financial impact to already strapped budgets. Since
that had a net result of limiting the public's access to information, the Arizona State Library has modified their
policy to include "When materials can only be attained for a reasonable cost through interlibrary loan the District
will offer to secure the materials with the customer covering postage costs and any fees charged by the lending
library." The policy also encourages library staff to attempt to assist the customer with finding the information
requested in other locations or formats.

Conclusion
Several years ago the Library District and the affiliate libraries developed a volunteer courier system to facilitate
sharing resources between the libraries within the County to alleviate the postage burden on all libraries. However,
there are still many instances of customers requesting materials that are not available within the Countywide
library system. The financial burden of resource sharing has negatively impacted all of the public libraries in Gila
County. This policy allows libraries to continue to offer a core service, while asking the customer to cover the
postage costs or fees related to obtaining material that is specific to their needs.

Recommendation
The County Librarian recommends that the Library District Board of Directors adopt the Resource Access and
Attainment Policy, which provides guidelines for interlibrary loans and access to resources.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Resource Access and Attainment Policy for the Gila County Library
District. (Jacque Griffin)
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County
Board of Supervisors)

Attachments
Link: Gila County Library District Resource Access and Attainment Policy

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, BOS Liaison to Eastern AZ RAC
Submitted By: Jacque Griffin, Library District
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration
Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin/Steve

Stratton/Steve
Sanders 

Information
Request/Subject
Project Selection for Secure Rural Schools Title II Special Projects application for 2011

Background Information
The Secure Rural Schools (PL-110-343) Program 2008-2011 includes provisions for Title II Special Projects on
Federal Lands.  This act authorizes the use of area Resource Advisory Committees (RACs) as a mechanism for local
community collaboration with federal land managers in recommending Title II projects on federal lands, or that will
benefit resources on federal lands.  Gila County is one of the five eastern counties that make up the geographical
area for the Eastern Arizona RAC. The Apache-Sigreaves National Forest administers these grant funds.  As we
prepare the application for the next round of these grants, we are asking for the Board's preference regarding
which project to select for this process.

Evaluation
The  Request for Proposal process for the Secure Rural Schools Title II Special Projects on Federal Lands is
expected to open this month, and close in February 2011.  These are 2010 funds and we are estimating that
$432,000.00 will be available for projects in Gila County.  Title II funds may be used for projects that improve the
maintenance of existing infrastructure, implementing stewardship objectives that enhance forest ecosystems and
restoring and improving land health or water quality.

During the Gila County Board of Supervisors work session on December 7, 2010, we presented eight projects that
met the eligibility requirements for Title II  projects.  After the discussion from the work session, we have revised the
list down to the top two; Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423 (Cline Boulevard) in Tonto Basin, and Double Chip
Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner Canyon Road) in Globe.  The attachment more thoroughly
describes these two projects.

Both projects were identified in the Small Area Transportation Study (SATS) of 2006. Both projects will provide for
safer roads, reduce response time for emergency vehicles and reduce the road maintenance costs.

We have not received any response from the Globe Ranger District regarding the NEPA process on Forest Road 55.  
We have received a telephone call from the Tonto Basin Ranger District offering their support of the Forest Road
423 project, and offering assistance with the NEPA process.
 

Conclusion
Following the selection process by the Board of Supervisors, we will develop a grant proposal and bring the official
application back to the Board of Supervisors for approval, signatures and submittal of the grant.

Recommendation
We recommend that the Board of Supervisors select one of the following projects and direct staff to proceed with
the grant process. 

Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423 (Cline Boulevard) in Tonto Basin
Double Chip Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner Canyon Road) in Globe

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to select one of the following projects for the Secure Rural Schools Title II Special
Projects application for 2011:  Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423 (Cline Boulevard) in Tonto Basin or Double Chip
Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner Canyon Road) in Globe and direct staff to proceed with preparing the
grant application. (Jacque Griffin/Steve Stratton/Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Link: Potential Projects for RAC
Link: Secure Rural Schools Program 2008-2011 Overview

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- D     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Housing Services Program Manager
Submitted By: Carolyn Haro, Health & Community Services Division
Department:

Fiscal Year: 2011 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

4-1-2011 to 3-31-2013 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Malissa Buzan 

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Resolution No. 11-01-01 & Resolution No. 11-01-02 and submittal of Application for Owner-Occupied
Housing Rehabilitation Programs to the Arizona Department of Housing

Background Information
This application is in response to the notice of funding availability for the State Housing Fund, Owner-Occupied
Housing Rehabilitation Programs.  It will enable housing rehabilitation for 7 eligible Gila County residents who are
currently on a waiting list.  This is new funding that will be used in conjuction with leveraged funds from
U.R.R.D./ACAA, SW Gas/WAP, APS/WAP, and LIHEAP/WAP  to provide the rehabilitation.

We have previously administered this grant, but there was a lapse in availability and it has been approximately 5
years since Gila County has been awarded these funds.

Evaluation
The Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Program is a grant provided to assist in providing housing
rehabilitation to seven eligible applicants within Gila County.  Funds will be used in collaboration with funding
through U.R.R.D/ACAA, SW Gas/WAP, APS/WAP and LIHEAP/WAP to provide the service.  This project is positive
for both residents of Gila County as well as businesses.  Local contractors are solicited to conduct the
rehabilitation.  Rehabilitation projects will be selected from the current waiting list of eligible applicants.

Conclusion
Both Gila County residents and business owners (contractors) potentially benefit from this grant.  It will increase
home valuation and revitalize neighborhoods.  In addition, small business owners will benefit through employment
and additional projects that would not otherwise be available to them.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the Grant Application to the State Housing
Fund, Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 2011 HOME Project.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-01-01 authorizing the submission of a
Grant Application for Home Investment Partnership Program funds, and Resolution No. 11-01-02 adopting housing
services guidelines; and to approve the submission of the Grant Application to the Arizona State Department of
Housing, State Housing Fund, in the amount of $330,000 for the Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 2011
HOME Project.  
(Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Link: Application for Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation Programs
Link: Resolution No. 11-01-01 to submit OOHR application
Link: Resolution No. 11-01-02 to adopt OOHR guidelines

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- E     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director
Submitted By: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering
Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Public Works Engineering Department has received a petition and request from Landmark at the Creek
LLC., to vacate a portion of Christopher Creek Loop.

Background Information
Christopher Creek Loop is in the community of Christopher Creek and was formerly Arizona State Route 260. When
SR 260 was realigned around the community, the Arizona Department of Transportation turned the road back to
Gila County. Gila County accepted the road into the County's Maintained Roadway System and renamed the road
Christopher Creek Loop. When this roadway was in ADOT's system the right-of-way varied in width from 100 to
200 feet. Now that the road is no longer in the State Highway System and traffic has been reduced for the most
part to local traffic the existing width of the right-of-way is no longer necessary. The area requested for
abandonment is adjacent to the petitioners property, currently identified as Assessor's parcel 303-10-094A.

Evaluation
After many on-site visits between the owner's representatives and staff, an area for abandonment was agreed upon
and supported by staff.  The proposed abandonment will not have an effect on access through the area nor  will it
impact the area needed to maintain the roadway.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of the County for the Board of Supervisors to authorize the Engineering Department to
begin the process to dispose of this unnecessary public roadway.

Recommendation
The recommendation from the Engineering Department is to approve the motion to begin the process to dispose of
an unnecesssary roadway.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a petition from Landmark at the Creek LLC, to begin the process
to dispose of an unnecessary public roadway being a portion of Christopher Creek Loop as shown on the attached
map.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Link: Petition to Vacate a Roadway
Link: Map
Link: Legal Description

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- F     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Shannon Coons, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Engineering

Fiscal Year: 2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

January 4, 2011 until paperwork signed 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Request to purchase property from Jack-in-the-Box, Inc. in Globe to re-align Monroe Street at Courthouse.

Background Information
The Monroe Street extension was adopted by resolution into the County highway January 20, 1993. For several
years Gila County has requested that Jack-in-the-Box, Inc. sell the County a portion of its property to enable the
County to realign this portion of Monroe Street at 7th Street for safety reasons. The hill creates a blind area for
both east and west bound drivers and it is a safety hazard. A project was added to the Engineering CIP 5-year plan
to reconstruct Monroe Street to make it safer.  There will be retaining wall work involved and at 90% plans, the
Engineer's estimate in Sept 2008 was $564,119 which includes a 20% contingency. The engineering contract from
2007 in the amount of $24,854 still has $1,185.50 to be expensed for bid package contract technical specifications
and special provision documents.  To prepare for the project other expenses such as underground fiber optic had to
be moved. Total expenses to date for this project since 2007 is $42,796 out of the Transportation Half-Cent Excise
Tax Fund. 

Evaluation
Monroe Street is the main exit for employees and the public traveling west bound from the Courthouse, Guerrero
Complex and Arizona D.E.S. buildings. Left turns onto Ash Street have been prohibited for safety reasons. The east
bound side of the road has a vertical drop off of about 20' into the D.E.S. parking lot. Before we take the appraisal
and survey information to a title agency for processing the Public Works Division wanted approval from the Gila
County Board of Supervisors to proceed with the purchase of the Jack-in-the-Box property for this road
realignment. The 2 parcels affected have been surveyed and appraised. The sale amount of $18,000 has been
pre-approved by the Jack-in-the-Box corporation as seen in the Letter of Intent dated October 18, 2010. The
County thought it could just do a Quit-Claim deed but the Gila County Attorney's office believes we should go
through the Title Insurance for a warranty deed. This amount plus closing costs will come from the Transportation
Half-Cent Excise Tax Fund.

Conclusion
In order for the Monroe Street realignment to go forward, these pieces of property are an integral part of that project
and without them the County can't realign the road. For public and employee safety the County wants to get the
project underway by next summer.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division requests that the Board approve the purchase of the Jack-in-the-Box properties for the
Monroe Street realignment in the amount of $18,000 plus closing fees.

Suggested Motion
Information/ Discussion/ Action to approve the purchase of parcel no. 205-14-035E and a portion of parcel no.
205-14-035C from Jack-in-the-Box Inc. in the amount of $18,000 plus closing fees for the Monroe Street
realignment project. (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Appraisal
Link: Letter of Intent to Purchase
Link: Record of Survey
Link: Legal Desc of Partial Parcel
Link: Legal Desc of Entire Partial

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- G     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director
Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

9/30/2010-9/30/2011 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information
Request/Subject
2011 annual Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO1103-1200-010 with USDA, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest,
for road maintenance.

Background Information
The Board of Supervisors approved the Forest Development Road Cooperative Master Agreement on September 30,
2009, which allows the Gila County Public Works Division the ability to continue providing maintenance on Tonto
National Forest Service roads until September 30, 2014. 

This attached U.S. Forest Service Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-010 is the FY11 Annual Maintenance Plan for
the provision of routine maintenance on these Tonto National Forest Service roads.

Evaluation
This Agreement is done annually to provide for the routine maintenance on Forest Service roads.

Conclusion
This Agreement is necessary to provide routine maintenance on Forest Service roads.  It is also requested that the
Board of Supervisors provide Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, the authority to sign any required
modifications, under the amount of $50,000 for the FY11 Annual Maintenance Plan on Tonto National Forest
Service roads.

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors sign U.S. Forest Service
Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-010 for the FY11 Annual Maintenance Plan for routine maintenance on Tonto
National Forest Service roads, with approval for the Public Works Division Director to sign modifications under
$50,000.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO-11031200-010 between the United
States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest, and Gila County for FY11 annual
maintenance on Tonto National Forest Service roads in the amount of $72,114 through September 30, 2011, and
with approval for Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, to sign modifications under $50,000.  (Steve
Stratton)

Attachments
Link: FS Agreement

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- H     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir
Submitted By: Debra Williams, Emergency Management
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2011 or after Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

contract begins FEMA award letter date & ends 3 yrs after 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

Yes Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-January 2010 Buy-Out Project

Background Information
As a result of rain and flooding in January 2010, Presidential Disaster Declaration #1888 authorized the FEMA
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to be administered by the State of Arizona Division of Emergency
Management. The HMGP provides federal funding for projects that will: 1. reduce the effects of natural hazards
and/or vulnerabilities and, 2. meet State and Federal mitigation goals. Funding is provided to eligible applicants
competitively with a cost share of 75%-Federal; 25% Applicant. Applicants may use soft, or in-kind, costs to meet
the 25% match.

Evaluation
January 2010 winter storms resulted in severe flood damages for Gila County residents.  Since the event,
Emergency Management personnel have been in contact with at least 9 homeowners that specifically expressed
interest in a property buy out program.  As of December 15, 2010, four (4) homeowners have returned an original
signed copy of the "Homeowner Interest Sign-up Sheet and Voluntary Notice" necessary to begin a FEMA HMGP
application for acquisition of property for open-space purposes.  The "Homeowner Interest Sign-up Sheet and
Voluntary Notice" signifies a homeowners VOLUNTARY participation in the application process and is not an
obligation on the homeowner or the county.

The intent of open-space acquisition from willing sellers is to maintain the property in perpetuity for uses
compatible with open space, recreational, or wetlands management practices consistent with conservation of
natural floodplain functions by recording deed restrictions consistent with the FEMA Model Deed Restriction.
Therefore, acquisition of these four (4) properties will result in reduced and/or elimination of future flood risk to
homeowner life and property, safety risk to emergency responders during flood events and reduced cost of
community recovery.

Conclusion
The likelihood of future damage from flood events is rated by the location of a property in the flood zone. Three (3)
out of four (4) properties are located in the AE zone-areas subject to inundation by 1-percent-annual-chance flood
event; one (1) property is in a location currently rated as D zone-undetermined but possible flood hazard. However,
this property has a documented history of significant flooding at least twice in the past 7 years and is located
adjacent to 3 properties that were acquired by Gila County after a 2003 monsoon event caused severe flood damage
to a Roosevelt neighborhood.

The estimated total cost of this project is based on FEMA approval of four (4) property acquisitions and the
estimated Current Market Value of acquisitions plus the estimated of site demolition, restoration and stabilization:
$464,492.00 (75% Federal Share = $348369.00; County Share = $116,123.00).
Project funding is available from the date of a FEMA award letter. Projects must be completed within 3 years.
Matching funds may not be expended prior to the date of a FEMA award letter.

Recommendation
The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize Emergency
Management to submit an application for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding for FEMA
Mitigation-January 2010 Buy-Out Project in the amount of $464,492.  The mitigation grant will begin on the date
of the FEMA award letter and end 3 years from that date.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department to submit a



Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department to submit a
FEMA Mitigation-January 2010 Buy-Out Project Grant Application to the Arizona Division of Emergency
Management for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funds in the amount of $464,492.   (Matthew Bolinger)

Attachments
Link: Project Estimates
Link: Project Solicitation
Link: Grant Application for parcel 201-06-156F
Link: Grant Application for parcel 204-03-051B
Link: Grant Application for parcel 201-14-018D
Link: Grant Application for parcel 201-10-090

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- I     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir
Submitted By: Debra Williams, Emergency Management
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2011 or after Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Begins on date of FEMA award ltr & ends 3 yrs after 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

Yes Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Matt Bolinger 

Information
Request/Subject
FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Vertical Heights Road Repair Project

Background Information
As a result of rain and flooding in January 2010, Presidential Disaster Declaration #1888 authorized the FEMA
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to be administered by the State of Arizona Division of Emergency
Management.  The HMGP provides federal funding for projects that will: 1. reduce the effects of natural hazards
and/or vulnerabilities and, 2. meet State and Federal mitigation goals.  Funding is provided to eligible applicants
competitively with a cost share of 75%-Federal; 25% Applicant.  Applicants may use soft, or in-kind, costs to meet
the 25% match.

Evaluation
During a heavy rainfall event in January 2010, a portion of County-maintained gravel surface road, Vertical
Heights in Globe, Arizona, was subjected to extensive erosion of the existing roadway fill zone (north of the roadway
centerline).  This erosive condition resulted in slope and/or toe failure of the roadway embankment and a full land
width portion of the roadway was lost.  The previous two-lane gravel surface roadway is now reduced to a single
lane that serves a portion of the area known as Vertical Heights, leaving no secondary access into the area.  Unless
a proper mitigation measure is installed, future damage to the roadway will result in limited or permanent loss of
access.  Traffic safety under the current condition should be considered hazardous.

Based on Gila County Public Works-Engineering conceptual analysis, two mitigation repair measures are currently
being considered.  Additional analyses including topographic survey and geotechnical study will be required to
assist in determination of the final mitigation project. 

Conclusion
A Project Solicitation form for this project was forwarded to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for an
estimated amount of $350,000.00 and an HMGP application was recommended.  Should the final project reach the
full $350,000.00 estimate, the 75% Federal share will be $262,500.00 and the 25% County share will be $87,500.00.

Project funding is available from the date of a FEMA award letter. Projects must be completed within 3 years.
Matching funds may not be expended prior to the date of a FEMA award letter.

Recommendation
The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends the Board of Supervisors authorize Emergency
Management to submit an application in the amount of $350,000.00 for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program
funding for the repair of Vertical Heights Road.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department approval to
submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Vertical Heights Road Repair Project to the Arizona Division of
Emergency Management for a grant request totalling $350,000. (Matthew Bolinger)

Attachments
Link: HMGP Application
Link: Funding Availability
Link: Location Map
Link: Picture1
Link: Picture2



Link: Picture3

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- J     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir
Submitted By: Debra Williams, Emergency Management
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2011 or after Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Begins on date of FEMA award ltr & ends 3 yrs after 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

Yes Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Matthew Bolinger 

Information
Request/Subject
FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Individual Flood Insurance and Mitigation Outreach Project

Background Information
As a result of rain and flooding in January 2010, Presidential Disaster Declaration #1888 authorized the FEMA
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to be administered by the State of Arizona Division of Emergency
Management. The HMGP provides federal funding for projects that will: 1. reduce the effects of natural hazards
and/or vulnerabilities and, 2. meet State and Federal mitigation goals. Funding is provided to eligible applicants
competitively with a cost share of 75%-Federal; 25% Applicant. Applicants may use soft, or in-kind, costs to meet
the 25% match.

Evaluation
Gila County Emergency Management proposes to initiate an education program that will provide information to
residents living in identified flood risk areas. The scope of this project will include individual contact with residents
living in the most flood prone areas of the County to provide information about the National Flood Insurance
Program and possible flood mitigation projects related to their specific property. To accomplish this project we will
submit an HMGP application to hire a Flood Mitigation Analyst for a period of 18 months.  The standard application
form is attached, however is not complete due to its educational nature. 

Conclusion
The hire of personnel specifically dedicated to one-on-one public interface and outreach is anticipated to generate
an increase in public knowledge, awareness and personal investment on how to best prepare for and reduce the
risk of flood related damage on their property. 

An HMGP award for this position would provide 75% federal match of $52,218.75 over an 18-month period. The
25% county match would be $17,406.25.

Project funding is available from the date of a FEMA award letter. Projects must be completed within 3 years.
Matching funds may not be expended prior to the date of a FEMA award letter.

Recommendation
The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends the Board of Supervisors authorize Emergency
Management to submit an application for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding for the hire of a Flood
Mitigation Analyst for total wages of $69,625.00 over an 18-month period.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department to submit a
FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Individual Flood Insurance and Mitigation Outreach Project to the Arizona
Division of Emergency Management for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding in the amount of $69,625
for the hire of a Flood Mitigation Analyst for an 18-month period.  (Matthew Bolinger)

Attachments
Link: HMGP Application

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  3- K     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir
Submitted By: Debra Williams, Emergency Management
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2011 and after Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Begins on date of FEMA award ltr; ends 3 yrs after 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

Yes Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Matthew Bolinger 

Information
Request/Subject
FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Elevation Project

Background Information
As a result of rain and flooding in January 2010, Presidential Disaster Declaration #1888 authorized the FEMA
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) to be administered by the State of Arizona Division of Emergency
Management. The HMGP provides federal funding for projects that will: 1. reduce the effects of natural hazards
and/or vulnerabilities and, 2. meet State and Federal mitigation goals, which can include private properties.

Funding is provided to eligible applicants competitively with a cost share of 75%-Federal; 25% Applicant. Applicants
may use soft or in-kind costs to meet the 25% match.

Evaluation
Mr. & Mrs. Roy Goodwin of Tonto Basin acquired a 24' x 60' manufactured home and placed the home on their
existing property.  The Goodwin property is currently located in FEMA Flood Zone AE-areas subject to inundation
by 1-percent-annual-chance flood event.  The home in question currently does not meet FEMA or Gila County
Floodplain management codes.  

To date, estimates for work needed to elevate the home to code compliance are approximately $50,000.00.  The
Goodwins have reported their sole income to be Social Security Disability and payment to accomplish code
compliance represents a severe financial burden.

The cost share for this project will be Federal 75% (estimated $37,500.00) and non-Federal 25% (estimated
$12,500.00). Due to the nature of this mitigation project, the owners, as beneficiaries of federal mitigation funds,
must provide the non-Federal 25% match requirement. Proof of Funding for the match will be required prior to any
recommendation to the Board of Supervisors to accept a mitigation grant awarded as a result of this application.
Due to the complexities of the application process the homeowners could have several years to establish the
matching funds prior an award.

Additionally, the property is subject to the following deed restrictions: Owners of a structure elevated with funding
from the HMGP must maintain an NFIP policy for the life of the structure; use of the structure’s ground floor must
be maintained as open space, and any ground flood structure must be NFIP compliant. A sample model deed
restriction is attached.
 

Conclusion
Emergency Management is develping an application on behalf of the Goodwins for assistance under the FEMA
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program for several reasons. An HMGP is only available after a federally declared disaster
and the program can provide funds for homeowners who did not have a National Flood Insurance Program policy in
place at the time of the declared disaster.  There is no other federal mitigation program that provides this
opportunity.  The last federally declared disaster that triggered a Hazard Mitigation Grant Program that included
Gila County was in 2005.

Recommendation
The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize Emergency
Management to submit an application for FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Elevation Project funding in the
amount of $50,000. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department to submit a



Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County Emergency Management Department to submit a
FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-Elevation Project to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding in the amount of $50,000.  (Matthew Bolinger)

Attachments
Link: HMGP 1888 Fact Sheet
Link: AE Zone Firmette
Link: Standard Flood Hazard Determination
Link: Sample Deed Restriction
Link: Goodwin Elevation Project Grant Application

 



       Item #:  3- L     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Presenter's Name: Marian Sheppard 

Information
Request/Subject
Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest Policy annual reminder.

Background Information
On December 13, 2005, the Board of Supervisors adopted policy number BOS-4-2005 - DISCLOSURE OF
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  This policy applies to all public officers and employees of Gila County.  This policy was
adopted in accordance with Arizona Revised Statutes 38-501 and 38-511.  Arizona law requires that any Gila
County officer or employee who has, or whose relative has, a substantial interest in any contract, sale, purchase,
service or decision of Gila County to make the interest known in the County's official records; and to refrain from
any participation in an official capacity in the contract, sale, purchase, service or decision.  (A.R.S. § 38-501 et
seq.). Employee includes all persons employed on a full-time, part-time and contract basis.

The object of conflict of interest statutes is to remove or limit the possibility of personal influence which might bear
upon an official’s decision.

Evaluation
Section III-Elected Official or Departmental Responsibility states "Note:  Each year during the first regularly
scheduled meeting of the Board of Supervisors, the Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors will remind each
elected official and division director to communicate this policy to their employees."

Conclusion
It is appropriate at this time for the Chief Deputy Clerk to issue this reminder to all elected officials and division
heads to remind their employees of this countywide policy.

Recommendation
The Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors (BOS) recommends that this reminder be provided during the
first regularly scheduled BOS meeting of 2011 in accordance with Gila County policy number BOS-4-2005..

Suggested Motion
Presentation of information related to Gila County Policy No. BOS-4-2005, Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest, with a
reminder to each elected official and division/department director to communicate said policy to their employees. 
(Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
Link: Policy BOS-4-2005

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- A     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Dec. 18, 2010, to Dec. 17, 2011 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1 Chips and ABC for the Copper Region to extend the contract for one
year.

Background Information
Effective August 17, 2009 Gila County and CEMEX entered into a contract whereby CEMEX provides 3/8" chips
and ABC to various locations in the Copper Region of Gila County.  The contract expires on December 17, 2010. 
Amendment No. 1 will extend that date to December 17, 2011.

Evaluation
Per Section 2.2 of Contract 050709-1, the County shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the contract for
chips and ABC for two additional one-year periods.  This would be the first of the two years.  All terms,
conditions and provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period.

Conclusion
The Consolidated Roads Department requires chips and ABC in order to maintain roads in Gila County.  Extending
Contract 050709-1 with CEMEX would provide these products for the Copper Region for one more year.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the extension of contract 050709-1 chips
and ABC Copper Region to December 17, 2011.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1 between Gila County and
CEMEX to extend the Contract, per Section 2.2, from the period December 18, 2010, to December 17, 2011; and to
provide for the purchase of 3/8" chips and ABC, all of which are used in the Copper Region of Gila County.

Attachments
Link: Amendment #1 050709-1
Link: Contract 050709-1

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- B     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

1-5-2011 to 1-4-2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 6500.505/01-2010 with Sheldon Miller.

Background Information
Effective January 5, 2010, Gila County and Sheldon Miller entered into a contract whereby Mr. Miller agreed to
assist the County concerning coordination of various highway projects in the State of Arizona with the Arizona
Department of Transportation (ADOT) and all eligible cities and towns. The contract expires January 5, 2011. 
Amendment No. 1 will extend that date to January 4, 2012.

Evaluation
Per Article I, Acitivity 5, of the Contract, the County shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the contract
period with mutual agreement of both parties for two more additional one year periods.  All terms, conditions and
provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period.

Conclusion
With extension approval of the contract the Consultant will assist the County by providing consulting services for
various highway projects in Arizona and with the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) for a period of one
more year.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division recommends the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract
6500.505/01-2010 Sheldon Miller Professional Consulting Services to extend the contract for a one year period.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Professional Consulting Services Contract
No. 6500.505/01-2010 between Gila County and Sheldon Miller to extend the Contract, per Article I, Activity
5, from the period January 5, 2011, to January 4, 2012, to provide consulting services for various highway projects
in Arizona and with the Arizona Department of Transportation. 

Attachments
Link: Amendment #1
Link: Contract 6500.505/01-2010

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- C     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Robert Hickman,

Facilities Manager
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Facilities

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Jan 12, 2011 to Jan 11, 2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 100109-01R Automated Vending Machine Services with Swire Coca-Cola.

Background Information
Effective January 12, 2010, Gila County and Swire Coca-Cola entered into a contract whereby Swire Coca-Cola
agreed to provide automated vending machine services to Gila County facilites in Globe and Payson.  The contract
expires on January 12, 2011.  Amendment No. 1 will extend the contract through January 11, 2012.

Evaluation
Per Article III of Contract No. 100109-01R, the contract may be renewed by mutual agreement of both parties for
four additional one-year periods.  This would be the first of those four year periods.  All terms, conditions, and
provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period.

Conclusion
The continuation of this contract will allow the vendor to provide automated vending machine service to several
County facilities located in Globe and Payson.

Recommendation
The Gila County Facilities and Land Managment Department recommends the Board of Supervisors approve
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 100109-01R to extend automated vending machine services to Gila County
facilities for one additional year.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 100109-01R between Gila County
and Swire Coca-Cola to extend the Contract, per Article III, from January 12, 2011, to January 11, 2012, to provide
automated vending machine services to Gila County facilities.

Attachments
Link: Amendment #1 Contract 100109-01R
Link: Contract 100109-01R

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- D     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

Nov 3, 2009 to Nov 3, 2011 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D for New Bridge Over Tonto Creek Engineering Services to move
forward with Phase II of the project and add new Scope of Services, Design and Cost Summary.

Background Information
Effective November 3, 2009, Gila County and Kimley-Horn and Associates entered into a contract whereby
Kimley-Horn agreed to provide Professional Engineering Services for the Tonto Creek Bridge Project.  The project
consisted of two Phases.  Phase I of the project is nearing completion and the County has authorized the Engineer
to move forward with Phase II per Article IX of the contract.

Evaluation
Per Article IX, Phase II , scope and fee may be renegotiated and additional or deleted work, as agreed upon and
authorized by the County, will be performed per a mutually agreed upon scope and fee between the County and
Engineer.  Engineer will proceed only as individual tasks are authorized by the County Public Works Director. 
Federal funds, which are the primary source of funding the project, will allow geotechnical investigations to proceed
prior to issuance of the Enviornmental Analysis (EA), but will not allow the other tasks to move forward until the
EA is approved.  The attached scope of Work and Cost Proposal Summary by reference are made a part of the
amendment as to the same extent as set forth in full.

Conclusion
The original cost of Phase II had an authorized budget of $747,309.  After completion of Phase I it was necessary to
modify the design and scope of work resulting in a cost increase to complete Phase II.  Per the existing
Intergovernmental Agreement with the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT), the Federal Highway
Administration (FHWA) will fund 94% ($895,842) and the County will fund 5.7% ($54,150).  There is sufficient
FHWA funding available in the existing agreement for Phase II and the County also has sufficient funds available
for its share.  
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D will allow for an increase of $202,683 with a Phase II completed
authorized budget of $949,992.

Changes in project from original assumptions:
Kimley-Horn: $527,309 to $682,730
• Tonto Creek Bridge went from 1620-ft to 1980-ft length
• Modified Store (the Recommended Alternative)includes re-profiling of Old Hwy 188 and reconstruction of Tonto
National Forest Reno Admin site driveway
• Added a necessary drainage structure (Bridge) at Oak Creek for transsportation system connectivity
• Added roadway improvements to Cline Blvd (near Oak Creek)for transsportation system connectivity
• Added drainage analysis and plans for Oak Creek for transsportation system connectivity
AMEC: $200,000 to $227,262
• Added 5 additional borings at Oak Creek
Survey (AZTEC): $10,000 to $30,000
• Added full right-of-way plans/mapping
• Added pot holing for utilities along Old Hwy 188

Recommendation
The Public Works Division recommends the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No.
SS71803D with Kimley-Horn and Associates for the Professional Engineering Services of Phase II on the New Bridge
over Tonto Creek.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D between Gila County



Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. SS71803D between Gila County
and Kimley-Horn and Associates in the amount of $949,992 to approve Phase II scope, design, and cost proposal
per Article IX of the contract for Professional Engineering Services on the New Bridge Over Tonto Creek project for
the period November 3, 2009, through November 3, 2011.

Attachments
Link: Amendment #1 to Contract SS71803D
Link: Original Contract # SS71803D

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- E     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Paula Horn, Health Programs Coordinator
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Health & Community Services Division
Department:

Fiscal Year: 01-01-11 through 12-31-11 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

01-01-11 through 12-31-11 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. HG861265 with Arizona Department of Health Services.

Background Information
Intergovenmental Agreement contract #HG861265 Amendment 3 with Arizona Department of Health Services is an
amendment to extend current Teen Pregnancy Prevention program.  Gila County has provided these services since
2008.  The amendment will extend the services from January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2011 in the amount of
135,003.00.

Evaluation
Gila County ranks in the top three for teen pregnancy in the State of Arizona.  Without this funding provided by
the Arizona Department of Helath Services we would be unable to address this issue.  Gila County currently has
one program manager, one accounting clerk and two community health assistant seniors working on this
program.  With the funding the Division of Health and Emergency Services are able to provide a multi-facited
program.

Conclusion
This funding is neccessary to continue to provide the teen pregnancy prevention services.

Recommendation
Approval of the Intergovenmental Agreement contract #HG861265 Amendment 3 with Arizona Department of
Health Services from 01-01-11 through 12-31-11 in the amount of 135,003.00.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. HG861265 between Gila County and the
Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $135,003 to extend the Teen Pregnancy Prevention
program for the period of January 1, 2011, 
through December 31, 2011.

Attachments
Link: Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. HG861265
Link: Original Grant Contract No. HG861265

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- F     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Clerk of the Superior Court
Department: Clerk of the Superior Court

Fiscal Year: July 2010 - June 2011 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

October 1, 2010 - September 30, 2015 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE11117001 between Gila County and the Arizona Department of
Economic Security to facilitate the use of a Family Law Commissioner for the period October 1, 2010, through
September 30, 2015.

Background Information
The Clerk of the Superior Court contracts with the Arizona Department of
Economic Security for partial reimbursement of the Family Law Commissioner, partial court staff, and other
indirect costs. 

Evaluation
The Intergovernmental Agreement contract allows the Clerk of the Superior Court to file for reimbursement of 66%
of all monies disbursed through the Family Law Commissioner program.  The State also awards the indirect costs
on salaries which make up for the 66% reimbursement and this results in the County earning revenue.

Conclusion
The State mandates, Statute 25.5-10, that the Clerk of the Superior Court shall have Child Support Enforcement.

Recommendation
The Clerk of the Superior Court recommends approval of this Intergovernmental Agreement in order to continue the
services to facilitate the use of a Family Law Commissioner. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE111170001 between Gila County and the Arizona Department of
Economic Security to facilitate the use of a Family Law Commissioner for the period October 1, 2010, through
September 30, 2015. 

Attachments
Link: IGA FOR FAMILY LAW

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  4- G     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Submitted For: Linda Rodriguez, Administrative Manager
Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, Emergency Management
Department: County Manager
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of a request for a waiver of fees by Lani Hall to use the Fairground’s Exhibit Hall or other areas at the
Fairgrounds for 2011 4-H activities.

Background Information
The U of A Cooperative Extension Office has, for many years, provided a variety of 4-H Programs to the youth of
Southern Gila County.  In the past, the Board of Supervisors has authorized this waiver of fees for all 4-H activities
because there is no funding available to pay facility rental fees for the 4-H organization to use the rodeo arena,
barn, and exhibit hall, and other Fairground areas.  There is no conflict with scheduled events and arrangements
for any additional  or canceled events will be coordinated through Linda Rodriguez, Administrative Manager, in
order to avoid double booking of events.  Insurance Certificate has been submitted for all 4-H activities up through
March 1, 2014.

Evaluation
The use of the Fairground’s facility will give the Southern Gila County 4-H Program a place for the youth of our
community to emerge as leaders through hands-on learning and adult mentorship.

Conclusion
This waiver of fees would greatly assist the U of A Cooperative Extension Office financially so that the youth could
continue to receive 4-H Programs services in Southern Gila County.

Recommendation
The recommendation is to approve the waiver of fees for the use of the Fairground for all 4-H activities in 2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a request for a waiver of fees submitted by Lani Hall, on behalf of the U of A Gila County Cooperative
Extension Office - 4-H Program, for the use of the Fairground’s Exhibit Hall  and/or other areas at the Fairgrounds
for all Gila County 4-H activities in 2011.

Attachments
Link: 4-H Application
Link: 4-H Waiver Request
Link: 4-H Event Schedule

 



    Item #:  4- H     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Reporting Period: BOS Meeting Minutes for July 6, 2010
Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer, Deputy

Clerk, BOS
Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer, Clerk of the

Board of Supervisors

Information
Subject
BOS Meeting Minutes for July 6, 2010.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the July 6, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.

Attachments
Link: BOS Meeting Minutes for 07/06/10

 



    Item #:  4- I     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Reporting Period: Clerk of the Superior Court's Report for the Month of October 2010
Submitted For: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of Court Monthly Report for October 2010

Suggested Motion
Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court.

Attachments
Link: Clerk of Court Monthly Report Oct. 2010

 



    Item #:  4- J     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Reporting Period: Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for October 2010
Submitted For: Kimberly Rust, Constable

Clerk
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable -

Globe

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for October 2010

Suggested Motion
Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe Regional Constable.

Attachments
Link: Globe Constable Report 10/10

 



    Item #:  4- K     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Reporting Period: Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010
Submitted For: Kimberly Rust, Constable

Clerk
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable -

Globe

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010

Suggested Motion
Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe Regional Constable

Attachments
Link: Globe Regional Constable Report for 11/10

 



    Item #:  4- L     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Reporting Period: Payson Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010
Submitted For: Samuel Brewer, Payson Regional Constable
Submitted By: Cheryle Wood, Constable - Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable Monthly Report for November 2010

Suggested Motion
Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson Regional Constable.

Attachments
Link: Payson Regional Constable November 2010 Monthly Report

 



    Item #:  4- M     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Reporting Period: Recorder's Office Monthly Report for November 2010
Submitted For: Dawn Caldera, Chief

Deputy Recorder
Submitted By: Dawn Caldera, Recorder's

Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for November 2010

Suggested Motion
Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Link: Recorder's November 2010 Monthly Report

 



    Item #:  4- N     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Reporting Period: Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Reports for October & November 2010
Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Superior Court

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Reports for October and November 2010.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the October and November 2010 monthly departmental activity reports submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace.

Attachments
Link: Globe Regional JP October 2010 Monthly Report
Link: Globe Regional JP November 2010 Monthly Report

 



    Item #:  4- O     
Regular BOS Meeting
Date: 01/04/2011  
Reporting Period: Personnel Report for the weeks of 12/21/10, 12/28/10 and 01/04/11
Submitted For: Erica Raymond, Personnel

Assistant
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Deputy

County Manager

Information
Subject
Personnel Report for the weeks of 12/21/10, 12/28/10 and 01/04/11

Suggested Motion
Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of December 21, 2010, December 28, 2010, and January 4, 2011.

Attachments
Link: 12/21/10 Personnel Agenda
Link: 12/28/10 Personnel Agenda
Link: 01/04/10 Personnel Agenda

AgendaQuick©2005 - 2011 Destiny Software Inc., All Rights Reserved















   

ARF-803     Consent Agenda Item      5- P             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Health & Emergency
Services Division Director

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Health & Emergency
Services Division

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Emergency Services
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Notice of Intent to Abandon a Well located at 668 N. Shady Lane, Tonto Basin

Background Information
This well is located on property acquired by the County as part of a FEMA funded flood mitigation project in Tonto
Basin. 

Evaluation
The mitigation grant requires that all structures, utilities and wells on this property be demolished and the land
returned to natural state in perpetuity.

Conclusion
Abandonment of the well is required before the well can be capped and associated equipment moved, per mitigation
grant guidelines for acquisition and demolition.

Recommendation
The Director of Health & Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors authorize the Chairman's
signature on Form 55-38, Arizona Department of Water Resources Notice of Intent to Abandon a Well, as part of a
FEMA funded flood mitigation project located at 668 N. Shady Lane, Tonto Basin, Arizona.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Form 55-38, Arizona Department of Water Resources Notice of Intent
to Abandon a Well, as part of a FEMA funded flood mitigation project located at 668 N. Shady Lane, Tonto Basin,
Arizona.

Attachments
NOI to Abandon a Well







   

ARF-795     Consent Agenda Item      5- Q             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Darryl Griffin, IT Director Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Information Technology

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

8-4-2011 to 8-3-2012 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Radvision Maintenance Agreement Renewal with Quagga

Background Information
Last year Gila County Information Technology deployed an upgraded video solution to support multipoint calling,
high definition resolution, as well as desktop video, phone integration, and secure firewall traversal.

Evaluation
The maintenance renewal agreement with Quagga will cover all hardware, software, support and replacement as
well as any code upgrades.

Conclusion
The renewal of this agreement will allow maintenance of the Radvision system for one more year at a cost of $13,750.

Recommendation
The I.T. Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the Radvision Maintenance Agreement
Renewal with Quagga for a one year term.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a Radvision Maintenance Renewal Agreement between Gila County and Quagga for video conferencing
service and upgrades from August 4, 2011, to August 3, 2012, in the amount of $13,750 per year.

Attachments
Maintenance Agreement Renewal Quagga
Original Quagga Agreement











































































   

ARF-789     Consent Agenda Item      5- R             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Linda
Eastlick,
Elections
Director

Submitted By:

David Rogers, Elections Department

Department: Elections Department
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board
Members' Resignation and Appointment

Background Information
ARS 48-1012(C) provides that if there is a vacancy in the district board due to
resignation, the district board shall accept the resignation and appoint a qualifed
elector to fill the remaining portion of that term of office.

Evaluation
At the Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District (RTDWID) governing board
meeting of July 24, 2011, the governing board accepted the resignation of Harry D.
Jones effective July 21, 2011, and agreed that J. P. "Buddy" Rice should be appointed
to complete Mr. Jones' term of office which expires December 31, 2012.

Conclusion
Mr. Rice has agreed to serve out the term of Mr. Jones.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the resignation of Harry
D. Jones and the appointment of J.P. "Buddy" Rice as the new governing board
member of the RTDWID to fill Mr. Jones' unexpired term of office.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgement of Harry D. Jones' resignation from the Rim Trail Domestic Water
Improvement District governing board effective July 21, 2011, and the appointment of
Mr. J.P. "Buddy" Rice to complete Mr. Jones' unexpired term of office through
December 31, 2012.

Attachments
ARS 48-1012
Rim Trail DWID Resignation-Oath-Minutes



         

48-1012. Elected board of directors; initial members; qualifications; terms; filling 
vacancy; chairperson; qualifications of electors 
A. At the option of the board of supervisors after presentation of a petition requesting 
the establishment of a domestic water improvement district or a domestic wastewater 
improvement district, or upon the submission of a separate petition following the 
establishment of an improvement district as prescribed by section 48-903, and 
subsequent to the approval of the county board of supervisors, the district shall be 
governed by an elected board of directors. The elected board shall consist of the 
number of members, not less than three, specified in the petition for establishment of 
the district. The first directors of such board shall be selected by the board of 
supervisors at the time the district is established. Members of the board of directors 
shall be qualified electors of the district and, after the members first appointed by the 
board of supervisors, shall be elected by the qualified electors of the district. 
B. Immediately after the selection and qualification of the first directors of the board, 
the directors shall meet and divide themselves by lot into two classes as nearly equal 
in number as possible. Directors of the first class shall serve for a term of four years, 
and directors of the second class shall serve for a term of two years. Every director 
shall continue to discharge the duties of office until a successor is appointed and 
qualifies. Thereafter, at each regular election, one director for each expired term shall 
be elected and shall hold office for a term of four years, and until a successor is 
elected and qualifies. The dates of elections and of expiration of terms shall be 
specified in the petition for establishment of the district. 
C. If a vacancy in the district board occurs due to death or disability or any other 
cause other than resignation, the board of directors of the district shall appoint a 
qualified elector of the district to fill the office for the remaining portion of that term. 
If there is a vacancy in the district board due to resignation, the district board shall 
accept the resignation and appoint a qualified elector to fill the remaining portion of 
that term of office. If the district board lacks a quorum for any reason for more than 
thirty days, the county board of supervisors may revoke the authority of the 
appointed or elected board of directors pursuant to section 48-1016. 
D. The board of directors shall annually elect a chairperson from among its members. 
E. If only one person files or no person files a nominating petition for election to fill a 
position on the board of directors of the district, the county board of supervisors, by 
resolution, may cancel the election for that office and appoint the person who filed the 
nominating petition to fill that position. If no person files a nominating petition for an 
election to fill a district board office, the county board of supervisors, by resolution, 
may cancel the election for those offices and those offices are deemed vacant and 
shall be filled as otherwise provided by law. A person who is appointed pursuant to 
this section is fully vested with the powers and duties of the office as if elected to that 
office. 
F. For the purposes of either a domestic water improvement district or a domestic 
wastewater improvement district that is organized pursuant to this article and that 
serves at the time of organization a population of ten thousand persons or less 
according to the most recent United States decennial census, in addition to any other 
qualified elector of the district, any natural person who is a qualified elector of this 
state and who is a real property owner within the district is eligible to vote in a district 
election without regard to that person's residency and shall be deemed a qualified 
elector of the district for purposes of service on the board of directors.  

Page 1 of 1Format Document

8/17/2011http://www.azleg.gov/FormatDocument.asp?format=print&inDoc=/ars/48/01012.htm&Titl...















   

ARF-814     Consent Agenda Item      5- S             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Chief
Deputy
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By:

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Lions Club Special Event Liquor License Applications for September 22,
2011, September 24, 2011, and October 1, 2011.

Background Information
A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event
for up to 10 days per year.  The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(Department) approves all liquor-related applications; however, part of the
Department's process requires that the local governing body review the application
and submit a recommendation for approval or disapproval to the Department for any
establishment located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation
The Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed the applications and has
determined that they have been filled out correctly.

Conclusion
This charitable organization has properly completed the applications and if the Board
of Supervisors approves the applications, the Lions Club of Globe, Arizona, will have
used 7 days of the allowable 10 days to serve liquor at a special event in 2011. 
(Previously approved for the dates in 2011, as follows:  2/12, 3/19, 5/14, and 8/27.)

Recommendation
The Deputy Clerk recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve these
applications.  Upon approval, the applicant has the responsibility to submit the
applications to the Department for its final approval.

Suggested Motion
Approval of three Special Event Liquor License Applications submitted by the Lions
Club of Globe, Arizona, Inc. to serve liquor on September 22, 2011, at the Gila County
Fair Beef Cook-Off; September 24, 2011, for the Gila County Fair Concert; and
October 1, 2011, for the Miami High School Class Reunion. 

Attachments



Attachments
Lion's Club Liq Lic App for 9/22/11
Lion's Club Liq Lic App for 9/24/11
Lion's Club Liq Lic App for 10/1/11



























   

ARF-815     Consent Agenda Item      5- T             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Marian
Sheppard,
Chief
Deputy
Clerk, BOS

Submitted By:

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Rimside Grill & Cabins' Application for a Temporary Extension of Patio/Premises
Permit

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an Application
for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing body of the city, town or
county where the establishment is located.  The application can be submitted to
temporarily or permanently extend the premises/patio where serving liquor is
permitted by the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control
(Department).  The local governing body usually has established internal
procedures for review and approval of the application.  The Department has final
approval of all recommendations submitted by the local governing body.  

Tamara Morken of HTNB Ventures, LLC dba Rimside Grill & Cabins submitted an
application to temporarily extend the premises/patio of the Rimside Grill for the
following events:  September 17, 2011 - 5th annual Justice McNealy Children's
501(3)(C) Charity Event, and October 1, 2011 - 8th annual Octoberfest to benefit the
Pine-Strawberry Fuels Reduction Project.

Evaluation
The application has been reviewed by the Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board, and staff of
the Community Development Division have viewed the proposed extended area
for liquor to be served on the requested dates.

Conclusion
This application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a decision. 
The Board's recommendation will then be sent to the Department for a final decision.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval recommendation
to the Department.

Suggested Motion



Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit submitted by
Tamara Morken of HTNB Ventures, LLC dba Rimside Grill & Cabins to temporarily
extend the Rimside Grill patio area in order to serve liquor in that area on September
17, 2011, and October 1, 2011, during special charity events.

Attachments
Rimside Grill Patio Ext. Application
Rimside Grill-Comm. Dev. Approval











   

ARF-821     Consent Agenda Item      5- U             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton,
Public Works

Submitted By: Diana Jones, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration
Presenter's Name: 

Information
Request/Subject
Ratify the Board of Supervisors' approval of 2 applications sent electronically for Arizona
Public Service Solar for Schools and Government Program.

Background Information
On April 19, 2011, the Board authorized the Chairman's signature on seven applications
(Globe Courthouse, Guerrero Complex, Public Works Building, Central Heights Facility, and
three locations at the Payson Courthouse) that were submitted to the Arizona Public Service
(APS) Schools and Government Program for solar energy funding in coordination with PV
Advanced Concepts. 

On May 26, 2011, the Board received confirmation that APS had approved and reserved
funding for the Globe Courthouse application. On June 28, 2011, the Board approved the
Solar Renewable Energy Credit Purchase Agreement (APS Contract #17914) for the Globe
Courthouse application. 

In July, the Public Works Division received information that additional funding was available
for the Arizona Public Service Schools and Government Program for solar energy funding. New
applications were done for the Public Works Building and the Central Heights Facility and the
applications were submitted electronically.

To apply for the additional funding at the Central Heights Facility Public Works had to obtain
a lease extension for an additional 10 years until 2031 and the APS Landlord/Tenant Rider.
On August 15, 2011, the Board approved Amendment No. 1 to extend the Ground Lease and
Use Agreement -Central Heights Complex with MUSD (Miami Unified School District) for an
additional 10 years, and the APS Landlord/Tenant Rider.

Evaluation
The difference between the applications approved on April 19th and the current attached
applications for the Public Works Building and the Central Heights Facility are as follows: 

Central Heights Facility:

Page 2 of 8 the installer information has changed from Renewable Energy Contracting division
of Ironco Enterprises to Kitchell Contractors Inc. of Arizona.
The estimated installation date has changed from 7/11/2011 to 4/1/2012.

Page 3 of 8 the estimated number of PV panels has changed from 786 to 658. 
PV module manufacturer from Kyocera to Trina Solar. Model# from KD235gx.LB to TSM-PC14.
DC Watt rating per panel from 235 to 280. Estimated # of inverters from 1 to 2.
Model# from PVP250WAC to (1)PVP75kW-480 (1)PVP100kW-480. UL Listing from 19940 to
1741.



AC Watt rating from 250 to (1)75kW-AC (1)100kW-AC
Estimated cost from $1,850,000 to $1,780,106
Most recent 12 month usage from 351760 to 352080
Highest peak from 100 est. kW to 142 kW
Proposed KWdc system size from 185 to 184.24

Page 4 of 8
Proposed System Inverter from 250 to 175 (100 & 75)
System size from 185 to 184.25 and annual per kWdc from 1470 to 1632
Production from 271950 to 300679
Estimated kWh per kW from 1453 to 1632
Anticipated annual kWh production from 271950 x $0.171 to 322679 x $0.171
Estimated annual incentive payment from $46,503.45 to $51,416.109

Attachment PV Watts changed to Attachment 1 Central Heights PV Watts V2

New - Attachment 2 Central Heights System Description attached

New - Attachment 3 Central Heights Landlord Tenant Rider attached.

Public Works Building:

Page 2 of 8 the installer information has changed from Renewable Energy Contracting division
of Ironco Enterprises to Kitchell Contractors Inc. of Arizona.
The estimated installation date has changed from 7/11/2011 to 4/1/2012.

Page 3 of 8 the estimated number of PV panels has changed from 238 to 348. 
PV module manufacturer from Kyocera to Trina Solar. Model# from KD235gx.LB to TSM-PC14.
DC Watt rating per panel from 235 to 280. 
Model# from PVP50WAC to PVP100kW-480.
AC Watt rating from 50kW-AC to 100kW-AC
Estimated cost from $464,239 to $903,062
Most recent 12 month usage from 480000 to 182560
Highest peak from 100 est. to 142 kW
Proposed KWdc system size from 50 to 100

Page 4 of 8
Proposed System Inverter from 50 to 100
System size from 55.93 to 97.44 and annual per kWdc from 1470 to 1632
Production from 82217.100000000006 to 159034 per yr.
Estimated kWh per kW from 1463 to 1632
Anticipated annual kWh production from 82217.1 x $0.171 to 159034 x $0.171
Estimated annual incentive payment from $14,059.12 to $27,194.814

Attachment PV Watts changed 

Attachment 2 Public Works System Description changed

Conclusion
The ratification of these 2 applications will demonstrate the benefits Gila County will receive



The ratification of these 2 applications will demonstrate the benefits Gila County will receive
from going solar with no up-front capital investment, in coordination with PV Advanced
Concepts by applying for funding through the APS Solar for Schools and Government Program.
This program is designed to offset megawatt hours of energy consumption or generation over
its first three years in use.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors ratify approval for the
electronic submission of 2 applications for Arizona Public Service Solar for Schools and
Government Program for the Public Works Building and the Central Heights Facility and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the original documents.

Suggested Motion
Approval to ratify the Board of Supervisors' approval of 2 applications that were electronically
submitted to the Arizona Public Service Solar for Schools and Government Program for the
Public Works Building and the Central Heights Facility, and authorize the Chairman's
signature on the original documents.  

Attachments
Central Heights and Public Works new applications
Central Heights and Public Works new application



































   

ARF-831       5- V             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

December 14, 2010, December 31, 2010, & January 4, 2011, BOS
Meeting Minutes

Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer, Deputy Clerk, BOS Submitted By: Marilyn
Brewer, Clerk
of the Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
December 14, 2010, December 31, 2010, & January 4, 2011, BOS Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the December 14, 2010, December 31, 2010, and January 4, 2011, BOS
meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 12-14-10 Meeting Minutes
BOS 12-31-10 Meeting Minutes
BOS 01-04-11 Meeting Minutes



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  December 14, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      G.C. Maintenance Yard 
Member        Star Valley, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman; 
Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor (via ITV conference from Globe); Don McDaniel, 
County Manager; Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, Marilyn Brewer, 
Deputy Clerk (via ITV conference from Globe); and Bryan Chambers, Chief 
Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Gila County Maintenance Yard, 5320 E. Highway 260, Mile 
Post 257, Star Valley, Arizona, and simultaneously broadcast by ITV from the 
Board of Supervisors hearing room in Globe, Arizona.  Don McDaniel led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend James Barker of the Tonto Village Chapel in 
Payson delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - PRESENTATIONS:  

 
 2A. Introduction of Arizona State Senator Sylvia Allen to provide 

information and discuss Gila County issues in preparation for the 
upcoming Arizona Legislative Session.   

 
 Don McDaniel, County Manager, welcomed Arizona State Senator Sylvia Allen 

to Gila County and advised that she had already been given a tour of the Gila 
County Jail and facilities.  He also welcomed Craig Sullivan, County 
Supervisors Association Executive Director.  Senator Allen stated that it was a 
real pleasure to be here and the tour of the jail facilities was very informative, 
although depressing because of its condition.  She spoke about the fact that 
counties have more problems with their jail facilities than the state does with 
its prisons because they are very old, badly in need of updating, in dire need of 
more room because of the number of prisoners, the crowding makes for a lot of 
complications and the safety of the correctional officers and deputies is very 



2 

important.  Senator Allen stated that because of the situation where the state 
budget is in crisis, she believes the counties and state need to work together to 
find solutions, start listing priorities and change the way of budgeting by 
funding the priorities first, beginning with public safety.  She stated that the 
number one priority for the state of Arizona is going to be the budget and the 
economy and everyone is working hard on those issues and looking at ways to 
change Arizona’s budgeting process; however, it is going to take a lot of time to 
do the reforms that are badly needed.  She stated that the state has cut many 
areas and cannot keep passing costs to the counties, particularly because most 
of the counties are small and don’t have the property tax base that the larger 
counties have.  Using the same percentage for the small counties doesn’t work 
because those amounts can really hurt these smaller counties.  The state has 
to look differently at how it handles reductions.  She referred to issues that 
need reform on a state level, which include health care in Arizona and 
reforming and eliminating the layers of government so the small amounts of 
money available for health care get to the people who most need the help.  For 
Gila County, Senator Allen stated that she has been heavily involved in helping 
the Gila County Community College gain its independence by introducing 
legislative measures that would remove the barrier that the state has put in 
place that does not allow a provisional college to move forward.  Once that 
barrier is removed, Senator Allen stated that then it would be up to those 
locally to determine what to do next in order to have more control over the 
educational system in the County and to decide the direction in which the 
college would want to go.  She requested that the Board seriously consider this 
issue by passing a resolution of support.  Senator Allen stated that she realizes 
that community colleges are absolutely vital in this day when higher education 
is very expensive and community colleges hold the line.  She briefed the Board 
on a new program called “Move on When Ready,” which will allow young people 
when they are ready to move on at the end of their sophomore year to test out 
of their high school requirements and move on to community college, 
vocational education, and by the time they graduate from high school, they will 
be 2 years ahead and can continue their education by attending a university or 
if they are ready with their vocational training to move into a career.  Senator 
Allen stated that she believes in local control for not only the colleges, but also 
for the counties, cities, towns and school districts so local residents living there 
can solve those problems and create ideas of what to do for their own 
communities.  Senator Allen also spoke on the crisis with the national economy 
and stated that the United States is not going to recover until it gets back to 
more natural resource production, more manufacturing and more production 
because retail sales is not doing it.  The country needs to get back to producing 
because that is where the wealth is really generated; however, it will take some 
time to get back because the country has spent a lot of time dismantling that 
in America.  She also spoke on the need for more forest production and gave an 
example of a small county in northern California that has worked in 
coordination with the federal agencies since 1988 and next year will be cutting 
30 million board feet of timber out of the forest there.  Senator Allen advised 



3 

that she would like to sit down with the Board and go into that in more detail 
to show the reason that county has been successful and how coordination that 
is required by federal law has worked for them.  Senator  Allen concluded by 
stating, “I am your servant...and I’m here to serve you to try to help solve our 
problems...Let’s quit focusing on the depressing stuff and let’s figure out what 
we can really do to change things in District 5 and in Gila County.”  Chairman 
Pastor thanked Senator Allen for her comments and for coming to visit the jail 
to see some of the problems with which the County is dealing.  Supervisor 
Dawson stated that she certainly supports the need for the Gila County 
Community College (GCCC) and she believes the state of Arizona needs to look 
at fairly funding rural colleges.  She stated that as for removing barriers to 
independence, this college and the college board know full well there is not 
anything that is needed for this college that is not received and partnering with 
Eastern Arizona College was one of the best things that has happened.  Being 
able to be independent at a time when the County is strapped for tax dollars 
and every tax dollar is being scrutinized on how it’s spent, if GCCC becomes an 
independent college, the taxpayers of Gila County will have to pay more in 
taxes to support the college.  Supervisor Dawson stated, “I believe that we need 
to be working on getting the state to change the workforce money so that GCCC 
receives that funding, but I don’t see that independence is a necessity.”  
Supervisor Dawson also stated that she believes the state has to look at health 
care and the denying of transplants aren’t experimental health ideas; they are 
life saving and she hopes that the state legislature will put back that funding.  
She thought that Senator Allen touring the jail facility was a good idea because 
as the state looks at cutting funding for education, they will find that every 
statistic in the world tells you that it’s better to spend money educating people 
then it is incarcerating them.  She thanked Senator Allen for coming to visit the 
County and appreciates the work she is doing.  Vice-Chairman Martin also 
thanked Senator Allen for coming to the meeting and for helping those who are 
working for independence for GCCC.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she 
would like Arizona to do what is being done in California and other states 
where the colleges do not follow arbitrary political boundaries for their 
community colleges, but instead follow more of an area along lines of interest 
or like areas. She thought it would be interesting and beneficial if GCCC could 
be aligned with the northland, Flagstaff, Coconino County and areas that have 
similar interests and align those throughout the state in areas of similar 
interest.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she would also like to see the state 
dismantle the current Board of Regents and replace it with a governing body 
that would take into consideration community colleges as she feels they fall 
through the cracks in a variety of ways.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated, “For us 
who would like to see independence for GCCC, it goes far beyond that and you 
bet I want to visit about that.”  Ms. Allen agreed with Vice-Chairman Martin’s 
comments and added that something needs to be figured out for a way to pull 
into the system those counties that don’t have a community college rather than 
having to pay for out-of-county tuition.  Chairman Pastor thanked Senator 
Allen for allowing him to participate on the Senate Task Committee in regard to 



4 

reviewing the project of independence for the provisional college and hopefully 
legislation will be passed this year.  He also thanked Senator Allen for coming 
to tour the jail facility and he is hopeful that something can be done to remedy 
the situation.  

 
 Chairman Pastor called on Craig Sullivan to introduce himself and provide 

some information about the County Supervisors Association (CSA).  Mr. 
Sullivan stated that CSA serves all 15 counties and 55 supervisors in Arizona 
as a nexus, a one-stop shop.  Mr. Sullivan stated that his office works closely 
with the state legislature monitoring the state laws and state budget and keeps 
the county supervisors informed and updated on what is going on at the state 
legislature.   He stated that Senator Allen has done a great job of working with 
CSA in these difficult times and having access to her on important issues has 
gone a long way towards keeping the supervisors connected with the legislative 
delegation from this area.  Mr. Sullivan stated that the next legislative session 
will begin on January 10, 2011, and he will remain in close contact with the 
supervisors in order to understand local issues and to make sure that the state 
doesn’t shift its problems to the local communities as each community should 
be left with the opportunity to solve its own problems and deal with its own 
issues without the unnecessary burden of transferring state problems to it.  
Each Board member thanked Mr. Sullivan for all the work that is done by CSA 
on behalf of the counties.  No action was taken by the Board. 

 
 2B. Recognition of 4 employees for November's "Spotlight on Employees" 

Program.  
 
 Juley Bocardo-Homan, Human Resources Deputy Director, presented gift cards 

as recognition awards to 4 employees—Terri Childers, Angela Parker, Cathy 
Wickwire and Kathe Quinn for November’s “Spotlight on Employees.”  Each 
Board member thanked the employees for their dedicated work.  Vice-
Chairman Martin requested that the names of the employees be provided 
ahead of time on the agenda summary sheet.   

 
 Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 3A. (Motion to convene as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of 

Directors.)  
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to consider the floodplain 
variance request submitted by Roy and Rose Goodwin for Parcel 201-14-
018C in Tonto Basin, and to direct the Floodplain Administrator to record 
to deed that the property is not in compliance with the Gila County 
Floodplain Management Ordinance, and that the 24' x 60' manufactured 
home, VIN number CAFL2A/B849091498, is required to be brought into 
full compliance upon transfer of ownership of the property.  An Affidavit 
of Correction of the Floodplain Ordinance Violation can be recorded if the 
property is brought into compliance.   



5 

 (Motion to reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.) 
 
 Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 

Board convened as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors.   
  
 Darde deRoulhac, Chief Engineer of the Flood Control District, advised that Mr. 

and Mrs. Roy Goodwin were present at the meeting.  He stated that the 
Goodwins live in the Tonto Basin area in the floodplain, which was inundated 
with flooding last January.  They had obtained a used manufactured home 
from a neighbor, Mr. and Mrs. Phillips.  The Phillips were denied a floodplain 
variance by the County prior to the floods in January.  Upon receiving the 
home, the Goodwins installed it below the required elevation projected for a 
100-year flood and then they asked the County Community Action 
Program/Housing Department to rehabilitate their home, which has now been 
completed.  He advised that there are actually 2 mobile homes on the property 
and that’s the reason a vehicle identification number is specified on the one 
home as the second mobile home is not an issue in this variance.  Mr. 
deRoulhac stated that the Gila County Floodplain Management Ordinance 
requires that a variance be based on a situation that is peculiar to a particular 
piece of property, not on personal or economic reasons.  Mr. and Mrs. Goodwin 
are in the process of applying for a federal grant to raise the home so it would 
be brought into compliance with the Ordinance and be safe in the event of a 
100-year flood.  He stated that the Floodplain Department strives to see that all 
residents are safe in flood-prone areas so people don’t risk their lives and 
County workers don’t risk their lives trying to rescue people during a flood.  
Since the Goodwins are working to get a grant and trying to comply, Mr. 
deRoulhac stated that staff recommends that while the variance should not be 
granted to allow this situation to be substandard in perpetuity, staff would like 
to give them time to obtain the grant, which could take several years as the 
federal grants acquisition process is a slow one.  He stated that staff 
recommends that the County record a deed that there is a violation on the 
property and that this violation would be required to be rectified if the property 
were to change ownership.  In the meantime, the County Floodplain 
Department would allow the Goodwins time to get their federal grant and 
attempt to comply with the Ordinance.  The Board was shown photos of the 
Goodwin property as well as the property next door.  Chairman Pastor stated 
that there was a concern from other residents in that area as to the reason the 
County would grant a variance to one resident and not to others.  Mr. 
deRoulhac stated, “That is precisely the reason why staff is recommending 
against a variance, which would allow this situation to exist forever, but 
instead we’re looking to accommodate their request to bring it into compliance 
through a Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) grant.”  Chairman 
Pastor inquired if the opportunity for the Goodwins to receive this grant was 
better than normal or just an opportunity that’s available for them to pursue.  
Mr. deRoulhac stated that he could not answer that question; however, it was 
his opinion that it is an opportunity for the Goodwins to pursue it and that 



6 

there is the possibility for them to obtain the grant, but he did not know all of 
the details.  Mr. Stratton explained that one of the reasons the home is 
presently set on the property is because the Goodwins came in for a permit 
after the fact.  If they would have come in before the fact like most people do, 
then the requirement would have been given to them at the time.  He stated 
that the County is attempting to work with the Goodwins as much as possible 
and allow some latitude.  He stated that a grant of this nature to elevate a 
home can take 2-4 years to obtain.  The Board could put a time limit on this 
and tie it to that.  If the variance had been requested before a home was placed 
there, staff would have asked the Board to reject the variance.  Vice-Chairman 
Martin inquired as to the cost to elevate the home.  Roy Goodwin stated that 
there was a very small window of opportunity for him to obtain this house from 
the Phillips because the Phillips were also bringing in their new house at the 
same time.  Mr. Goodwin stated that he previously lived in an old 8 foot-wide 
mobile home that was set up with 4 ramps that he had to deal with.  He was 
hoping to one day have a home with just 1 ramp to accommodate his 
wheelchair.  He stated that the cost to elevate his house would be in excess of 
$50,000.  The ramp itself would need to be 90 feet long to be in compliance 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  He was able to get a ramp put in 
place through the County’s Community Development Block Grant program.  
Mr. Goodwin stated that he regretted not meeting with the County on this 
issue.  Mr. Goodwin requested that the Board help him by allowing him the 
time to go through the FEMA process.  Supervisor Dawson stated that she 
believes there comes a time when government has to be human.  She stated, 
“Rules are rules, but human beings are who we are here to serve.  Mr. and Mrs. 
Goodwin have been blessed with this home.  Hopefully we can help them in the 
future years establish a home that is within the guidelines.  In the meantime, 
we are recording against this home so that it can’t reasonably be sold.  There 
can’t be danger to anyone else and the Goodwins are aware of the dangers they 
are facing with this and I certainly believe that the variance and recorded 
restrictions on the deed should be approved by the Board.”  Mr. Stratton stated 
that there is another important fact to note.  In January during the flooding 
and disasters the County encountered, that particular property took on 1 to 1-
1/2 feet of water and that was only a 30-year event.  This home being elevated 
is necessary.  He commended Mr. deRoulhac for coming up with the idea of a 
recording that restricts this property and it would be alright if the Board placed 
a time frame on this that coincides with the grant time frame.  Mr. deRoulhac 
stated that he didn’t know if a variance time frame could be allowed because 
the Ordinance did not address that issue and deferred to Bryan Chambers, 
Chief Deputy County Attorney.  Mr. Chambers stated that he was not sure 
when he originally read the Ordinance if there was anything proposed other 
than a denial of the variance request.  He was unsure whether the Board could 
approve a temporary variance or not.  He stated that it should not be called a 
variance unless it was going to be a variance and recommended that the Board 
either grant a variance or not grant one.  Mr. Chambers stated that he thought 
legally the Board could postpone enforcement to allow the FEMA process to 



7 

take its course, but it should not be called any type of a variance.  He stated 
that perhaps Mr. deRoulhac could answer his question and that would be if the 
County postponed enforcement, could that get the County in trouble with 
FEMA down the road?  Mr. deRoulhac stated, “We work with people all the time 
to try to give them a chance to comply with the regulations.  This example is 
going to probably take more time than the usual situation, but I don’t see this 
as being too much different.  Understandably there is a risk in the interim and 
that’s something that is of some concern, but I understand they are working 
hard toward getting this grant to bring the home into compliance and I would 
be more than willing to work with them in giving them time to do that.  I don’t 
think that’s really any different than what we routinely do and the Ordinance 
does give us leeway to work with people to bring their property into 
compliance.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she was more in favor of not 
giving a variance, but rather postponing enforcement.  Mr. Goodwin thanked 
the Board for its assistance because he could not afford the costs associated 
with elevating his home as his only source of income is from social security.  
Chairman Pastor stated that based on Mr. Chambers comments, he was going 
to request that this item be tabled to the next Board meeting to allow Mr. 
Chambers the opportunity to research exactly what the Board could do as far 
as enforcement and if an exemption could be granted for a period of time.  That 
way the Board has not granted or denied a variance, but rather is looking at 
the legal side of the whole process.  Supervisor Dawson made the motion that 
the Board table this item, which was seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin.  
Chairman Pastor requested that Supervisor Dawson change her motion to just 
continue this item rather than table it.  Supervisor Dawson changed her 
motion to continue this item, which was seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin 
and unanimously approved.   

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.   

 
 Item 4 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

4A. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 10-12 
proclaiming December 2010 as Drunk and Drugged Driving (3D) 
Prevention Month in Gila County.   
 
Lorraine Dalrymple, Health Services Program Manager, stated that December is 
National Drunk and Driving Prevention Month.  She then provided statistics 
about alcohol and drug-related accidents.  Arizona ranks 20th nationally and 
according to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in 2008, Globe ranked 
higher in alcohol-related crashes, injuries and deaths at 268.3 accidents per 
100,000 residents, which was almost double the state’s rate at 113.1.  She 
stated that it is one of the Health Department’s essential services to monitor 
health status to identify community health problems and to inform, educate 
and empower people about health issues.  The Gila County Health Department 



8 

is currently spearheading a public awareness campaign regarding the dangers 
and consequences of drinking and driving.  There are 30-second public service 
announcements on local television stations and on the County’s website; news 
articles in the local newspapers; public service announcements are on the local 
radio stations in English and Spanish; posters have been distributed to local 
bars and places of business; signs have been posted on refrigerator doors at 
convenience stores that sell alcohol; over 3,000 red ribbons have been 
distributed of which 800 were districted by students of Project Ignition in 
Payson and by the top kids in Globe; additional red ribbons were distributed 
through local supermarkets in Tonto Basin, Young and Hayden.  The school 
districts also cooperated by allowing the distribution of flyers providing tips on 
driving safely during the holiday season.  Ms. Dalrymple also thanked the 
Board for providing flashing signs in both Globe and Payson that say, “Please 
don’t drink and drive.”   She requested that the Board adopt the Proclamation 
proclaiming December 2010 as Drunk and Drugged Driving Prevention Month 
in Gila County.  Supervisor Dawson inquired if a public service announcement 
was being broadcast on Channel 13 at San Carlos.  Ms. Dalrymple stated that 
she would definitely look into an announcement on that channel.  Upon motion 
by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted Proclamation No. 10-12 proclaiming December 2010 as 
Drunk and Drugged Driving (3D) Prevention Month in Gila County.  (A copy of 
the Proclamation is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ 
Office.) 
 

 4B. Supervisors' Annual Property Tax Sale/Auction for the sale of real 
property deeded to the State of Arizona by Treasurer's Deed in the year 
2010, as follows:  101-07-057; 101-07-175; 101-07-227; 101-10-030-A; 
102-26-001-B; 201-08-054-B; 207-15-506; 304-01-362-H; 304-01-362-J 
and 305-10-022-D.   

 
Chairman Pastor read aloud this agenda item and then called upon Marian 
Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, to advise the public of the bidding procedures.  
Ms. Sheppard advised that there are 10 properties listed for sale at today’s 
auction.  She advised the audience of the statutory process whereby any newly 
deeded properties must be advertised for sale although the Board is not 
obligated to sell every parcel.  Ms. Sheppard further advised that the minimum 
acceptable bid would be the total lien amount as listed on the tax sale list and 
that all bids are final and no warranties or guarantees as to the condition of 
the property are given by the County.  The Board addressed each of the 10 
parcels separately.  The auction results were as follows: 
 

Tax Parcel # Lien Amount Sale Amount Purchaser’s Name 
101-07-057 $2,300.50 -- -- 
101-07-175 $1,904.70 -- -- 
101-07-227 $3,443.45 -- -- 



9 

101-10-030-A $30,192.70 -- -- 
102-26-001-B $431.18 $431.18 Jep White 
201-08-054-B $469.26 -- -- 
207-15-506 $383.76 -- -- 
304-01-362-H $372.95 $372.95 Pete Brazeau 
304-01-362-J $405.22 $405.22 Pete Brazeau 
305-10-022-D $363.32 -- -- 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board unanimously approved the sale of tax parcel number 102-26-001-B to 
Jep White in the amount of $431.18.   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved the sale of tax parcel number 304-01-362-H to 
Pete Brazeau in the amount of $372.95.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board unanimously approved the sale of tax parcel number 304-01-362-J to 
Pete Brazeau in the amount of $405.22.   
 
Chairman Pastor closed the Supervisors' Annual Property Tax Sale/Auction. 

 
 4C. Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Call 

for Bids No. 111510-1 to provide all advertising, publications and printing 
required to be done or made by all departments of Gila County for 
calendar year 2011; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; 
and authorize the Chairman's signature on the contract for the winning 
bidder.   

 
Ms. Sheppard advised that Arizona Revised Statute §11-255 specifies that the 
Board of Supervisors must annually go out for bid for its newspaper 
publications contract.  The selected newspaper is responsible for publishing all 
publications of Gila County including legal ads, classified ads, display ads, etc.  
She advised that the only bid received was from the Arizona Silver Belt at a rate 
of $2.35 per column inch and the total cost of the sample publication would 
have been $12.59.  She recommended that the bid be awarded to the Arizona 
Silver Belt for 2011.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously awarded Call for Bids No. 111510-1 
to the Arizona Silver Belt at a price of $2.35 per column inch for all advertising, 
publications and printing for all departments within Gila County for the period 
January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2011, and authorized the Chairman’s 
signature on the contract.  The Arizona Silver Belt will be known as the official 
newspaper of the County for 2011.  

 



10 

 4D. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-11-01 
establishing guidelines for the selection of the Gila County Redistricting 
Committee.   

 
 Chairman Pastor stated that there has been a request to continue this item to 

the January 18, 2011, Board meeting.  Vice-Chairman Martin made the motion 
to table this item to the January 18, 2011, Board of Supervisors’ meeting, 
which was seconded by Supervisor Dawson.  Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, 
explained that during the Board’s most recent work session redistricting 
guidelines were discussed.  Afterward, there was a lot of discussion about 
perhaps waiting a short period of time and adding some information to those 
guidelines with regard to not only what the duties and responsibilities of that 
committee would be as an advisory committee, but also how individuals should 
go about applying or how the County will go about creating an application 
process for individuals to serve on the committee.  She will be working on that 
information and have it ready by the January 18th meeting.   Chairman Pastor 
stated that a motion and second were already made and called for a vote of the 
Board.  The motion was unanimously approved. 

 
 4E.  Information/Discussion/Action to certify the Proposition 112 

recount results from the General Election held on November 2, 2010.   
 
 Ms. Eastlick stated that the County has completed its recount on Proposition 

112 because A.R.S. § 16-661(A)(4) provides for an automatic recount if the 
margin of votes is less than or equal to 200 votes.  In the case of Proposition 
102, the margin was 128, thus a state-side automatic recount was triggered.  
The recount order was issued by the Superior Court of Maricopa County on 
November 29, 2010.  She stated that the Gila County recount has been 
completed and the recount resulted in an imperceptible difference in Gila 
County’s results.  Gila County had total votes cast of 16,423.  The recount of 
the “yes” votes was 8,435 for 51.36% of the vote; the “no” votes was 7,988 for 
48.64%.  The County’s previous results were 51.35% “yes” votes and 48.65% 
“no” votes, a very small difference.  Supervisor Dawson inquired about the cost 
of the recount.  Ms. Eastlick did not know the cost; however, the projected cost 
statewide was estimated to be $1.25 million.   All counties will be submitting 
bills to the Secretary of State’s Office for the recount and then the actual cost 
will be known.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously certified the Proposition 112 recount 
results from the General Election held on November 2, 2010.   

 
 4F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services 

Contract No. 6511.526/10-2010 between Gila County and C.L. Williams 
Consulting, Inc. whereby consulting services will be provided for the 
Tonto Creek Bridge Project in the amount of $119,000.00 from December 
14, 2010, to October 31, 2011.   

 



11 

 Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that when the County 
first received the Safety in Lieu funding to find a suitable location and do 30% 
of the design on the bridge in Tonto Basin, neither he nor Mr. Sanders had the 
time to stay on top of this project.  At that time, the County hired C.L. Williams 
Consulting, Inc. for Phase 1 and now the County is getting ready to move into 
Phase 2, with 30% of the plans completed.  The County is in the middle of the 
NEPA (National Environmental Policy Act) process and has turned in the 
biological report, which has been reviewed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife.  Last 
week, the County received the 404 Permit from the Army Corps of Engineers to 
do the geotechnical work in the channel, which is a huge project.  He stated 
that if the contract for Phase 1 hadn’t been approved, the County would not be 
at this stage of the project.  By the end of Phase 2, the County will have 100% 
of the plans completed to construct the bridge.  He recommended that the 
Board approve the contract for C.L. Williams Consulting, Inc.  Chairman Pastor 
inquired whether Mr. Stratton is projecting completion of Phase 2 and Phase 3 
by October 2011.  Mr. Stratton stated that was correct and he had anticipated 
it being completed by spring, but the NEPA process slowed the completion 
down.  Chairman Pastor inquired if the scope of work that C.L. Williams is 
working on will be to give direction to Kimley-Horn and Associates on what that 
company is to do during the next 2 phases.  Mr. Stratton stated that Mr. 
Williams acts as the County’s liaison, but he also does engineering work as 
well, along with following up with the Arizona Game and Fish, Arizona 
Department of Transportation and other agencies on behalf of the County, 
which is not part of Kimley-Horn’s contract.  Chairman Pastor stated that Mr. 
Stratton’s summary shows that this contract will be paid for by capital 
improvement project half-cent excise tax and he inquired if that was considered 
“other funds?”  Mr. Stratton replied in the affirmative.  Chairman Pastor and 
Mr. Stratton discussed the extension of the Safety Lieu funds and noted that 
this project does not include the Oak Creek design.  Chairman Pastor 
suggested that Mr. Williams and the County make contact with its 
congressional representatives regarding this project.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously 
approved Professional Services Contract No. 6511.526/10-2010 between Gila 
County and C.L. Williams Consulting, Inc. whereby consulting services will be 
provided for the Tonto Creek Bridge Project in the amount of $119,000.00 from 
December 14, 2010, to October 31, 2011.   
 

 4G. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-21-01 
and to authorize the submission of a SFY 2011 LTAF II Grant Application 
to the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) to assist in eligible 
transit-related projects that are qualified under ADOT guidelines in the 
amount of $21,598.48 with a County match of $5,399.62.  

 
Mr. Stratton stated that until this year, the lottery money has been distributed 
by the state and Gila County typically uses it for transit items such as 
transporting senior citizens.  Mr. Stratton stated that it is his understanding 



12 

that this will be the last year of LTAF (Local Transportation Area Funds) II 
funding as any further funding has been cancelled by the state.  The match on 
this particular grant of $5,399.62 will come from the County’s General Fund, 
as HURF (Highway User Revenue Funds) funds do not qualify.  Supervisor 
Dawson stated that these transits depend on these funds and she inquired 
whether there would be any other funds to replace these funds other than the 
General Fund.  Mr. Stratton replied that the County has put back some money 
through the LTAF program, because the funds don’t have to be spent for 2 
years, to fund the transit programs in some fashion for the next 3 years 
including this year.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if this is all the funds for 
this year.  Mr. Stratton stated that this grant and the matching funds will be 
spent during the years 2011 and 2012 and he will be coming to the Board in 
January for recommending the expenditure of some of these funds now.  He 
stated that because it was known that this program was coming to an end, 
they have been stringing out the use of these funds as long as possible.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted Resolution No. 10-21-01 and authorized the submission 
of a SFY 2011 LTAF II Grant Application to the Arizona Department of 
Transportation (ADOT) to assist in eligible transit-related projects that are 
qualified under ADOT guidelines in the amount of $21,598.48 with a 
County match of $5,399.62.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

 4H. Information/Discussion/Action to approve a vehicle transfer of a 
2004 Dodge Intrepid (VIN #283HD46V54H702769) from the Gila County 
Sheriff's Office to the Miami Police Department.   

 
 Claudia DalMolin, Chief Administrative Officer for the Sheriff’s Office, stated 

that several months ago Sergeant Baxley interdicted this vehicle while it was 
transporting marijuana.  The case has been adjudicated and the Sheriff’s Office 
has gone through the vehicle process to obtain the title.  The Sheriff would like 
to approve a vehicle transfer of this 2004 Dodge Intrepid to the Town of Miami 
to enhance the Town’s fleet because it is in dire need of vehicles.  Upon motion 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board 
unanimously approved a vehicle transfer of a 2004 Dodge Intrepid (VIN 
#283HD46V54H702769) from the Gila County Sheriff's Office to the Miami 
Police Department. 

 
 4I.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Interlock 

Agreement between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Town of 
Payson (a disparate community) for the 2010 Byrne Justice Assistance 
Grant Program Award in the amount $10,361.   

 
 Ms. DalMolin stated that this Interlock Agreement is necessary so the Town of 

Payson can apply for and be allocated the 2010 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant 
Program award funds.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-



13 

Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved an Interlock 
Agreement between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Town of Payson (a 
disparate community) for the 2010 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant Program 
Award in the amount $10,361.  

 
 Chairman Pastor inadvertently read regular agenda item 4L instead of 

proceeding on to 4J, so the Board agreed to review item 4L first and then move 
back to items 4J and 4K.   

 
 4L.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Amendment (Phase II) 

to the Office Workflow Automation and System Integration Contract No. 
3528-301-102007 dated December 18, 2007, between the Gila County 
Attorney's Office and The Ashley Brandon Company for enhancements to 
the Verdict System (Phase I) in the amount of $60,820.   

 
 Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney, stated that a few years ago 

the Board approved a contract with The Ashley Brandon Company.  It was in 
response to a competitive bid to provide essentially a new computer system for 
the County Attorney’s Office to try to automate the office.  The County Attorney 
now wants to add some additional functionality to that program that wasn’t 
envisioned in the original agreement.  This amendment would add 4 new 
enhancements to the program and would also tie up some lose ends in the 
agreement.  This amendment provides for a firm completion date that is not 
normally seen in software contracts, with per-day penalties for not completing 
the work on time.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously approved an Amendment (Phase 
II) to the Office Workflow Automation and System Integration Contract No. 
3528-301-102007 dated December 18, 2007, between the Gila County 
Attorney's Office and The Ashley Brandon Company for enhancements to the 
Verdict System (Phase I) in the amount of $60,820.  

 
 The Chairman then addressed regular agenda items 4J and 4K before moving 

on to the consent agenda items.   
 
 4J.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 

Request for Sealed Bids No. 080310-1 for the purchase of the General 
Ledger Treasurer's Banking Software and Support System; award to the 
lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's 
signature on the Award Contract for the winning bidder.   

 
 Debi Savage, Treasurer, stated that this item was tabled from a previous 

meeting and she assured the Board that the paperwork is now correct and the 
figures are all in accordance with one another.  The total cost for the purchase 
of the banking software will be $106,990 plus the maintenance fees for the 
next 2 years will be $12,557 per year.  Supervisor Dawson made the motion 
that the Board award Request for Sealed Bids No. 080310-1 for the purchase of 



14 

the General Ledger Treasurer's Banking Software and Support System to Tyler 
Technologies, Inc. in the amount of $106,990.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired 
whether the motion should also include the cost for maintenance fees.  
Supervisor Dawson amended her motion to include the cost for maintenance 
fees for the next 2 years in the amount of $12,557 per year.  The motion was 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin and unanimously approved. 

 
 4K. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Services 

Agreement No. 1005.203/12-2010 between Gila County and Robert 
Heming whereby the Consultant will provide for the conversion from 
DSA to the new Tyler System in the amount of $5,000.00 for the 
period December 14, 2010, to December 14, 2011.   

 
 Ms. Savage stated that the reason the Treasurer’s Office has requested to work 

with Robert Heming is because he is familiar with the County’s program 
through Data Systems of Arizona (DSA), which is the County’s current 
provider.  Mr. Heming also did the County’s interface between DSA and New 
World as well as the Visions program.  Ms. Savage stated that she asked Mr. 
Heming if he would bring the County’s warrant information up and convert it 
over to the Tyler Technologies’ General Ledger Treasurer’s Banking Software; 
hence the need for this agreement.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously approved 
Professional Services Agreement No. 1005.203/12-2010 between Gila County 
and Robert Heming whereby the Consultant will provide for the conversion 
from DSA to the new Tyler System in the amount of $5,000.00 for the 
period December 14, 2010, to December 14, 2011.   

 
Item 5 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 

 5A.  Approval of SubGrantee Agreement No. 10-AZDOHS-HSGP-777305-01, 
a grant award between the Arizona Department of Homeland Security and 
the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $38,500 for the 
Automatic License Plate Reader Program.  

 
5B.  Approval of Sub-Grantee Agreement No. 10-ADOS-HS GP-777305-02, a 
grant award between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Arizona 
Department of Homeland Security in the amount of $28,000 for the target 
hardening of dams, waterways/infrastructure of Gila County for the period 
October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011.  

 
 5C.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Independent Contractor 

Agreement No. ACAA07012010 between the Gila County Community 
Services Division, Housing Section, and the Arizona Community Action 
Association to allocate additional Utility, Repair, Replacement, and 
Deposit (URRD) funds in the amount of $81,459.89 to continue providing 



15 

service to eligible Gila County residents for the period July 01, 2010, 
through June 30, 2011. 

 
 5D.  Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Memorandum of Understanding 

(MOU)/Contract for Help America Vote Act (HAVA) between Gila 
County and the Arizona Secretary of State to change the termination date 
of the contract from Federal Fiscal Year 2010 to Federal Fiscal Year 
2016.  

 
 5E.  Approval of the reappointment of members to the Planning and 

Zoning Commission for a four-year term from January 1, 2011, through 
December 31, 2014, as follows:  District One:  Randy Slapnicka; District 
Two:  Lori Brown, Jay Spehar and Travis Williams; and District Three:  
Mickie Nye and Jack Larimore. 

 
 5F.  Approval to reappoint Patty Stallings Hetrick to the Highway 60-70 

Regional Design Review Board for an additional four-year term for the 
period January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2014. 

 
 5G.  Approval of the reappointment of members to the Gila County Board 

of Adjustment for a four-year term from January 1, 2011, through 
December 31, 2014, as follows:  District Two:  Lori Brown and Travis 
Williams; and District Three:  John (Jack) Larimore. 

 
 5H.  Approval to appoint Supervisor Michael Pastor as the Gila County 

representative on the Central Arizona Association of Governments Region 
V Council of Governments for the calendar year 2011. 

 
 5I.  Acknowledgement of the resignation of Ms. Ardith Hogan from the 

East Verde Park Fire District governing board and the appointment of Mr. 
Bobbie L. Pierce to complete the term of Ms. Hogan, which expires 
12/31/2012, and acknowledgement of the death of East Verde Park Fire 
District governing board member Jim Cambier and the appointment of 
Mr. Dan Haapala to complete the term of Mr. Cambier, which expires 
12/31/2012. 

 
 5 J.  Approval of the June 22, 2010, BOS meeting minutes. 
 
 5K.  Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity 

report submitted by the Globe Regional Constable. 
 
 5L.  Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report 

submitted by the Recorder's Office.  
 
 5M.  Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of December 7, 2010, 

and December 14, 2010.  



16 

 
 December 7, 2010 

Departures from County Service: 
1.  Jeremiah Johnson - Health and Emergency Services – Rural Addressing 

Analyst – 11/23/10 – General Fund – DOH 08/13/07 - Resigned  
Hires to County Service
2.  Larry Dooly – Building Maintenance Technician – Public Works Facilities 

Management – 12/06/10 – Facilities Management Fund – Replacing 
Brandon Trobaugh  

: 

3.  Nancy Mach - Health and Emergency Services – Part Time Community 
Health Assistant – 12/06/10 – FTF Early Childhood Screening Fund – 
Replacing Kasey Jankowski  

Temporary Hires to County Service
4.  Mary Kim Titla - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Job Corps 

Assistant -11/29/10 – Constituent Services III Fund  

: 

5.  Mark Warden – Public Works Facilities Management - From Building 
Maintenance Technician – To Building Maintenance Technician Senior 
– 12/06/10 – Facilities Management Fund   

Departmental Transfers: 

6.  Deborah Bradway – Community Development – From Building Safety 
Assistant – To Environmental Engineering Technician – 12/27/10 - 
General Fund  

Position Review: 
7.  Gary Lopez – Community Services – Community Services Worker - 

11/22/10 – GEST Fund – Increasing hours from 30 to 40  
8.  Mary Allen – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 

Associate – 11/29/10 - General Fund – Increasing hours from 19 to 
24  

9.  Linda Shirley – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – 11/29/10 –  General Fund – Decreasing hours from 24 to 
19  

10.  Paula Horn - Health and Emergency Services – From Health  
   Programs Coordinator – To Deputy Director of Prevention Services –  
   11/22/10 – Various Funds  
Request Permission to Post: 
11.  Health and Emergency Services – WIC Breastfeeding Counselor –  
       New Position Community Services – Career and Employment Senior  
       Specialist – Vacated by Michael Lopez  
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Departures from County Service: 
12.  Amy Bagwell - Sheriff's Office – Deputy Sheriff – 11/22/10 - General Fund 
– DOH 10/14/08 – Resigned  
13.  David North - Sheriff's Office – Executive Administrative Assistant – 
11/24/10 – General – Passed Away   
 
 



17 

December 14, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1.  Michael Lopez – Community Services – Career and Employment 

Specialist – 12/03/10 – WIA Fund – DOH 09/14/09 – Resigned  
Hires to County Service: 
2. Gerardo Rojas – Probation – Detention Shift Supervisor – 12/20/10 – 

General Fund – Replacing Keith Dixon  
3. Jennifer Caster – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 12/20/10 – 

Juvenile Intensive Probation Fund – Replacing Sandra Bowling  
4. Jeremy Thurman – Finance – Accountant – 12/08/10 – General Fund – 

Replacing Lucille Koury  
Departmental Transfers: 
5. Amanda Roady – From Community Services – To Finance – From 

Accountant – To Accountant Senior – 12/07/10 - General Fund – 
Replacing Sylvia Martinez  

6. Jami Anderson – Health and Emergency Services – From Community 
Health Assistant – To WIC Breast Feeding Peer Counselor Supervisor – 
12/06/10 – WIC and CSFP Funds – New position  

Position Review: 
7. Denise Dickison – Community Services – Administrative Clerk – 

12/06/10 – Change in fund codes  
8. Roxanne Dennhardt – Community Services – Administrative Clerk – 

12/06/10 –  Change in fund codes  
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Hires to County Service: 
9. Carl McCoy – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/20/10 – General 

Fund – New Women’s Dorm Position  
10. Dawn Dzera – Sheriff’s Office – Part-Time Detention Officer – 02/20/11  
      – Commissary Fund – Replacing Hazel Young  

5N. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
December 7, 2010, and December 14, 2010. 

December 7, 2010 

$505,176.21 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 233007 
through 233142.   

December 14, 2010 

$2,221,113.11 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 233143 
through 233342.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action items 5A-5N.   



18 

 
Item 6 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 
to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
Chairman Pastor called on Christy Walton, a resident of Payson.  Ms. Walton 
stated that she wanted to take this opportunity to introduce herself to the 
Board as she was recently hired by First Things First as a community outreach 
liaison representing northern Gila County.  Ms. Walton stated that she will be 
working with all groups to ensure that First Things First is spending money in 
the best possible way to help children.  She advised that she will work out of 
the Globe office at her home in Payson and can always be reached by phone.   
 
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member presented information on current events.    
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:17 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  December 31, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marian Sheppard  
Vice-Chairman             Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Emergency  
Member         Operations Center 
         Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via phone conference call); Shirley L. Dawson, Member (via phone conference 
call); Don McDaniel, County Manager (via phone conference call); John Nelson, 
Deputy County Manager (via phone conference call); Matt Bolinger, Health and 
Emergency Services Division Director; Steve Stratton, Public Works Division 
Director; and Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in Emergency Session at 2:00 p.m.  
this date at the Emergency Operations Center at the Central Heights County 
Complex in Globe.  The meeting was called to order by Chairman Pastor. 
 
Item 2 - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-01-03 
declaring a state of emergency within Gila County as a result of heavy 
rain and snowfall causing flood conditions, power outages, and isolated 
conditions.     
 
Matt Bolinger, Health and Emergency Services Division Director, provided a 
brief summary of the effects of the snowstorm in both northern and southern 
Gila County.  In southern Gila County some flood damage and isolation issues 
occurred.  There was a power outage for awhile; however, Arizona Public 
Service Company worked with the County road crews and has since 
reestablished power.  The Tonto Creek crossings are open.  He also stated that 
emergency services can be provided to Mackey’s Camp.  Of most concern in 
northern Gila County is the Pine, Strawberry and Christopher Creek area as 
Mr. Bolinger estimates that there are approximately 500-600 residents that are 
snowed in and cannot leave their homes.  At present all major roads are open 
in northern Gila County, with some of them having chain restrictions.  He 
mentioned that many of the residents in Pine, Strawberry and Christopher 



2 

Creek live off of private roads, which have not yet been cleared.  John Nelson, 
Deputy County Manager, who lives in the Pine area, was concerned that it may 
take until Monday before any of the residents would be able to leave their 
homes and he was concerned if any of them had an emergency situation.  He is 
receiving many phone calls from residents and by New Year’s Day (Saturday) or 
Sunday, he expects that he and other County staff would be receiving a lot 
more phone calls from residents if they can’t leave their homes.  Steve Stratton, 
Public Works Division Director, said that as of tomorrow all primary and 
secondary roads will have been bladed at least once with County equipment.  
His primary concern was that his road crews have been working around the 
clock so they are over-tired and if it they don’t get some relief in the next day or 
two, they will become unsafe.  He requested permission to hire contractors to 
provide blade and backhoe equipment to clear the roads in northern Gila 
County.  He can provide a list of contractors.  Supervisor Dawson inquired 
about the status of County buildings and Mr. Bolinger replied that the 
Michaelson building, located in southern Gila County, incurred some minor 
leaking, which was not previously present.  Vice-Chairman Martin was 
concerned about the extreme cold temperatures in northern Gila County, 
which would cause freezing of the snow tonight with even more ice conditions.  
She said that rain was predicted for Monday through Wednesday, which would 
most likely result in flooding issues.  Further discussion was held on the 
number of calls from residents in northern Gila County and the concern was 
that those calls could increase dramatically if roads weren’t cleared by Monday.  
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that traffic was backed up on all major roads in 
Payson and it was a “big mess.”  Mr. Nelson stated that if the Board declares 
an emergency, the County would be “on its own” financially because it is 
doubtful that the State will provide financial aid due to the State’s current 
financial crisis.  Any funds expended by the County would be drawn from 
HURF (Highway User Revenue Funds) funds and from the County’s General 
Fund.  Don McDaniel, County Manager, joined the meeting at this time by 
phone and he asked Mr. Stratton his estimation of the expected costs.  Mr. 
Stratton replied that the cost would be in the thousands; however, he would 
have a better estimate tomorrow afternoon when his road crews finish blading 
all primary and secondary roads.  Mr. McDaniel concurred that the help of 
contractors would be needed as it would be unsafe for the County road crews 
to continue working such long hours without rest.  After a discussion of the 
amount of money the Board should authorize spending of County funds on this 
effort, it was agreed that the amount should not exceed $25,000.  If that 
amount is reached and there was more work to be done, it was mentioned that 
matter should be brought to the Board to consider authorizing the expenditure 
of additional County funds.  There was also detailed discussion about blading 
private driveways and blading roads within incorporated areas of Payson.  All 
agreed that all inaccessible private roads located within unincorporated Gila 
County must be bladed, but not those located within incorporated areas, and 
that no driveways should be bladed.   
 



3 

As the discussion was coming to a close, Chairman Pastor recapped the 
agreement that was reached between Board members and County staff.  
Everyone confirmed that the Board would authorize spending up to $25,000 on 
this effort; grading of inaccessible private roads located within unincorporated 
Gila County; and that no private driveways would be graded.  At this time 
Chairman Pastor asked for a Board motion.  Supervisor Dawson made a 
motion to adopt Resolution No. 11-01-03 with an emergency cap on funding of 
$25,000 to take care of northern Gila County roads and opening those 
roadways that are now closed.  Vice-Chairman Martin seconded the motion 
with the condition that if $25,000 is expended and there is more work to be 
done, that the Board agreed to reconsider authorizing an additional amount of 
funds.  Both Chairman Pastor and Supervisor Dawson nodded in agreement 
with this condition and the motion passed with a unanimous vote of the Board.  
(A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Mr. McDaniel recommended that Jacque Griffin, Assistant County 
Manager/Librarian, immediately issue a press release so that the public is 
made aware of all the efforts being made by the County.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
advised that she would be talking on the local radio on Monday and she 
assured those present that she would update the public on the County’s 
efforts.  Mr. Bolinger advised that he and his staff have updated local radio 
stations and he offered to issue a public service announcement to those 
stations.  Later in the day, a press release was issued by Ms. Griffin. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 2:31 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  January 4, 2011 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, 
Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Shirley Dawson led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Dan Morton of the First Christian Church in 
Globe delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - PRESENTATIONS:  
 

 2A. Information/Discussion/Action to recognize newly elected and re-
elected public officials for the period January 1, 2011, through December 
31, 2014, as follows:  Robert Duber II, Judge of the Superior Court, 
Division 2; Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court; Gary Goetteman, 
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace; Dorothy Little, Payson Regional 
Justice of the Peace; Jesse Bolinger, Globe Regional Constable; and Colt 
White, Payson Regional Constable.  Judge Peter Cahill will immediately 
administer the Oath of Office to all officials.   
 

 Judge Peter Cahill provided instructions about taking the Oath of Office to all 
of the newly elected and re-elected officials.  He then administered the Oath of 
Office, which was repeated by all of the elected officials.  Linda Eastlick, 
Elections Director, extended an invitation to everyone to have some 
refreshments in the conference room in Globe as well as in Payson.  Each 
Board member congratulated all of the newly elected officials and wished them 
the best in the upcoming years in office.  Vice-Chairman Martin requested a 5-



2 

minute recess.  Chairman Pastor called for a 5-minute recess.  At 10:14 a.m., 
Chairman Pastor reconvened the meeting. 

 
 2B. Presentation by the Gila County Recycling and Landfill Management 
 Department on the annual program of recycling and refurbishing 

discarded bicycles for distribution to disadvantaged youth in Gila 
County.  
 

 Sharon Winters, Recycling and Landfill Management Program Director, stated 
that for the 7th year, the Department of Corrections inmate labor refurbished 
140 bicycles that were either thrown away in the landfill or donated by the 
public.  These refurbished bikes were distributed to eligible children in Gila 
County at Christmas time.  She stated that all of the bike parts were 
purchased by the Recycling Department from recycling money that was earned.  
She especially wanted to thank the Board and County employees for their 
support of this project; to Deputy Warden Ron Lee for assisting in getting the 
bike crew assigned to the landfill; to Shelley Vuksanovich for her artistic 
talents; and to Candy Brooks for hauling the bikes from Payson and shopping 
for parts.  Ms. Winters also extended her appreciation to Merle’s Automotive for 
donating the paint and to the many residents that dropped off used bikes and 
to the police departments and Sheriff’s Office for donating unclaimed, lost or 
stolen bikes.  In Payson the bikes were distributed by the Fire and Public 
Safety Departments; the Department of Public Safety also assisted in locating 
eligible children; and the employees of the Towns of Miami and Hayden also 
distributed the bikes.  In San Carlos, Mary Kim Titla worked with the schools.  
Ms. Winter stated that the bikes were provided to CASA (Court Appointed 
Special Advocates) for foster children and the community of Roosevelt also gave 
away bikes earlier in the year during the Easter egg hunt program.  American 
Legion riders made Christmas possible for 16 families with 50 children by 
providing these bicycles.  Bikes were also given to the Tri-City Fire Department 
for its “Heat up the Holidays” program of which 41 families were helped.  Ms. 
Winters advised that the program is already underway for the upcoming year 
with the exciting news that Gila County will assist BHP Billiton, Miami Unit, 
with its recycling needs and in turn BHP will provide a donation to the 
County’s bicycle program.  Ms. Winters provided a couple of special stories 
about 2 children who received these bikes.  Each Board member thanked Ms. 
Winters and staff for their dedicated work on this great program.   

 
Item 3 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
 3A. (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 

convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.)  
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Library Service Agreement 
between the Gila County Library District and the San Carlos Public Library 
to cooperate in the provision of library services for the period July 1, 
2010, through June 30, 2011, and to match up to $32,920.  (Motion to 



3 

adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and 
reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors)  

  
 Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 

Board adjourned as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convened as the 
Gila County Library District Board of Directors.   

  
 Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that this is the 8th 

and final Library Service Agreement for the current year.  This Agreement 
wasn’t presented to the Board of Supervisors for approval at the time the other 
7 Library Service Agreements were presented because additional language 
needed to be incorporated into the Agreement.  Ms. Griffin stated that with 
regard to the cities and towns and the San Carlos Tribal Library, the County 
matches what each puts into its library to an upper limit and then the 2 
payments are provided to the libraries, one after November 1st and the second 
one after May.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the Library Service 
Agreement between the Gila County Library District and the San Carlos Public 
Library to cooperate in the provision of library services for the period July 1, 
2010, through June 30, 2011, and to match up to $32,920.  

 
 3B. Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Resource Access and 

Attainment Policy for the Gila County Library District.  
 
 Ms. Griffin stated that this has generally been known as an Interlibrary Loan 

and is sharing resources among the libraries.  It is a core service that libraries 
provide to the end consumer even though it is not free to the Library District.  
This Policy requests that all libraries agree to share information, resources, and 
help patrons and the end user locate information free of charge.  Only postage 
charges for locating information in hardback form from another location can be 
passed on to the patron.  The ability to pass on the costs for postage is really 
the main change in the policy as this was not allowed in the past.  Also allowed 
will be a charge to patrons for any downloads of electronic information that 
would be at a cost to the library.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously approved the 
Resource Access and Attainment Policy for the Gila County Library District.   

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board adjourned as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and 
reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.   

 
3C. Information/Discussion/Action to select one of the following projects 
for the Secure Rural Schools Title II Special Projects application for 
2011:  Double Chip Seal Forest Road 423 (Cline Boulevard) in Tonto Basin 
or Double Chip Seal Forest Road 55 (Russell Road to Kellner Canyon Road) 
in Globe and direct staff to proceed with preparing the grant application.  



4 

 
Ms. Griffin explained the history of the Secure Rural Schools and Community 
Self –Determination Act, which is also known as the Secure Rural Schools Act, 
and she explained that the Act contains several “Titles” within it.  The purpose 
of the Act originally enacted in 2000 was to restore stability and predictability 
to the annual payments made to states and counties containing national forest 
system lands and public domain lands managed by the Bureau of Land 
Management for use by the counties for the benefit of public schools, roads 
and other purposes, which is rather broad.  This was in response to the severe 
and rapid decline of the timber industry, particularly in the northwest, from 
which counties used to get substantial funding from timber.  As the resource 
based declined, the federal government’s response was to pass this Act.  Ms. 
Griffin noted that it is different from the Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT), but it 
follows along similar lines.  The first Title I funding was authorized for 6 years 
through September 2006, and the payments went to the county roads and 
school programs.  Title II gives counties access to funds through grants, which 
are administered by the U.S. Forest Service.  Title 3 provides for funds for 
search and rescue activities, forest related education, fire prevention and 
county planning among other uses.  The other Title programs are ones that the 
County generally doesn’t deal with.  The Act of 2008-2011, which was 
reauthorized on October 3, 2008, is more fully funded than it was for 2000-
2006.  The Title II, special projects on federal lands, which is what this grant 
applies to, allows Resource Advisory Committees (RAC) to be deemed by the 
U.S. Department of Agriculture and the members are appointed for 4 years.  
The RAC duties were expanded to include monitoring of project progress.  The 
authority to initiate Title II projects terminates on September 30, 2011, and 
funds not obligated by September 30, 2012, will be transferred back to the U.S. 
Treasury unless there is a reauthorization.  Included in Title II projects are 
specific criteria for the funds that would benefit water shed, habitat or U.S. 
Forest Service land, so that is the reason this request is to specifically ask for 
some direction on a road that is within forest land.  Ms. Griffin called on Steve 
Stratton, Public Works Division Director, to provide additional information.  
Mr. Stratton referred to the December 2010 Board of Supervisors’ work session 
at which time the various project options were presented to the Board.  These 2 
options (listed in the agenda item) are those on which the County would like to 
move forward.  Supervisor Dawson stated that she feels it’s very important to 
correctly apply these funds because from her understanding there is a strong 
possibility that these funds may not be extended next year.  If it’s not 
reauthorized by September 2011, all counties will revert to receiving 25% of the 
forest reserve payment.   Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy 
Director, stated that the County has been in contact with the Tonto National 
Forest Service engineer’s office in Phoenix and with both ranger districts in 
Tonto Basin and Globe looking for their support on these projects.  The Tonto 
Basin Ranger District seemed more than willing to perform the NEPA (National 
Environmental Policy Act) for the County if the Forest Road 423 Project is 
selected, which would save the County a lot of money.  Vice-Chairman Martin 



5 

stated that the money the County receives for PILT is a pittance when 
compared to what the County could make in property tax on that land; and 
this funding is the same way.  She was not sure this Act would be funded in 
the future either, but she believes the County should be right in there getting 
back what it put in for the County’s roads.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that 
she would like to see this funding used for Forest Road 423 (Cline Boulevard) 
in Tonto Basin Road because the money spent there now will save the County 
more money in the long run.  Chairman Pastor stated that with the U.S. Forest 
Service willing to help the County with the NEPA, and because this road in 
District 2 has been a concern for many years with a lot of County time being 
spent by the road crew to maintain it, he would also be in favor of selecting 
Forest Road 423.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously selected the Double Chip Seal 
Forest Road 423 (Cline Boulevard) in Tonto Basin for the Secure Rural Schools 
Title II Special Projects application for 2011 and directed staff to proceed with 
preparing the grant application.   
 

 3D. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-01-01 
authorizing the submission of a Grant Application for Home Investment 
Partnership Program funds, and Resolution No. 11-01-02 adopting housing 
services guidelines; and to approve the submission of the Grant 
Application to the Arizona State Department of Housing, State Housing 
Fund, in the amount of $330,000 for the Owner-Occupied Housing 
Rehabilitation 2011 HOME Project.   

 
 Malissa Buzan, Housing Services Program Manager, stated that this grant, if 

approved, would enable housing rehabilitation for 7 eligible Gila County 
residents who are currently on the County’s waiting list.  This is new funding 
that will be used in conjunction with leverage funds from the County’s utility 
repair funds, Southwest Gas weatherization funds, Arizona Public Service 
weatherization funds and low-income weatherization funds that are currently 
received from a contract with the federal government and also Arizona 
Community Action Association.  Chairman Pastor inquired if there are any 
matching funds required from the County.  Ms. Buzan stated that there are no 
matching funds.  Ms. Buzan stated that the reason she put the leverage funds 
in here with the other fund sources is because the County will get extra points 
in the application system because of leveraging other funds from contracts with 
the County.   Supervisor Dawson inquired as to the reason $330,000 would 
only serve 7 homes because that would be $47,000 per home.  Ms. Buzan 
stated that was correct; however, the costs are administrative costs that 
include the rehabilitation specialist’s salary, and the materials and supplies for 
the projects specific to each home.  Ms. Buzan stated that is the reason she 
doesn’t put an amount on the leverage funds.  Every home is unique regarding 
its needs and she can generally leverage more funds and get half again as 
many units out of the grant funds.  She stated that these projects are done 
throughout Gila County including Pine, Star Valley, and Hayden-Winkelman 



6 

with the exception of the reservation because the reservation applies for its own 
dollars.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 11-01-01 authorizing 
the submission of a Grant Application for Home Investment Partnership 
Program funds, and Resolution No. 11-01-02 adopting housing services 
guidelines; and to approve the submission of the Grant Application to the 
Arizona State Department of Housing, State Housing Fund, in the amount of 
$330,000 for the Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation 2011 HOME Project. 
(Copies of the Resolutions are permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.) 
 

 3E.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a petition from 
Landmark at the Creek LLC, to begin the process to dispose of an 
unnecessary public roadway being a portion of Christopher Creek Loop as 
shown on the attached map.   

 
 Mr. Sanders stated that Christopher Creek Loop was part of old Highway 260 

before the road was realigned and it was the state highway through 
Christopher Creek.  This particular section is in front of what used to be known 
as the Landmark Restaurant that burned down and is being rebuilt.  This 
roadway is 17 feet wide by 210 feet long and approximately 20 feet off of the 
edge of the pavement.  It would not impact the County from performing any 
maintenance in the area.  The right-of-way varies from 100 feet to 200 feet in 
case the Arizona Department of Transportation needed to use it for something 
such as snow removal.  Mr. Sanders stated that approval by the Board will 
allow the County to begin the disposal process and in the future he will 
address the Board numerous times with bids, etc.  Chairman Pastor inquired 
whether there are any other landowners that might dispute this process.  Mr. 
Sanders replied that he didn’t think so because it’s just adjacent to the 
Landmark parcel and is only a portion of the road.  He stated that other 
abandonments have been done across the road within a mile section of this 
area with no disputes.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that this needs to be done 
all up and down that road, so this will be one of many.  She stated that the 
County Roads Department has seen to it that the County has ample access for 
getting to the areas necessary to keep the bridge cleaned out and those 
employees have done a very good job.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously accepted a petition 
from Landmark at the Creek LLC, to begin the process to dispose of an 
unnecessary public roadway being a portion of Christopher Creek Loop as 
shown on the attached map.   

 
 3F. Information/Discussion/Action to approve the purchase of parcel no. 

205-14-035E and a portion of parcel no. 205-14-035C from Jack-in-the-
Box Inc. in the amount of $18,000 plus closing fees for the Monroe Street 
realignment project.  

 



7 

 Mr. Stratton stated that this project goes back many years.  He stated that 
when the Board voted to eliminate left turns out of the Courthouse onto Ash 
Street and reroute to Monroe Street that increased the volume of traffic and the 
need to improve that road was realized.  Unfortunately, the County had a hard 
time dealing with management at Jack-in-the-Box; however, the County has 
now reached an agreement with them.  The property was appraised 2 years ago 
at $30,000 and their stalling tactics have actually cost them about $12,000 in 
its appraised value.  Mr. Stratton then presented a slide of the property 
showing the section that the County desires to purchase, along with the 
County’s adjacent property.  He stated that the County has actually 
encroached on Jack-in-the-Box’s property in the area coming from the upper 
parking lot so there will be one necessary piece of property to rectify same.  He 
also referred to the parcel where Jack-in-the-Box’s sewer line comes down and 
goes into Monroe Street.  The County needs this parcel in order to put in a 
retaining wall, so as part of the agreement the County will lower Jack-in-the 
Box’s sewer line.  Chairman Pastor inquired about the property behind the 
adjacent motel.  Mr. Stratton confirmed that the County has enough right-of-
way in the area needed to do what is necessary.  Chairman Pastor inquired if 
this project will include leveling the property.  Mr. Stratton advised that the 
County will cut the property back and put in a retaining wall.  The high point 
will be on Seventh Street and some of the hump will be removed and the road 
slightly straightened.  Also, the roads from the County’s parking lot and from 
the Arizona Department of Economic Security will be brought together into a T 
intersection so it will be much safer.  Upon inquiry by Chairman Pastor if the 
County has to tie the sewer line for Jack-in-the-Box into the City of Globe 
sewer, Mr. Stratton replied that it is already tied in; however, when the County 
drops the elevation of the road the sewer line will be exposed.  As part of this 
project the County has agreed to drop the sewer line to grade, so it will be 
covered under the new roadway.  The cost to the County will be approximately 
$5,000 to $10,000.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the purchase of parcel no. 
205-14-035E and a portion of parcel no. 205-14-035C from Jack-in-the-Box 
Inc. in the amount of $18,000 plus closing fees for the Monroe Street 
realignment project.  

 
 3G. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Road Project Agreement 

No. 11-RO-11031200-010 between the United States Department of 
Agriculture, Forest Service, Tonto National Forest, and Gila County for 
FY11 annual maintenance on Tonto National Forest Service roads in the 
amount of $72,114 through September 30, 2011, and with approval for 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, to sign modifications 
under $50,000.   

 
 Mr. Stratton stated this is the County’s annual agreement with the U. S. Forest 

Service.  The County maintains several hundred miles of Forest Service roads 
for which the County is paid $72,000 per year; however, from time to time 



8 

monies become available through various Forest Service programs that need to 
be spent somewhat expeditiously on road projects.  Mr. Stratton stated that is 
the reason he is requesting permission to sign modifications under $50,000.  
He provided an example of a road paving project at Windy Hill where the U. S. 
Forest Service had some funds available to do a chip seal on that road, which 
is provided for in the maintenance agreement.  The County provided the labor 
and the U.S. Forest Service provided the chip seals under a modification.  This 
would be additional money coming into Gila County, not money being spent by 
Gila County.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Dawson, the Board unanimously approved Road Project Agreement No. 11-RO-
11031200-010 between the United States Department of Agriculture, Forest 
Service, Tonto National Forest, and Gila County for FY11 annual maintenance 
on Tonto National Forest Service roads in the amount of $72,114 through 
September 30, 2011, and with approval for Steve Stratton, Public Works 
Division Director, to sign modifications under $50,000.   

 
 3H. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County 

Emergency Management Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation-
January 2010 Buy-Out Project Grant Application to the Arizona Division 
of Emergency Management for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
funds in the amount of $464,492.    

 
 Matthew Bolinger, Director/Epidemiologist of Gila County Emergency 

Management and Health Preparedness, stated that all of the projects he will be 
presenting today are under the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), 
which is a federal program administered by the state of Arizona.  This first 
project is to submit an application for 4 buyouts with 2 on the east side of 
Tonto Creek, 1 on the west side of Tonto Creek and 1 in the Roosevelt area.  
The process can take several years and this is merely a request for permission 
to start the process with the state working through the applications.  He stated 
that the details of these applications will change over the next couple of years.  
If this request is approved, it will not obligate the County to anything at this 
time.  Mr. Bolinger will work with the federal and state partners to bring a final 
project to the Board for approval.  There will be a 25% County match for all of 
the approved projects; however, the County would work with the state and 
federal partners to apply as much soft match as possible.  He stated that with 
a buyout, many times the demolition and removal of the material from the 
property will cover the soft match.  The Board thanked Mr. Bolinger for trying 
to help out the folks in the area who are susceptible to flooding.  Upon motion 
by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously authorized the Gila County Emergency Management Department 
to submit a FEMA Mitigation-January 2010 Buy-Out Project Grant Application 
to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for FEMA Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program funds in the amount of $464,492.    

 



9 

 3I. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County 
Emergency Management Department approval to submit a FEMA 
Mitigation Grant Application-Vertical Heights Road Repair Project to the 
Arizona Division of Emergency Management for a grant request totaling 
$350,000.  

 
 Mr. Bolinger stated that this is also an HMGP project in partnership between 

Gila County Emergency Services Department and the Public Works Division.  It 
is in reference to a section of road that was lost in the January 2010 storms by 
a mudslide on Vertical Heights Road.  Mr. Stratton stated that there was a 
makeshift retaining wall that was erected by citizens many years ago that was 
washed away causing one lane of Vertical Heights Road to be taken out.  Mr. 
Bolinger stated that this process will also be ongoing and like the others, the 
County will work with the state and federal partners to include as much soft 
match as possible.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously authorized the Gila County 
Emergency Management Department approval to submit a FEMA Mitigation 
Grant Application-Vertical Heights Road Repair Project to the Arizona Division 
of Emergency Management for a grant request totaling $350,000.  

 
 3J.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County 

Emergency Management Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant 
Application-Individual Flood Insurance and Mitigation Outreach Project 
to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for FEMA Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program funding in the amount of $69,625 for the hire 
of a Flood Mitigation Analyst for an 18-month period.   

 
 Mr. Bolinger stated that this is also an HMGP project.  Currently in Gila 

County about 1% of homeowners have national flood insurance.  Mr. Bolinger 
stated that the County is hoping to go through the HMGP and work through 
the application process with the state and federal governments to find an 
outreach project to try to increase that number in flood-prone areas all over the 
County, but particularly in Roosevelt and Tonto Basin and the Mackey’s Camp 
area in Miami.  This project would allow outreach both with flood preparation 
and emergency preparation, but more importantly would encourage residents 
to purchase national flood insurance.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she 
was delighted that the County will be doing this so that people are aware that 
this type of insurance is available as well as assisting them in filling out the 
applications.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the Gila County Emergency 
Management Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-
Individual Flood Insurance and Mitigation Outreach Project to the Arizona 
Division of Emergency Management for FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant 
Program funding in the amount of $69,625 for the hire of a Flood Mitigation 
Analyst for an 18-month period.   

 



10 

 3K.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Gila County 
Emergency Management Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant 
Application-Elevation Project to the Arizona Division of Emergency 
Management for Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding in the amount 
of $50,000.   

 
 Mr. Bolinger stated that this request is for an elevation project on the east side 

on Tonto Creek at the Goodwin property.  It will be under the same project with 
the same required match; however, the County will not be providing the 25% 
match.  He stated that the County will be working with the Goodwins on 
providing that match prior to the finalization of this application and acceptance 
by the County.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired whether this will be a way to 
learn this process for others in that area to follow.  Mr. Bolinger replied that 
the County has been working through this process with a number of residents.  
Some of the homes need to be elevated 7 feet; however, he didn’t believe a lot of 
the residents were interested in elevating at this time.  He stated that as the 
County goes through the process, it will encourage residents to elevate their 
homes that don’t necessarily have to because they are grandfathered in to 
some of the issues that the County has with the floodplain in that area.  Some 
of these HMGP projects do not require national flood insurance, but many of 
the programs that the County works through on buyout elevations do require 
national flood insurance.  The national flood insurance program is important to 
obtain for those people who live in those flood-prone areas.  Chairman Pastor 
stated that some of these areas are within his supervisorial district.  He visits 
those residents on a monthly basis, so he can sympathize with what they go 
through and he believes this will be a good program.  He noted that it is 
understood that these are just grant applications and there is no guarantee of 
funding.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Dawson, the Board unanimously authorized the Gila County Emergency 
Management Department to submit a FEMA Mitigation Grant Application-
Elevation Project to the Arizona Division of Emergency Management for 
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funding in the amount of $50,000.   

 
 3L. Presentation of information related to Gila County Policy No. BOS-4-

2005, Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest, with a reminder to each elected 
official and division/department director to communicate said policy to 
their employees.  (Marian Sheppard)  

 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, presented information related to Gila 
County’s Policy No. BOS-4-2005, Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest, which was 
adopted by the Board in December 2005.  She reminded each elected official 
and division/department director to communicate said policy to their 
employees.  No action was required by the Board. 
 
Item 4 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 



11 

 4A. Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to 
Contract No. 050709-1 between Gila County and CEMEX to extend the 
Contract, per Section 2.2, from the period December 18, 2010, to 
December 17, 2011; and to provide for the purchase of 3/8" chips and 
ABC, all of which are used in the Copper Region of Gila County. 

 
4B. Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to 
Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 6500.505/01-2010 between 
Gila County and Sheldon Miller to extend the Contract, per Article 
I, Activity 5, from the period January 5, 2011, to January 4, 2012, to 
provide consulting services for various highway projects in Arizona and 
with the Arizona Department of Transportation. (This item was tabled to the 
next meeting.)   

 
 4C. Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to 

Contract No. 100109-01R between Gila County and Swire Coca-Cola to 
extend the Contract, per Article III, from January 12, 2011, to January 
11, 2012, to provide automated vending machine services to Gila County 
facilities. 

 
 4D. Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to 

Contract No. SS71803D between Gila County and Kimley-Horn and 
Associates in the amount of $949,992 to approve Phase II scope, design, 
and cost proposal per Article IX of the contract for Professional 
Engineering Services on the New Bridge Over Tonto Creek project for the 
period November 3, 2009, through November 3, 2011. 

 
 4E. Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. 

HG861265 between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Health 
Services in the amount of $135,003 to extend the Teen Pregnancy 
Prevention program for the period of January 1, 2011, through December 
31, 2011. 

 
 4F. Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE111170001 

between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Economic Security to 
facilitate the use of a Family Law Commissioner for the period October 1, 
2010, through September 30, 2015.  

 
 4G. Approval of a request for a waiver of fees submitted by Lani Hall, on 

behalf of the U of A Gila County Cooperative Extension Office - 4-H 
Program, for the use of the Fairground’s Exhibit Hall and/or other areas 
at the Fairgrounds for all Gila County 4-H activities in 2011. 

 
 4H. Approval of the July 6, 2010, BOS meeting minutes. 
 



12 

 4I.  Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court.  

 
 4J. Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report 

submitted by the Globe Regional Constable.  
 
 4K. Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report 

submitted by the Globe Regional Constable.  
 
 4L. Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report 

submitted by the Payson Regional Constable.  
 
 4M. Approval of the November 2010 monthly departmental activity report 

submitted by the Recorder's Office.  
 
 4N. Approval of the October and November 2010 monthly departmental 

activity reports submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace.  
 
 4O. Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of December 21, 2010, 

December 28, 2010, and January 4, 2011.  
 
 December 21, 2010 
 Departures from County Service: 

1.  Linda Shirley – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – 12/10/10 – General Fund – DOH 04/13/09 – Resigned  
2.  Anthony M. Waddell – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – 12/10/10 – General Fund – DOH 05/24/10 - Resigned  
Temporary Hires to County Service: 
3. Denise M. Barajas – Board of Supervisors – Laborer – 12/20/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund  
End Probationary Period
4. Gina Seymour – Board of Supervisors – Supervisor’s Staff Specialist – 
12/06/10 – General Fund  

: 

Departmental Transfers
5. Gaylynn Quintana – County Attorney – From Legal Secretary – To Legal 
Secretary Senior –11/06/10 – Deferred Prosecution Program Fund – 
Reclassification  

: 

Position Review
6.  Kathleen Lord Joerns – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 12/06/10 
– Change in fund code  

: 

7.  Lynn Dee Trimble – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 12/06/10 – 
Change in fund code  
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Position Review: 
8.  Brian Havey – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff SGT. LEBSF – 12/06/10 – 
BLESF Fund – Change in fund code and position control number  



13 

9.  David Hornung – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff SGT. – 12/06/10 – 
General Fund – Change in fund code and position control number  
 
December 28, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1.  Charles Bowling – Health Department – Administrative Clerk – 12/16/10 – 
TB and Immunization Funds – DOH 10/27/08 – Resigned  
2.  Cynthia Bach – Public Fiduciary  – Fiduciary Services Specialist I – 
01/14/11 – General Fund – DOH 08/10/09 – Resigned  
3.  Jerry Farr – Public Works – Construction Projects Manager – 12/31/10 – 
Public Works Fund – DOH 09/09/03 - Retirement  
Hires to County Service: 
4.  Renee Omstead – Health and Emergency Services Department – Accounting 
Clerk – 12/06/10 – Various Funds – Replacing Chris Phillips 
5.  Jerry Farr – Public Works – Construction Projects Manager – 01/03/11 – 
Public Works Fund – returning to position on a part time basis  
Temporary Hires to County Service: 
6. Courtney Canez – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 12/27/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund  
End Probationary Period
7.  Debra Holmes – County Attorney – Legal Secretary Senior – 11/22/10 – 
General Fund  

: 

8.  Kevin Moran – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – 12/20/10 
– Public Works Fund  
Position Review
9. Ramai Alvarez – County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney Senior – 
12/20/10 – General Fund – Change in hours from 30 to 40 per week.  

: 

Request Permission to Post
10.  Finance – Accounts Clerk Specialist – New Position  

: 

11.  Health Services – Influenza Surveillance Specialist – New Position  
12.  Health Services – Influenza Planner – New Position  
13.  Health Services – Influenza Trainer – New Position  
14.  Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Patricia 
Trevillian  
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Departures from County Service
15.  Gabriel Lagunas – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 12/31/10 – General 
Fund – Resigned  

: 

Hires to County Service
16. Johnie Brake – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 01/03/11 – General 
Fund – Replaces Jennifer Stout  

: 

End Probationary Period
17. Nancy Neumann – Sheriff’s Office – Administrative Clerk – 01/01/11 – 
General Fund  

: 

Departmental Transfers: 
18. Amber Warden – From Finance – To Sheriff’s Office – From Payroll 



14 

Specialist – To Accounting Clerk Specialist – 12/27/10 – General Fund  

January 4, 2011 
Departures from County Service: 
1.  Robert Knight – Public Fiduciary – Temporary Quality Assurance – 
12/24/10 – General Fund – DOH 10/11/10 – Termination  
2.  Manuel Rodriguez – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 12/13/10 
– Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 08/25/10 – Temporary employment  
3.  Richard Ruiz – Board of Supervisors - Temporary Laborer – 12/13/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 08/25/10 – Temporary employment  
4.  Billy Tarango – Board of Supervisors - Temporary Laborer – 12/13/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 08/25/10 – Temporary employment  
Hires to County Service: 
5. Melvina Takala-Griffin – Community Services – 01/10/11 – WIA Fund – 
Replacing Judy Gonzales 
Temporary Hires to County Service
6. Robert Gamboa – County Attorney – Temporary Administration Clerk – 
01/03/11 – General Fund  

: 

End Probationary Period
7. Chris Phillips - Health and Emergency Services – Community Health 
Assistant Senior – 12/20/10 – Teen Pregnancy Prevention Services Fund  

: 

 4P. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
December 21, 2010, December 28, 2010, and January 4, 2011.  

December 21, 2010 

$480,116.71 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 233343 
through 233548.   

December 28, 2010 

$2,105,566.87 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 233549 
through 233745.   

January 4, 2011 

$277,547.52 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 233746 
through 233843.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 4A-4P.  Chairman 
Pastor stated that he had a question on Consent Agenda item 4B and he 
requested that this item be tabled to the next meeting to allow him time to 
obtain further information.  Supervisor Dawson amended her motion to 



15 

approve Consent Agenda action items 4A-4P with the exception of item 4B, 
which was tabled to the next meeting.  The motion was seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin and unanimously approved.   
 
Item 5 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 
to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 6 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and Don McDaniel, County Manager, presented 
information on current events.    
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:25 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



   

ARF-835       5- W             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

9/30/08 & 10/1/08 Combined BOE Minutes; 8/15/11 BOE Minutes;
and 1/25/11 Appeal Hearing Minutes

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk,
BOS

Submitted By: Marian
Sheppard,
Clerk of the
Board of
Supervisors

Information
Subject
Approval of Board of Equalization Minutes and Appeal Hearing Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of Board of Equalization Minutes, as follows:  September 30, 2008, and
October 1, 2008, (Combined Minutes); and August 15, 2011; and approval of the
January 25, 2011, Appeal Hearing Minutes for Glynn and Nancy Ross.



   

ARF-758       5- X             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Justice Court Report for the month of July, 2011 

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court
Operations Mgr

Submitted By: Mary Navarro,
Superior Court

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice Court Monthly Report for July, 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the July 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace.

Attachments
Globe Justice Court Report for 07/11
Globe Justice Court Report for 07/11







   

ARF-756       5- Y             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Constable Monthly Report for July 2011

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable Submitted By: Cheryle Wood,
Constable -
Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Constable Monthly Report for July 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the July 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Constable

Attachments
Payson Constable Report for 07/11

















































   

ARF-760       5- Z             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Constable Fiscal Year 2008-2009 Annual Report

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable Submitted By: Cheryle Wood,
Constable -
Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Constable Fiscal Year 2008-2009 Annual Report

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Fiscal Year 2008-2009 Annual Report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable

Attachments
Payson Constable Annual Report for FY'08-09





































   

ARF-762       5- AA             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Constable Fiscal Year 2009-2010 Annual Report

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable Submitted By: Cheryle Wood,
Constable -
Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Constable Fiscal Year 2009-2010 Annual Report

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Fiscal Year 2009-2010 Annual Report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable

Attachments
Payson Constable FY'09-10 Annual Report























   

ARF-763       5- BB             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

Payson Constable Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Annual Report

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson Regional Constable Submitted By: Cheryle Wood,
Constable -
Payson

Information
Subject
Payson Constable Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Annual Report

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Annual Report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable

Attachments
Payson Constable FY'10-11 Annual Report





















   

ARF-782       5- CC             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for July 2011

Submitted For: Sadie Dalton, Recorder Submitted By: Sadie Dalton,
Recorder's Office

Information
Subject
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for July 2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the July 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the
Recorder's Office.

Attachments
Recorder's Office Monthly Report for July 2011



















   

ARF-784       5- DD             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

Clerk of Court Report for the Month of July 2011

Submitted For: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of
the Superior Court

Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar,
Clerk of the
Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of Superior Court Report for the Month of July 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the July 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the
Clerk of Superior Court

Attachments
COC report for July 2011



















   

ARF-797       5- EE             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable Office Monthly Report for July 2011

Submitted For: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk Submitted By: Kimberly Rust,
Constable -
Globe

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable Office Monthly Report for July 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the July 2011 departmental activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Constable Office

Attachments
Globe Regional Constable Report July 2011



































   

ARF-733       5- FF             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 09/06/2011  

Reporting
Period:

Human Resources reports for the weeks of 8/23/11, 8/30/11 and
9/6/11

Submitted For: Berthan DeNero, Human Resources
Director

Submitted By: Erica Raymond,
Human
Resources

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 23, 2011, August 30, 2011, and
September 6, 2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of August 23, 2011, August
30, 2011, and September 6, 2011.

Attachments
08/23/11 Human Resources Agenda
08/30/11 Human Resources Agenda
09/06/11 Revised Human Resources Agenda



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 23, 2011 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1.  Kaycee Jankowski – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health 
Assistant – 08/16/11 – Health Start Program Fund – DOH 06/17/09 - 
Resignation 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Rachel Wright – Superior Court – Judicial Assistant – 08/16/11 – Cost of 
Prosecution Fund 

3. Tiffney Sanchez – Public Works Facilities and Land Management – Custodian 
– 08/08/11 – Facilities Fund 

 
END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

4. Katie Meredith – Health and Emergency Services – WIC Breast Feeding Peer 
Counselor – 08/24/11 – WIC Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

5. Sarah White – Health and Emergency Services – Executive Administrative 
Assistant – 07/01/11 – From 100% General Fund – To 50% General Fund 
50% Health Services Fund 

6. John Yanez – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Assistant 
Senior – 08/08/11 – Tobacco Free Environment Fund – From 20.5 hours – To 
19.5 hours 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

7. Community Services – Community Service Worker – Waiver of 120 Day 
Hiring Freeze approved 07/28/11 

 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

8.  Yvonne Alvarez -  Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 08/11/11 – General 
Fund – DOH 03/05/07 – Terminated for  cause 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

9. Annamaria Schutter – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/02/11 – General 
Fund  

 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
AUGUST 30, 2011 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Michael Collett – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 08/15/11 – 
General Fund – DOH 01/31/11 – Unsuccessful completion of probationary 
period 

2. Joseph Michael DeCenzo – Superior Court, Division One – Temporary Bailiff 
– 08/08/11 – General Fund – DOH 05/31/11 – Temporary position 

3. Timoteo S. Campos – Superior Court General – Bailiff/Interpreter – 07/11/11 
– General Fund – DOH 09/08/03 - Retirement 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

4. Rachel Wright – Superior Court, Division One – Temporary Judicial Assistant 
– 08/16/11 – Superior Court Cost of Prosecution Fund 

 
END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

5. Jillian Rene Velarde – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk 
Associate – 08/22/11 – General Fund 

6. Karrie Alvino – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate 
– 09/07/11 – General Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

7. Nancy Mach – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health 
Assistant – 08/15/11 – Increase in number of hours worked per week from 20 
to 30 hours worked per week due to grant program requirements 

8. Betty Vanta – Public Health Emergency Preparedness – Communicable 
Disease Specialist – 07/01/11 – Change in fund codes 

9. Judy Smith – Health Services – Grants and Special Projects – 07/01/11 – 
Change in fund codes 

 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

10. Sharisse Dee – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 09/12/11 – General Fund – 
Replacing Sarah Bread 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

11. Thor Nudson – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy 
Sheriff/LEBSF – 08/01/11 – From General Fund – To Sheriff LEBSF 
Program Fund 

12. Karen Baltz – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff/LEBSF – To Deputy 
Sheriff/Detective – 08/01/11 – From LEBSF Program Fund – To General 
Fund 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 

REVISED 
 

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Dixie Mundy – Elections – Temporary Elections Director – 08/22/11 – General Fund – DOH 
10/22/81 – Temporary position 

2. Amber Martinez – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Control Worker – 09/09/11 – Rabies 
Control Fund – DOH 11/15/10 – Resignation  

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. John Geer – Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 09/12/11 – Public Works 
Fund – Replacing Michael Moore 

4. Steven Seaman – Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 09/12/11 – Public 
Works Fund – Replacing Robert Whittle 

5. John Digman – Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 09/12/11 – Public Works 
Fund – Replacing John Jackson 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

6. Gloria Aguirre – From Finance – To Public Works – From Assistant Finance Director – To 
Accountant Sr. – 09/12/11 – Public Works Fund 

 
END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Mark Gann – Public Works – Solid Waste Operations Worker Sr. – 09/12/11 – Solid Waste Fund 
8. Misti Williams – Finance – Accountant Clerk Sr. – 08/19/11 – General Fund 
9. Tiffiney Sanchez – Treasurer – Accounting Clerk Specialist – 09/14/11 – General Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

10. Kyle Mann – County Attorney – Deputy Attorney Sr. – 09/07/11 – Change in number of hours 
worked from 40 hours per week to 19 hours or less per week 

 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

11. Marquis Clark – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 09/12/11 – General Fund – Replacing Amy 
Bagwell 

 
END OF PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

12. Sarah Haynie – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/15/11 – General Fund 


	Agenda
	Agenda

	Item2.0A.  July's _Spotlight on Employees_ Program
	Item3.0A.  Resolution No. 11-09-01 naming Forest Service Road 208 as Jim Jones Shooting Range Rd
	Item3.0A._Att1_Resolution 11-09-01
	Item3.0A._Att2_Ordinance
	Item3.0A._Att3_Public Notice
	Item4.0A.  State Grants-in-Aid Application 2012
	Item4.0A._Att1_SGIA Grant Award Letter
	Item4.0A._Att2_SGIA Grant Application
	Item4.0B.  First Things First Contract Renewal Amendment Notification
	Item4.0B._Att1_FTF Award Letter
	Item4.0B._Att2_Standards of Practice
	Item4.0C.  Memorandum of Understanding Agreements to promote early literacy in Globe-Miami, Hayden, Payson, Pine, Tonto Basin and Young
	Item4.0C._Att1_MOU with Friends of Globe Library
	Item4.0C._Att2_MOU with Hayden Library 
	Item4.0C._Att3_MOU with Pine Library
	Item4.0C._Att4_MOU with Library Friends of Payson - Early Literacy
	Item4.0C._Att5_MOU with Tonto Basin Library - Early Literacy
	Item4.0C._Att6_MOU with Young Library - Early Literacy
	Item4.0D.  Proclamation 11-08, declaring week of September 19, 2011, as _Employer Support of the Guard and Reserve Week_ in Gila County.
	Item4.0D._Att1_Proclamation No. 11-08
	Item4.0D._Att2_Strong National Defense
	Item4.0E.  Amendment No. 5 to Contract No. C037-09-02-ARRA Weatherization Low-Income Assistance Contractual Agreement
	Item4.0E._Att1_Amendment No. 5 to Contract C037-09-02 Governor's Office of Energy Policy
	Item4.0E._Att2_Amendment No. 1 to Contract C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office 
	Item4.0E._Att3_Amendment No. 2 to Contract C037-09-02 Dept. of Energy Office 
	Item4.0E._Att4_Amendment No. 3 to C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office
	Item4.0E._Att5_Contract No. C037-09-02 Dept. of Commerce Energy Office
	Item4.0F.  Contract Award for Bid No. 061311-1 for MC-800TR Chip Seal Oil
	Item4.0F._Att1_Bid Tabulation Form
	Item4.0F._Att2_Bid Tracking Form
	Item4.0F._Att3_Contract No. 061311-1
	Item4.0F._Att4_Letter of Delivery Understanding
	Item4.0G.  U.S.D.A. Special Use Permit Tonto National Forest
	Item4.0G._Att1_Special Use Permit 
	Item4.0G._Att2_Operating Plan
	Item4.0H.  Andres Associates Public Relations and Media Letter of Agreement for Apache Jii
	Item4.0H._Att1_Andres Associates Apache Jii Proposal
	Item4.0H._Att2_Andres Associates Letter of Agreement
	Item4.0I.  Election of a Chairman and Vice Chairman for the Board of Supervisors
	Item4.0J.  Proposed Settlement in Rim Golf Club v. Gila County, TX2011-000108
	Item4.0J._Att1_Proposed Judgment, Rim Golf Club, TX2011-000108
	Item4.0K.  Proposed future settlements(s) for Petition(s) for Review of Notices of Claim
	Item4.0L.  Gila County Supervisorial and Community College Redistricting
	Item4.0L._Att01_Public Notice
	Item4.0L._Att02_Supervisory Draft Plan A Maps
	Item4.0L._Att03_Supervisory Draft Plan A Report
	Item4.0L._Att04_Supervisory Draft Plan B Maps
	Item4.0L._Att05_Supervisory Draft Plan B Report
	Item4.0L._Att06_Supervisory Draft Plan C Maps
	Item4.0L._Att07_Supervisory Draft Plan C Report
	Item4.0L._Att08_Supervisory Tonto Plan Maps and Report
	Item4.0L._Att09_College Draft Plan 1 Maps
	Item4.0L._Att10_College Draft Plan 1 Report
	Item4.0L._Att11_College Draft Plan 2 Maps
	Item4.0L._Att12_College Draft Plan 2 Report
	Item4.0L._Att13_College Draft Plan 3 Maps
	Item4.0L._Att14_College Draft Plan 3 Report
	Item5.0A.  Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Contract No. SS71803D-New Bridge Over Tonto Creek with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
	Item5.0A._Att1_Amendment No. 2 Contract No. SS71803D
	Item5.0A._Att2_Amendment No. 1 Contract No. SS71803D
	Item5.0A._Att3_Original Contract SS71803D
	Item5.0B.  IGAs with Town of Hayden & Town of Miami for their Senior Center Transit Programs
	Item5.0B._Att1_IGA Hayden and Miami
	Item5.0C.  U.S. Forest Service Grant_Agreement _11-LE-11031200-007 Modification
	Item5.0C._Att1_Agreement _11-LE-11031200-007 Modification
	Item5.0D.  FY2012 Continuance Notification-AZDPS Contract  2009-261 Detention Liaison Officer Program
	Item5.0D._Att1_2012 GIITEM
	Item5.0D._Att2_IGA-AZDPS Contract 2009-261
	Item5.0E.  Services Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc. for Treasurer's Vault Storage Service
	Item5.0E._Att1_Service Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc.
	Item5.0E._Att2_Executive Summary Form
	Item5.0F.  Appointment of Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican Committee
	Item5.0F._Att1_Republican PC's August 2011
	Item5.0G.  Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) Certification
	Item5.0G._Att1_C__Documents and Settings_clopez_My Documents_SEMAP Certifications.pdf
	Item5.0H.  Gila_Pinal Workforce Investment Board Reappointment of 2 Members and Acceptance of Corrected Information for Other Members
	Item5.0H._Att1_Gila_Pinal WIB Membership List
	Item5.0I.  Approval to adopt Resolution No. 11-08-08 designating Michael O'Driscoll as applicant agent.
	Item5.0I._Att1_Resolution No. 11-08-08
	Item5.0I._Att2_ADEM Designation of Applicant's Agent Form
	Item5.0J.  Maintenance Agreement with Digital Imaging for the Kyocera Ta-300i Digital MFP Copier located in the Community Development Office
	Item5.0J._Att1_Digital Imaging Maintenance Agreement
	Item5.0K.  Maintenance Agreement with Digital Imaging for the Kyocera TA-5500i Digital MFP Copier located in the Elections Department
	Item5.0K._Att1_Maintenance Agreement
	Item5.0L.  Amendment No. 1 to Document Conversion Services Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc.
	Item5.0L._Att1_Lin-Cum, Inc. Original Conttract
	Item5.0L._Att2_Amendment No.1 Lin-Cum Inc.
	Item5.0M.  Performer Contract Agreement with Robert Wagner for Motivational Speaking Engagement 
	Item5.0M._Att1_Wagner Agreement
	Item5.0N.  Engagement Contract with Clint Lawton for Interpersonal and Interoffice Team Development
	Item5.0N._Att1_Lawhon Signed Contract
	Item5.0O.  Purchase Parcel from Jack In The Box Corporation to Realign Monroe Street
	Item5.0O._Att1_Escrow PIoneer Title
	Item5.0O._Att2_Agenda 1-2011 Approve to Purchase
	Item5.0O._Att3_Record of Survey 3929A
	Item5.0O._Att4_Legal Desc Attach A 35E
	Item5.0O._Att5_Legal Desc Attach B 35C
	Item5.0P.  Notice of Intent to Abandon a Well located at 668 N. Shady Lane, Tonto Basin
	Item5.0P._Att1_NOI to Abandon a Well
	Item5.0Q.  Radvision Maintenance Agreement Renewal with Quagga
	Item5.0Q._Att1_Maintenance Agreement Renewal Quagga
	Item5.0Q._Att2_Original Quagga Agreement
	Item5.0R.  Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board Members' Resignation and Appointment
	Item5.0R._Att1_ARS 48-1012
	Item5.0R._Att2_Rim Trail DWID Resignation-Oath-Minutes
	Item5.0S.  Lions Club Special Event Liquor License Applications for Sept. 22, 2011, and Sept. 24, 2011
	Item5.0S._Att1_Lion's  Club Liq Lic App for 9_22_11
	Item5.0S._Att2_Lion's Club Liq Lic App for 9_24_11
	Item5.0S._Att3_Lion's Club Liq Lic App for 10_1_11
	Item5.0T.  Rimside Grill & Cabins' Application for a Temporary Extension of Patio_Premises Permit
	Item5.0T._Att1_Rimside Grill Patio Ext. Application
	Item5.0T._Att2_Rimside Grill-Comm. Dev. Approval
	Item5.0U.  Ratify the Board of Supervisors' approval of 2 applications sent electronically for Arizona Public Service Solar for Schools and Government Program.
	Item5.0U._Att1_Central Heights and Public Works new applications
	Item5.0U._Att2_Central Heights and Public Works new application
	Item5.0V.  December 14, 2010, December 31, 2010, & January 4, 2011, BOS Meeting Minutes
	Item5.0V._Att1_BOS 12-14-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.0V._Att2_BOS 12-31-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.0V._Att3_BOS 01-04-11 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.0W.  Board of Equalization Minutes and Appeal Hearing Minutes
	Item5.0X.  Globe Justice Court Report for the month of July, 2011 
	Item5.0X._Att1_Globe Justice Court Report for 07_11
	Item5.0X._Att2_Globe Justice Court Report for 07_11
	Item5.0Y.  Payson Constable Monthly Report for July 2011
	Item5.0Y._Att1_Payson Constable Report for 07_11
	Item5.0Z.  Payson Constable Fiscal Year 2008-2009 Annual Report
	Item5.0Z._Att1_Payson Constable Annual Report for FY'08-09
	Item5.AA.  Payson Constable Fiscal Year 2009-2010 Annual Report
	Item5.AA._Att1_Payson Constable FY'09-10 Annual Report
	Item5.BB.  Payson Constable Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Annual Report
	Item5.BB._Att1_Payson Constable FY'10-11 Annual Report
	Item5.CC.  Recorder's Office Monthly Report for July 2011
	Item5.CC._Att1_Recorder's Office Monthly Report for July 2011
	Item5.DD.  Clerk of Court Report for the Month of July 2011
	Item5.DD._Att1_COC report for July 2011
	Item5.EE.  Globe Regional Constable Office Monthly Report for July 2011
	Item5.EE._Att1_Globe Regional Constable Report July 2011
	Item5.FF.  Human Resources reports for the weeks of 8_23_11, 8_30_11 and 9_6_11
	Item5.FF._Att1_08_23_11 Human Resources Agenda
	Item5.FF._Att2_08_30_11 Human Resources Agenda
	Item5.FF._Att3_09_06_11 Revised Human Resources Agenda

	Check Box1: Off
	Check Box2: Off
	Check Box3: Yes
	Check Box4: Off
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: Gila County
	Text9: Michael A. Pastor
	Text10: Chairman of the Board of Supervisors
	Text11: Gila County
	Text12: Board of Supervisors
	Text13: Gila County
	Text14: 6th
	Text15: September
	Text16:  2011
	Text17: Michael O'Driscoll
	Text18: Gila County
	Text19: 
	Text20: Chairman, Board of Supervisors
	Text21: 09/06/2011
	Text22: Michael O'Driscoll
	Text23: Director, Gila County Health & Emergency Management
	Text24: 5515 S. Apache Ave., Suite 400
	Text25: Globe, AZ 85501
	Text26: 928-402-8761
	Text27: 928-425-7714
	Text28: modriscoll@co.gila.az.us
	Text29: 928-701-1811
	Text30: 


